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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRBES

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Huajun International
Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (the
"Reporting Period”) for the shareholders’ perusal.

HIGHLIGHTS

In the past year, the lurking China-US trade war continuously
provoked anxiety in the global market and also inflicted impacts on
the political situations in the Asia-Pacific regions that were beyond
imagination. The economic structure of China is currently under
transformation and adjustment. Although the economic growth
keeps slowing down, China overall economy continues to develop
as being driven by “innovation”. The internal consumption and
domestic demand continue to grow, indicating that the national
power of China is strengthening. Amid such changing environment,
an enterprise can only achieve sustainable development if it can
study closely the changing environment, apply the right strategies
according to different scenarios and manage both internal and
external matters efficiently so as to keep the Company healthy
and strong, and in order to create values for the company and its
shareholders. For the Reporting Period, revenue was approximately
RMB2,649.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB1,272.1 million, or approximately 32.4%, compared to revenue
of approximately RMB3,921.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. The overall decrease in revenue was attributable to the
decrease in revenue generated from Solar Photovoltaic. During the
Reporting Period. Solar Photovoltaic business experienced setting
up of new production facilities for manufacturing of solar modules
in Jurong, Jiangsu. It took several months for pre-commercial
production testing and has contributed revenue since November
2018. In addition, during the Reporting Period, we have changed the
business model from sales of products to provision of processing
services to customers, leading to the decrease in gross revenue.
Trading and Logistics segment and Printing segment continued to
register a stable growth.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRBES

Since 2017, Huajun International Group has been in the progress
of organization restructuring, the Group keeps developing three
segments under the strategic development strategy of “One with
Two"”, namely industries, finance and real estate, and has achieved
remarkable development results. These business segments are
create a synergic effect which enhances the overall operational
efficiency. Our team is united and shares the same ambition to
upholds the enterprise’s core value of "Honorable people are
not ostentatious; people of moral integrity are realistic”, provides
more valuable services and creates better life to our client through
making the three business segment stronger and better.

PROSPECTS

2019 continues to be a year of hardwork for Huajun. Huajun
International Group has transformed the development model
of its business from quantitative to qualitative, and its business
structure from a loose one to a sizable and effective one. With the
economics fluctuations and the new challenging environment, we
need to be vigilant in peacetime, be aware of our own strengths
as well as the others’, and be visionary, in order to achieve
sustainable development and treat creating long-term values for
our Company and our shareholders as goals. Only by improving
ourselves constantly in this constantly evolving market can we
truly put ourselves in an unbeatable position. In the process of
overall upgrading and transformation of our Group, we need the
understanding and support of our shareholders, and their supports
along the journey.

Huajun International Group will endeavor to enhance its corporate
governance and continue to serve all of its shareholders and
stakeholders from various walks of life. The future has come and
the year 2019 of Huajun International Group is believed to be more
wonderful. I would like to express our gratitude again to all of you!

Meng Guang Bao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 May 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from
31 March to 31 December in order to align with the Company's
financial year end date with that of its principal subsidiaries
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
which are statutorily required to have a financial year end date at
31 December. Accordingly, the current financial period covers a
period of nine months from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”) which may not be entirely comparable with last
year's results which cover a period of twelve months.

Our Group has five core businesses. They are Printing, Trading
and Logistics, Property Development and Investments, Solar
Photovoltaic and Financial Services.

Our strategy is to strengthen our foundation, better diversify our
business portfolio, and continue to grow, both organically and
through strategic acquisitions. We believe that this strategy will
increase our shareholders value by creating an even stronger
Huajun.

For the Reporting Period, revenue was approximately RMB2,649.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB1,272.1
million, or 32.4%, compared to revenue of approximately
RMB3,921.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The overall
decrease in revenue was attributable to the decrease in revenue
generated from Solar Photovoltaic. During the Reporting Period.
Solar Photovoltaic business experienced setting up of new
production facilities for manufacturing of solar modules in Jurong,
Jiangsu. It took several months for pre-commercial production
testing and has contributed revenue since November 2018. In
addition, during the Reporting Period, we have changed the
business model from sales of products to provision of processing
services to customers, leading to the decrease in gross revenue.
Trading and Logistics segment and Printing segment continued to
register a stable growth.

For the Reporting Period, our Group generated most of its
revenue from Trading and Logistics segment which accounted
for approximately 72.1% (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
approximately 60.4%) of the total revenue followed by Printing
segment which accounted for approximately 20.8% (for the year
ended 31 March 2018: approximately 16.8%) of the total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W R

EBERE(E)

The table below sets forth our Group's revenue by business TEREJNAEBERAREHEMMEE T N\E=
segment for the Reporting Period and year ended 31 March 2018: R=+—RBILFEREHHMBE D 2 Wa -

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For the nine months ended
31 December 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2018

BE-Z—N\&F (EZF—)\F
tZRA=+—HLEAEAR “A=1T—BL#%FE

RMB Million % RMB Million %

ARBEER % AREBET %

Printing ENfl 551.5 20.8% 658.1 16.8%

Trading and logistics B 5 KR 1,910.5 72.1% 2,367.2 60.4%
Property development ¥ #F3 RIEE

and investments 104.9 4.0% 53.0 1.3%

Solar photovoltaic NI AV 69.9 2.6% 760.2 19.4%

Financial services & m AR TS 12.7 0.5% 47.3 1.2%

Other Hh - - 35.8 0.9%

2,649.5 100% 3,921.6 100%

The table below sets forth our Group's revenue by geographical
locations based on the location by customers for the Reporting

Period and the year ended 31 March 2018:

For the nine months ended
31 December 2018

TR AEENBERBRBEE T \F=
A=+—HI-FERESE D (REZFHOME)
ZWas

For the year ended
31 March 2018

BE-_ZE—-N\H§ HE—ZT—N\F
+ZA=+—RHLNER ZA=+—HLEE

RMB Million % RMB Million %

ARBBHETR % AREBHET %

The PRC Fh 2,246.2 84.8% 3,302.4 84.2%
The United States ES3E 225.3 8.5% 283.8 7.2%
Hong Kong B 50.8 1.9% 237.9 6.1%
European countries BUOM B R 73.2 2.8% 59.4 1.5%
Other countries HMFHZER 54.0 2.0% 38.1 1.0%
2,649.5 100% 3,921.6 100%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Set out below are details of the financial and trading prospects of
the core business segments of the Group:

Printing

New Island Printing Company Limited (“New Island”) is one of the
leading and reputable printing and packaging companies in Hong
Kong and China. New Island produces high quality packaging and
paper products with the capability to serve our international clients
in the areas of beauty and cosmetics, pharmaceutical, food and
beverage globally. During the Reporting Period, we further develop
overseas and local customers portfolio and expand our production
capacities by commencement of operation of a new production
facilities in Liaoning Province of the PRC.

Printing will continue to be the major business segment of the
Group and contribute stable revenue and profit to the Group.

Trading and logistics

This segment is principally engaged in the distribution and sales
of petrochemical products and provision of logistics services. This
segment trades a large spectrum of petrochemical products. The
Group expects vast demand of petrochemical products in Hong
Kong and the PRC and with our strength of strong network of
suppliers ensure stable supply of products managed by our team,
the Group will continue to support the growth of distribution and
sales of petrochemical products, in particular of exploring new types
of petrochemical products for distribution.

Property development and investments

This segment consists of land consolidation and development, real
estate development and sales, property leasing and management,
and various real estate business. Leveraging on the rich resources
in the PRC, the Group seeks to invest on development projects
with asset appreciation potential for investment and enjoys asset
appreciation while generating stable revenue. There are several
core projects held by the Group and under development during the
Reporting Period as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development and investments (Continued)
Shanghai Bao Hua International Plaza

Bao Hua Property Development (Shanghai) Company Limited (fRZE
FEHERMEE (L8) BRATR]) (formerly known as Shanghai Baohua
Wanlong Real Estates Company Limited (E/BREEEEXER
‘A7/])), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
successfully bid for the land use rights of the land in Minhang
District, Shanghai, the PRC through the auction held by Shanghai
Minhang District Planning and Land Administration Bureau (/&
MBEITTEAREIM LM EIRD) offered for sale by way of tender at a
bidding price of RMB2,305 million. The land is under development
and will offer commercial and office complex named Shanghai Bao
Hua International Plaza (/8 {RERIRE) with total gross floor
area ("GFA") of approximately 185,000 square metres.

Dalian Projects

On 30 March 2017, we acquired two property projects, namely Bao
Hua Financial Centre ((RE& @ 1) and Bao Hua Wang Yuan (fR
M 48), from a company controlled by Mr. Meng, the chairman, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company at
a total Consideration of RMB1,920 million. Both Bao Hua Financial
Centre (IRESRF L) and Bao Hua Wang Yuan (fRER J8) are
located in Dalian City, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In particular,
Bao Hua Financial Centre (fRE£ R L)) comprises a parcel of
land with a site area of approximately 10,857.10 sg.m. situated at
Xinghai Bay business area, Dalian. It is under development into a
commercial and Grade A office development complex with total
GFA of approximately 146,000 square meters to be erected thereon.
The development will be developed into a 51-storey commercial
and office complex with a 2-storey basement for car parking and
ancillary uses.

Property for sale — Gaoyou

In May 2017, Yangzhou Baohua Jianfeng Real Estate Co., Ltd., an
indirectly 80% owned subsidiary of the Company, successfully bid
for the land use rights of two pieces of land in Gaoyou District,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC at a bidding price of RMB739.7 million.
The two pieces of land are under development into a commercial
and residential project named Gaoyou Bao Hua — Jun Ting (&
H{RIE oF Z) with two phases and has a total sellable GFA of
approximately 365,000 square meters. The first phase has offered
for pre-sale since February 2018. At 31 December 2018, a total of
approximately 49,000 square meters were sold for proceeds of
approximately RMB414.3 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development and investments (Continued)
Property for sale - Wuxi Project

On 6 July 2018, the Group completed the acquisitions of (i) the
entire equity interests in Baohua Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (fREEHD
= (f&$5) BR A 7)) (formerly known as Wuxi Huiling Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (BB EEEZFRAF) (“Wuxi Huiling”); (i) the entire equity
interests in Wuxi Huiyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BIF T BEEXER
AR ("Wuxi Huiyuan”); and (iii) 55% equity interests in Wuxi Huize
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BIFFEZEEHFR A F]) (“"Wuxi Huize"”) for a
total consideration of RMB1,311.29 million, RMB291.95 million and
RMB280.50 million respectively (collectively “Wuxi Project”). The
Group further acquired 15% equity interests in and debt of Wuxi
Huize in November 2018 at aggregate consideration of RMB76.5
million. Wuxi Project comprises:

(i)  acompleted building known as Wuai Renjia (A& AR) located
at Liangxi District, Wuxi City in the PRC with a 13-storey
complex building for residential, office and retail purposes
with total saleable/lettable area of approximately 20,000
square meters.

(i) A residential development located at Jiangyin District,
Wauxi City in the PRC with parcel of land with a site area of
approximately 109,000 square metres, and various residential
and ancillary facilities which have been developed (Phases 1 to
3) and Phase 4 is currently under construction and scheduled
to be completed in 2019.

(iii) A parcel of land located at Binhu District, Wuxi City in the
PRC with site area of approximately 163,000 square meters for
residential development.

Solar photovoltaic

In recent years, solar photovoltaic industry in China has been
gradually transformed from a typical world processing base
into a global solar photovoltaic development and innovation
manufacturing base. The photovoltaic technology and quality are
expected to be continuously improving.

After the implementation of the Renewable Energy Law (A] 34
§2JR)%), the government in the PRC has formulated a series of
polices and measures to promote the development of the solar
photovoltaic industry. With European Union’s lifting of antidumping
and anti-subsidy restrictions on China’s photovoltaics products and
the gradual development of overseas emerging markets countries
along the Belt and Road, the global photovoltaic demands is
expected to be promising.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W R

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Solar photovoltaic (Continued)

To seize the opportunity, the Group's Solar Photovoltaic operations
are principally engaged in business including manufacturing,
processing and sales of monocrystalline silicon, polycrystalline
silicon, silicon wafers, solar cells, and solar modules. Our operations
are located in Jiangsu Province.

Finance services

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Finance Lease

This segment consists of the leasing of land, property, plant
and equipment, and other tangible assets. The operations of
this segment is mainly located in the PRC where the Group
seeks stable revenue with controllable risk.

Provision of Finance

The Group provides finance to prospective customers
who would provide securities for the performance of their
respective obligations to repay the Group. The Group will
take a prudence approach to develop this business segment,
diversify the customer portfolio and seek opportunity to
cooperate with its business partners.

Securities Investments

The Group invests in Hong Kong and overseas securities.
We mainly utilise the extensive investment experience of the
management to make medium and short-term investments by
searching for stable revenue with controllable risk, diversifying
the corporate operating risk and improving asset liquidity of
the Group.

Securities brokerage and assets management

The Group has a licensed corporation which is licensed to
carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571)
of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). We commenced the
securities brokerage business under the name of “United
Securities Limited” in February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our Group's revenue for the nine months ended 31 December 2018
was approximately RMB2,649.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB1,272.1 million, or 32.4%, compared to revenue
of approximately RMB3,921.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. For the nine months ended 31 December 2018, our Group's
major business segments, namely (1) Printing reported a revenue
of approximately RMB551.5 million (for the year ended 31 March
2018: approximately RMB658.1 million); (2) Trading and logistics
reported a revenue of approximately RMB1,910.5 million (for the
year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB2,367.2 million); (3)
Solar Photovoltaic recorded a revenue of approximately RMB69.9
million (for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB760.2
million); (4) Property Development and investments reported a
revenue of approximately RMB104.9 million (for the year ended
31 March 2018: approximately RMB53.0 million); and (5) Financial
services recorded a revenue of approximately RMB12.7 million (for
the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB47.3 million).

As a group with diversified businesses, we look for opportunity of
sustainable growth. The overall decrease in revenue was primarily
due to decrease in revenue of Solar Photovoltaic business. During
the Reporting Period, our Solar Photovoltaic business experienced
setting up of new production facilities for manufacturing of solar
modules in Jurong, Jiangsu. It took several months for pre-
commercial production testing and has contributed revenue since
November 2018. In addition, during the Reporting Period, we have
changed the business model from sales of products to provision of
processing services to customers, leading to the decrease in gross
revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit was approximately RMB83.9 million for the Reporting
Period (for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB339.8
million), with gross profit margin of approximately 3.2% (for the year
ended 31 March 2018: approximately 8.7%). The mix of business
segments that the Group operates affects its results of operations
such as its gross profit margins since different segments have
different profitability. While our printing business maintained a
stable gross margin, the decrease in gross profit was mainly due
to the change of revenue mix with higher contribution of trading
revenue which earning a lower gross profit margin compared to
financial services earning a higher profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Selling and distribution expenses

For the Reporting Period, selling and distribution expenses
decreased by approximately RMB24.5 million or 20.8% to
approximately RMB93.2 million, or 3.5% of revenue for the
Reporting Period, from approximately RMB117.7 million, or 3.0%
of revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018. The increase in
percentage of revenue from 3% to 3.5% was primarily due to the
increase in revenue contribution from distribution of petrochemical
products which incurred an increase in transportation costs in
operations.

Administrative expenses

For the Reporting Period, administrative expenses remains stable at
approximately RMB333.6 million (for the year ended 31 March 2018:
RMB323.6 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB444.3
million (for the year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB163.7
million). The increase was primarily due to increase in interest
expense on convertible bonds, interest on significant financing
component arising from pre-sales of properties, and imputed
interest arising on obligations under financing arrangements
compared to last year.

Change in fair value of investment properties

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gains on changes
in fair value of investment properties of RMB192 million compared
to a loss of RMB96.9 million in last year as a result of the increase
in fair value of investment properties held by the Group as at 31
December 2018.

Reversal of financial guarantee contracts provision

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a reversal
of financial guarantee contracts provision of RMB261.7 million,
compared to a recognition of financial guarantee contracts
provision of RMB484.1 million in last year. For details, please refer to
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in fair value of convertible bonds — derivative
component

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gain in fair
value of convertible bonds — derivative component of RMB118.4
million, compared to a loss of RMB74.5 million, due to the decrease
in fair value of derivative component of convertible bonds as at 31
December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Impairment loss in respect of property, plant and equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment of RMB68.7 million due to closure
of a manufacturing plant of solar segment. For details, please refer
to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Loss for the period/year

As a combined effect of the above, during the Reporting Period, our
Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of the Company
of approximately RMB388.9 million, as compared to a loss of
approximately RMB931.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
Shareholders’ funds

Total shareholders’ funds amounted to approximately RMB2,630.7
million as at 31 December 2018, as compared to approximately
RMB2,681.5 million at 31 March 2018, representing a decrease of
1.9%.

Financial position

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB8,057.7 million (31 March 2018: approximately
RMB4,985.6 million) comprising cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB701.9 million (31 March 2018: approximately
RMB255.1 million), and current liabilities of approximately
RMB®?,715.2 million (31 March 2018: approximately RMB5,768.2
million). The Group's current ratio (defined as current assets divided
by current liabilities) was 0.8 (31 March 2018: 0.9).

Our gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of interest-bearing
liabilities to total assets, was at 33.8% as at 31 December 2018 as
compared to 48.4% as at 31 March 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2018, our Group had cash and cash equivalents

of approximately RMB701.9 million (31 March 2018: approximately
RMB255.1 million), most of which were denominated in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure (Continued)
Borrowings

Our Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
borrowings of approximately RMB4,797.3 million (31 March
2018: approximately RMB4,594.1 million). Of these borrowings,
approximately RMB3,818.7 million (31 March 2018: approximately
RMB4,228.4 million) were secured by the Group's assets. Most of the
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi.

Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure mainly represents additions to
investment properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payment totaling of approximately RMB647.4 million (for the
year ended 31 March 2018: approximately RMB1,127.5 million).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, property held for sale,
investment properties, and pledged bank deposits with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB452.2 million, RMB225.0 million,
RMB2,056.7 million, RMB5,695.8 million and RMB285.6 million,
respectively, were pledged to secure certain banking and credit
facilities of the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on bank balances
and cash, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
Directors ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates and
entering into plain vanilla foreign exchange forward contracts where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except as disclosed in note 58 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises environmental protection is of vital important
to the long-term development of the Group. In order to minimise
the environmental impact, the Group will continue to review and
improve the effectiveness of its management practices from time to
time.

An separate report “"Environmental, Social, and Governance

Report” will be published by the end of July 2019. For details,
please refer to the Company's website.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Z/Z & %), aged 46, joined our Company
and has been appointed as an Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board of the Company in September 2014. He holds a
bachelor's degree in law from W E/E T KE (Harbin Institute
of Technology) in the PRC. Mr. Meng has been a senior partner
of BEEFRMEMF (Liaoning Huajun Law Firm) since 1998.
Mr. Meng had been honoured by %% &)JAF2 (Liaoning Provincial
Department of Justice) as 3CAA72AD (Civilised Lawyer) in 2003.

Ms. Zhang Ye (REEZ £ ), aged 43, has been appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 20 December
2017. She holds a master’s degree of finance from Peking University
and an MBA degree from the Wharton School at the University of
Pennsylvania. Ms. Zhang has extensive financial and investment
experience and has been working in both financial and investment fields
for over a decade. Ms. Zhang has worked at Matlin Patterson Global
Opportunities Fund, Bank of China Group Investment Limited and China
Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited. She is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Guo Song (28#85£%), aged 63, joined our Company and has
been appointed as an Executive Director and the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer in September 2014. He holds a bachelor’'s degree
in engineering from J&[5EE KRS (Shenyang Jianzhu University
and formerly known as EEFETIZEMR (Liaoning School of
Architectural Engineering)) in the PRC. Mr. Guo has over 10 years
of extensive management experience in banking and securities
investment. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. He Shufen ( fil #f 3% 5% %), aged 56, has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 20 December 2017.
He holds a master’s degree in civil engineering and a bachelor’s
degree in marine engineering from K2 T K& (Dalian Technical
University*) in the PRC. He also holds the professional qualification
as certified senior engineer, architect, appraiser, cost engineer
and supervision engineer. He had over 30 years of management
experiences in the property development industry. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. He was the deputy general manager of X &
REE H E B % B R 2 7] (Dalian Baohua Property Development
Limited*), the general manager of # ) & F 5= #b &= F = A R A A
(Zhuang He Qian He Property Development Limited*), the general
manager of KA &% (HMR )2 F] (Changsha Real Estate Limited*)
under 18 X #b &= & B & R A @ (Evergrande Real Estate Group
Limited*), the general manager of IL/8RKEFEEMR B R AR (Bei
Hai Tian Long Property Development Limited?*), the deputy general
manager of each of P (£ E)ZYIER A A (Citic South China
(Group) Shenzhen Limited*) and F{52E/ (£ &) EMNAR A7 (Citic
South China (Group) Guangzhou Limited*) and the manager of &
REERTEABMRAF (Guangdong Foundation Engineering Group
Co., Limited*), respectively. He is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

Mr. Zeng Hongbo (ZAL % 5£4), aged 41, has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer of the Company on 1 July
2018, he holds a Master’s degree in civil and commercial law from
BIBUE K2 (China University of Political Science & Law) in the PRC.
Mr. Zeng is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Zeng worked in Bank of China Investment Limited
for the period from March 2011 to December 2014, holding his last
position as a senior manager of the assets management division. He
joined our Company in December 2014.He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Bailin (B#8# £ 4), aged 73, joined our Company in
September 2014 and has been appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr. Zheng is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree in Spanish. Mr. Zheng was employed by Citicorp
International Limited from 2007 to 2008, with his last position as a
senior adviser of Greater China of China marketing department. Mr.
Zheng worked in Bank of China and was the head of its Shanghai
branch, general manager of Hong Kong Kwangtung Provincial Bank,
managing director of Bank of China, London Branch and general
manager of Bank of China, New York Branch. Mr. Zheng has been
honoured by the Department of State, State of New York, as one
of the recipients of the “Outstanding 50 Chinese Americans in
Business Award” in 2001.

Mr. Shen Ruolei ((LE&E 5 %), aged 73, joined our Company in
September 2014 and has been appointed as our Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. Shen is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He holds a bachelor’s degree from # R EIAC K E (Central
University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as A1 R EF L&
BLEBT (Central Finance and Economics College)). Mr. Shen is also an
independent non-executive director of China Trustful Group Limited
(stock code: 8265). Mr. Shen currently serves as a chief executive
officer of an enterprise established in the PRC which involves in
managing investments. Mr. Shen has extensive experience in the
banking industry. He was the head of Shanghai branch of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China from June 1992 to June 1997. He
was a director of Shanghai Commercial Bank and Bank of Shanghai
from March 1999 to May 2012 and from April 2005 to April 2013
respectively. Mr. Shen was also the general manager and chairman
of the board of directors of Shanghai United International Investment
Ltd. from September 1998 to February 2012.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

Mr. Pun Chi Ping (&&-F5%4%), aged 52, joined our Company
in October 2010 and has been appointed as our Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr. Pun is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pun is also an
independent non-executive director of Birmingham Sports Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) and EPI (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
689) respectively. He holds a Master’s degree of Science in Finance
and a Bachelor degree of Arts in Accountancy, both from the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Pun is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Pun has extensive experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. Mr. Pun currently acts as the financial controller of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (stock code: 119).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Ka Lung (FEXBFE£4), aged 40, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. He graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) Accounting degree. Mr.
Tam is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has extensive experience in auditing,
financial management, corporate finance and IPO. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Tam has worked in KPMG Hong Kong for more
than 10 years and his last position before leaving was audit senior
manager. He joined the Company in November 2014.He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the
confidence of the Shareholders. The Company is committed to
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance. The Board will
review the corporate governance practices of the Group from time
to time to ensure that they reflect the latest development and meet
the expectations of the Shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for the
Reporting Period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for establishing strategic directions,
setting objectives and business plans and monitoring business
performance. The management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of their respective individual business
units.

The Board has established a schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decisions and those reserved for the
management. The Board reviews this schedule from time to time to
ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely
Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman), Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive
Officer), Mr. He Shufen, Mr. Guo Song (Deputy Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Zeng Hongbo and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Bailin, Mr. Shen Ruolei and
Mr. Pun Chi Ping. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company are separate and exercised by
different individual, namely, Mr. Meng Guang Bao and Ms.
Zhang Ye. The list of Directors and their respective role and
function are currently available on the Group’s website at
http://www.huajunintigroup.com and on HKEx's website at
http://www.hkex.com.hk.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each
of Mr. Zheng Bailin and Mr. Shen Ruolei is appointed for a specific
term of two years and Mr. Pun Chi Ping is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The appointment is subject to re-election and shall
be automatically renewed for successive terms of one year or two
years unless terminated by either party in writing prior to the expiry
of the term.

The broad spectrum of background of the independent
non-executive Directors is valuable on the diversified perspectives
in the Board. They come from diverse business and professional
backgrounds. They have experiences in general management to
professional knowledge, from PRC business to global enterprise. All
of them have proven experiences in forming corporate strategies,
risk management and corporate governance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence and is satisfied that each of them continues to be
independent in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction to each newly appointed Director on his/her first
appointment in order to enable him/her to have appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The Company
has provided timely technical updates, including the briefing on the
amendments on the Listing Rules and the news release published
by the Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing
and professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely, Mr. Meng
Guang Bao, Ms. Zhang Ye, Mr. Guo Song, Mr. He Shufen, Mr.
Zeng Hongbo, Mr. Zheng Bailin, Mr. Shen Ruolei, and Mr. Pun Chi
Ping proactively participated in continuous professional training
including the professional training provided by the Company and
developed and updated their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remained comprehensively informed
and relevant. The Company has received confirmation from all
Directors of their respective training records for the nine months
ended 31 December 2018.

The Board meets no less than four times a year to review, inter alia,
the financial and operational performance of the Group. Additional
Board meetings are held when necessary. Due notice and Board
papers are given to all Directors prior to the meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Board has established
a procedure to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expenses. Appropriate insurance policy and cover
for Directors have been arranged as well.

There were twenty-six Board meetings, two special general
meetings and one annual general meeting held in the Reporting
Period. All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly
documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) =)
The attendance of each director of Board meetings and general KEZEREZeexMEREAS ZHFEXHET
meetings during the Reporting Period is set out below: (AN

Attendance of Attendance of
Directors Board meetings general meetings

HEESg HERRAS

= BRXH R
Executive Directors:
HITEFE -
Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman) 23/26 1/3
REBLE(FE)
Ms. Zhang Ye 26/26 3/3
ofk B 22+
Mr. He Shufen 25/26 1/3
Al 25 5 &
Mr. Guo Song 26/26 1/3
PBEFTE
Mr. Zeng Hongbo (Note 1) 14/15 1/3
SLDR & (KTaET)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYIIFHITES -
Mr. Zheng Bailin 24/26 1/3
B
Mr. Shen Ruolei 25/26 1/3
LB ETE
Mr. Pun Chi Ping 25/26 1/3
ERTEE
Note: Hiat -
1. Appointed on 1 July 2018. 1. RZB-N\FLtA—RBZEE-
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2005 pursuant to the
recommendations of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Remuneration Committee includes assisting the Board to oversee
the establishment and operation of formal and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company and recommend to the
Board the remuneration packages of Directors, including individual
executive Directors, and senior management of the Company.
The Remuneration Committee’s authority and duties are set out
in written terms of reference, which have been revised by the
Board on 21 December 2018 that are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX").

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee consists of 4 members,
namely Mr. Zheng Bailin, who is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Shen Ruolei, Ms. Zhang Ye and Mr. Pun Chi Ping.
The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company aims to design a remuneration policy that attracts
and retains executives needed to run the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
of the Group while at the same time taking into account the
performance of the individuals. The remuneration should reflect,
inter alia, the performance and responsibilities of the individuals;
and the remuneration packages are structured to include salary,
bonus and other benefits to provide incentives to directors and
senior management of the Group and to improve their individual
performance.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

FMEEE(E)

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration of individual Directors
is disclosed by name in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, while the remuneration of senior management is

KR - EAEE MR REBNGAN
BREWEISFRE - AEATEE2HEKE
ERBENT :

disclosed by bands as follows:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2018 2018

Bz H=E

—E-N\EF —E—N\F

+=A=+—8B =A=+—H

LEAEA IFFE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = 1
1 2

RBEMEETT

—REFH  FME

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Reporting 8
&

Period and the work carried out by the Remuneration Committee
included the following:

- reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group; and

- reviewed the specific remuneration packages of the Directors’
including executive Directors and senior management of the
Group for the Reporting Period.

All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly

documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.

24

ZE®
EITZTEREAT

- BEARBZHFMBEK R
- BRIAKEER(BEHTER)RSRE
2R RS B 2 BRI S o

A La@E
ERE BT -

TZ—U%H  ERBEREER

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during the Reporting Period
is set out below:

Remuneration Committee Members

FHESENE

HFWz=Eg(#E)
FMEERSRENRENM I HMESR
iz HERBBRIIT

Attendance

H R

Mr. Zheng Bailin (Chairman)
BRI A (/)

Ms. Zhang Ye

ok B 2+

Mr. Shen Ruolei

S A

Mr. Pun Chi Ping
BT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in 2012, pursuant to the
recommendations of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Nomination Committee includes making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of directors,
structure, size and composition of the Board and to maintain a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives on the
Board which are appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consists of 4 members, namely Mr. Shen
Ruolei, who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee, Ms.
Zhang Ye, Mr. Pun Chi Ping and Mr. Zheng Bailin. The majority
of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with the primary objective of enhancing the effectiveness
of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of Board members, which is an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated the authority to review and assess the diversity of the
Board and its skills and experience by considering a number
of factors including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional experience.
When identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates for
recommendation to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy whereby selection
of candidates will be based on merit against objective criteria
and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee reviews and monitors the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and makes recommendation to the
Board as appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee met once during the Reporting Period.
At the meeting, all members of the Nomination Committee were
present and performed the work including the following:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- identifying individuals qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- recognising the importance of having a broad complement of
skills, experience and professional knowledge on the Board;
and

- reviewing Board Diversity Policy and the measurable
objectives for nomination policy and the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee formed the view that the Board has
maintained an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the business requirements of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

All business transacted at the above meeting has been duly
documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee
Meeting during the Reporting Period is set out below:
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Nomination Committee Members Attendance
REZBEHE HERE
Mr. Shen Ruolei (Chairman) 1/1
LEBRE(ERE)

Ms. Zhang Ye 1/1
o B 27+

Mr. Pun Chi Ping 11
/ /l:l zF;Ei

Mr. Zheng Bailin 1/1
BRI A
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 2004 pursuant to the recommendations of the CG
Code. The primary duty of the Audit Committee includes assisting
the Board to monitor integrity of financial statements, oversee the
relationship between the Company and its external auditors, ensure
effective risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are in place and good corporate governance standards and
practices are maintained within the Group. The Audit Committee’s
authority and duties are set out in written terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 21 December 2018 and are
available on the websites of the Company and HKEX.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Audit Committee comprises 3 independent non-executive Directors
and reports directly to the Board. The Audit Committee meets
regularly with the Group’s senior management and the Company’s
external auditor to review the financial reporting and internal
control systems of the Group as well as the financial statements of
the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the Reporting Period
and the work carried out by the Audit Committee included the
following:

- reviewing the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group;

- reviewing the unaudited interim financial report of the Group;

- reviewing and discussing with the Company’s external auditor
in respect of the audit plan for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group;

- reviewing and discussing with the senior management of
the Group and the external auditor of the Company major
accounting, audit, risk management and internal control
issues;

- reviewing and discussing with the senior management of the
Group the corporate governance practices and compliance
issues of the Group;

- reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external
auditor of the Company;

- monitoring the non-audit services undertaken by the
Company's external auditor or their affiliates;

- reviewing and approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor of the Company; and

- performing corporate governance duty delegated by the
Board.

All business transacted at the above meetings has been duly

documented and is maintained in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meeting during the Reporting Period is set out
below:

EREES(E)

ERLZEESKENRNERZECER IR RAE
HHT

Audit Committee Members Attendance
EREEEHE R E
Mr. Pun Chi Ping (Chairman) 2/2
ERAFRE(ERE)

Mr. Zheng Bailin 1/2
BRI

Mr. Shen Ruolei 2/2
BB A

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer, chief
executive officer and other senior management of the Group from
time to time for the purposes of reviewing the interim and annual
results, the interim and annual reports, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group. It considers
and discusses the reports and presentations with the management,
the Group's internal and external auditors, with a view to ensuring
that the Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. It also
meets with the Group's principal external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, to consider their report on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of audit of the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings
with the external auditor, separately without the presence of the
management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has the overall responsibility for the corporate
governance of the Group and reviews its effectiveness, and adopts
all necessary and appropriate actions, to maintain sufficient and
effective corporate governance policy and functions from time to
time. The Audit Committee assists the Board in the review of the
corporate governance policy and functions to ensure the upheld of
good corporate governance which are of the best interests of the
Shareholders and the Group.

The Audit Committee has, during the Reporting Period, made
arrangements to review the Group's the policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board,
to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Group on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review
the compliance by the Group with the CG Code and the disclosure
requirements for the Corporate Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility for the reviewing risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and examining its
effectiveness, and to adopt all necessary and appropriate actions,
to maintain sufficient and effective risk management and internal
control systems from time to time. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in the review at least annually, which covers operational,
financial and compliance controls and risk management functions,
in order to maintain an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Directors have made arrangements to review the Group's
risk management and internal control systems as well as the
adequacy of resource, qualification and experience of the staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function for
the Reporting Period. The purpose of the review was to provide
a reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
the Group's operations in achieving the established corporate
objectives, to safeguard the Group's assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records of the Group for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication, and to ensure the
Group's compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are effective in material respect but
have areas for improvement to enhance the implementation of
internal control procedures.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, charged the Group RMB5.94 million for audit
services and RMBO0.27 million for non-audit services to provide
training sessions in relation to financial resources rules and new
accounting standards. Other auditors of the Company's subsidiaries
charged RMBO0.43 million for audit services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Ka Lung, the company secretary of the Company (the
"Company Secretary”), is employed on a full time basis and has
taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the Reporting Period. Our Company Secretary coordinates
and supplies of information to the Directors. Our Company
Secretary ensures that board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are complied with for all board meetings.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period,
which have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 49 to 59 of this
Annual Report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of communications with Shareholders is to ensure
that the Shareholders, both individual and institutional, and,
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community at
large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile), in order
to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. In this
respect, a written shareholders communication policy has been
established and is currently available on the Group's website at
http://www.huajunintlgroup.com.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
Shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company’s website offers
a communication channel between the Company and the
Shareholders, and is frequently updated with key information of the
Group.

At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 30 August 2018,
separate resolutions were proposed by the Chairman in respect of
each separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Company regularly informs the Shareholders of the procedure
for voting by poll and ensures compliance with the requirements
about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the
constitutional documents of the Company. A consolidated
version of the Company’s Memorandum of Association and
Bye-laws is currently available on the Group’s website at
http://www.huajunintlgroup.com and on HKEx's website at
http://www.hkex.com.hk. There is no significant change in the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws during the
Reporting Period.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening of Special General Meeting
("SGM") on requisition of Shareholders

M

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in the
Company’s bye-laws shall, on the requisition of Shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to
convene a special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at, 36th Floor, Champion Tower, 3 Garden
Road, Central, Hong Kong. Such requisition may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolutions in the agenda for the SGM. And such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of
the enquirers and submitted to the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business at 36th Floor, Champion
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

B \FH

B R

BRRERBMABRRFGH RS ([ RRER K
BZER

M

BEARRRA A EERRE - ARRE
EANRBBRIREBRMZEBRN R EE
REHBARARBEZAMEARRR
RREREZENBEHBRAT IRt D2 —
- LAEFEABRAARR R ZBERRE R
Rg -

ZBERAITERER BN WAHE
RABRBRERERRB 2 TBEEME
Wit REFEEFRIEEEIRTEE AE36
B ZXEQRNWE - RERABEZNF
BRAZX  EXHH—UKA LR
RAFEE o

2
BERER RESHEBRRAZERA/RE
BER REAMEREREFEERRE
FARENHBEANNABBERAE - FHEE
BB EREBRBREMEAANRT

ARABBERARE 2B B ERER
i

MEFRERZBERZXEZAH_+—H
AEAAREZE - BRA > IRKRERA
BREREB —FAEZEMERA T
BITARER  EMEBRZERNERNE
bt B EEET =8 A fEimig 81T o

BUHRBRAGH ISR  ARAUEMN
HEFARCZASERZAETAERM -

MEESEHZEF

BRAERANEESTNEREAAZBEERZX
EARARRZETBEEWE - WA AFEPRIEE
BIRVEERNE3IE  ERXAAWE o

31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of Shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) circulate to Shareholders of the Company entitled to have
notice of any general meeting send to them any statement of
not more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in case of
any other requisitions.

CONCLUSION

The Board believes that the quality and standard of corporate
governance reflects the quality of the management and the
operations of the Group's business. Good corporate governance
can safeguard the proper use of the Group’s assets and effective
allocation of the Group's resources as well as protecting the
interests of the Shareholders. The management is committed to
advocating good practice in corporate governance and will strive to
maintain, strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
corporate governance of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
Huajun International Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer to as the “Group”) for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has five core business, they
are Printing, Trading and Logistics, Property Development and
Investments, Solar Photovoltaic and Financial Services.

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period,
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business are set out under the section headed "Management
discussion and analysis” in this annual report.

The analysis of the geographical segments of the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year is set out in note 7 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit/loss of the Group for the Reporting Period and the state
of the Group's and the Company'’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 65 and 288
respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Reporting Period (year ended 31 March 2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, the objective of
which is to allow shareholders of the Company to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain
the Group's future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and
amount of dividend paid by the Company must be in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations and subject to the bye-laws of the
Company. In deciding whether to declare any dividend, the Board
will take into account a number of factors, including the financial
results, the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, and the current and future development plans of the
Company. The Board will review the dividend policy of the Company
as appropriate from time to time.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB276,000.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 292 to 293.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the
Reporting Period is as follows:
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Sales HE
Five largest customers in aggregate TREF#HM 15.9%
The largest customer BRAEF 4.3%
Purchases REE
Five largest suppliers in aggregate T RHER AN 35.5%
The largest supplier BRAHER 12.2%
At no time during the Reporting Period have the Directors, their  RIREHBEAER  ARFEE - FEHBHE

associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interests as defined in the Listing Rules in these major
customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

34

ABAERBR (BEF PTG AR R A5% A
DU EHEAUFEZEFMEEENEMEE
(EER LEWRA) -

ME - BMERRE

ME - BENMERERRESHENESHIINGE
B RSRRMIFES o
REWE

REMERRS RN E BTN RE M RE
BEE17 ©

EEIN

ARABRRANE B F BT R ERE A REM T
44 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66
and note 57 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 was Nil (31 March 2018:
RMB240,931,000).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2018 are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Meng Guang Bao (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Ye

Mr. Guo Song

Mr. He Shufen

Mr. Zeng Hongbo (appointed on 1 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Bailin
Mr. Shen Ruolei
Mr. Pun Chi Ping

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Meng Guang Bao, Mr. He Shufen and Mr. Zheng Bailin will retire
by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Mr. Meng Guang Bao and Mr. Zheng Bailin are being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Mr. He Shufen will retire as a Director
of the Company upon expiration of this term of office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
28 June 2019.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration of the Company are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as "“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements. No
transaction disclosed thereto constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction of the Company which is subject
to, among other things, reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates was interested in any business apart from the business of
the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Although certain associates of Mr. Meng are engaged in property
development and property management, which is one of the
principal businesses of the Group, the said associates of Mr. Meng
carries out their business in considerable distance, i.e. over 100
kilometers, from the location where the property developments
of the Group are situated at. Accordingly, there is no competition
rendered in between the business of the Group and the business
engaged by Mr. Meng's associates. Therefore, the Board is of the
view that Mr. Meng and his associates were not interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transaction of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out below:

Yingkou Yi Hua

On 17 May 2018, New Island Printing (Liaoning) Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the equity transfer agreement with Huajun Enterprise (Yingkou)
Company Limited pursuant to the acquisition of the entire equity
interests of Yingkou Yi Hua Green Packaging Printing Company
Limited (2R @ FEAEBKHFKAMRAR]) at RMB30,000,000. As
Huajun Enterprise (Yingkou) Company Limited was wholly owned
by Mr. Meng, who is a director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and his spouse, it was an associate of Mr. Meng and
a connected person of the Company. The transaction has been
completed on 9 November 2018. For further details, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 9 November 2018 and 17 May
2018 respectively.

Huai'an Project

On 21 September 2018, Baohua Properties (China) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
agreement with the Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (FI R 2
EE¥HPR AT to acquire, the entire equity interest and the debt
in Baohua Properties (Huai' an) Limited* ((REMECELR ) GRAR))
at the consideration of RMB180.0 million, subject to adjustment.
As Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. was wholly owned by Mr.
Meng, who is a director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company, it was an associate of Mr. Meng and a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction has not
yet completed as at the date of this annual report. The completion
of acquisition is subject to the fulfillment of the conditions on or
before 30 June 2019 and the consideration is expected to be settled
by issue of convertible bonds of the Company. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2019
and the Company'’s circular dated 25 January 2019.

Issue of Convertible Bonds to CHG

On 26 October 2018, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement with China Huajun Group Limited
("CHG"), the substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to issue and CHG
agreed to subscribe the convertible bond in the principal amount
of HK$1,000,000,000. As CHG is the substantial shareholder of
the Company and is ultimately wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Meng, who is a director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, CHG is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The subscription has not yet completed as at the
date of this annual report. For further details, please refer to the
Company'’s circular dated 31 January 2019 and the announcements
dated 8 May 2019, 22 February 2019 and 29 March 2019.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Dalian Hydraulic Project

On 6 December 2018, Huajun Industrial Park Management (China)
Limited EZEEZREE(FE)ARAF), an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with

Yo
0 =

Liaoning Huajun Equipment Manufacturing Co., Limited (& % %
EREEIEAFRAF]) and Mr. Cong Liming to purchase the entire
equity interest in Dalian Hydraulic Machinery Co., Limited* (KR
JIHEW B PR A 7)) at the consideration of RMB36,000,000, of which
RMB8,110,800 shall be settled by issue of 873,875 consideration
shares of the Company. As Liaoning Huajun Equipment
Manufacturing Co., Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Meng, who is a
director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, and his
spouse, it was an associate of Mr. Meng and a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The acquisition has not yet
completed as at the date of this annual report and the acquisition
is subject to the independent shareholders’ approval. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 8
March 2019, 7 December 2018 and 6 December 2018.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” above and the note 54 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance has been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries, at any
time during the Reporting Period. No contract of significance for
the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
by the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their
subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

Interests of Directors and chief executive

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares
or underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO") which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the "Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF Y
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests of Directors and chief executive (Continued)

EERTIBTRABZER(E)

Interests in the Shares Rz =
Approximate
percentage of
interests in the
issued share
Number of capital of
Director Nature of interests Shares the Company
NN
ERITRAER
=3 ERME RO E ZBABE DL
Mr. Meng Guang Bao Interest in controlled corporation®ete ’and2 75,918,568 (L) 125.14%
BEERAE FIT 128 25 (B8] ) e s (1037 22)
Beneficial owner 769,640 (L) 1.27%
EmEEA
Share OptionsMoted 387,351 (L) 0.64%
R G A (M)
Ms. Zhang Ye Share optionsMete4 274,050 (L) 0.45%
o B 20+ 8 e e ()
Mr. He Shufen Beneficial owner 21,320 (L) 0.04%
IS 55 20 Em#EA A
Mr. Guo Song Beneficial owner 30,000 (L) 0.05%
SRME S E EmHEA A
Share optionsMete 3 274,050 (L) 0.45%
B g A Hiizs)
Mr. Zeng Hongbo Beneficial owner 3,560 0.01%
BALR B4 EmEBA
Share optionsMete4 274,050 0.45%
B G 4 (M)
Mr. Zheng Bailin Share optionsMete®) 38,735 (L) 0.06%
ERFE MRS A& [l i (o)
Mr. Shen Ruolei Share optionsMet ¢ 38,735 (L) 0.06%
HEE gL o B )
Mr. Pun Chi Ping Share optionsMete ¢ 38,735 (L) 0.06%
A AE i A (1ize)
The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares. [LIRKRAIRGDZHFR -
ZE-N\FR 39



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF

THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests of Directors and chief executive (Continued)

Interests in the Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Long positions in 70,518,568 Shares are held by CHG. CHG was wholly
owned by Huajun Group Limited ((EE&BEHMRAA]), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which was beneficially
owned as to 100% by Mr. Meng. Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested
in all Shares held by CHG by virtue of SFO. Amongst 75,918,568 shares,
26,315,789 shares involve issue of convertible bond, to CHG under specific
mandate which had been approved by independent shareholders on
special general meeting held on 22 February 2019 but the convertible
bonds have not yet been issued at the date of this report. For further
details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 26 October 2018, 31 January 2019 and 22 February 2019.

2. Long positions in 5,400,000 shares are held by Nanjing Huajun Real
Estate Co., Ltd.* (A REZBXAFMRAR]). The entire share capital of
Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. is beneficially owned by Huajun Real
Estate Company Limited* ((EE & AR A A)) which is wholly owned by
Mr. Meng. Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested in all Shares held by
Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. by virtue of SFO. 5,400,000 shares
held by Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. involves issue of convertible
bond under specific mandate which had been approved by independent
shareholders on special general meeting held on 22 February 2019 but
the convertible bonds have not yet been issued at the date of this report.
For further details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 21 September 2018, 25 January 2019 and 22 February
2019.

3. 38,735,070 share options have been granted to Mr. Meng and were
subsequently consolidated into 387,351 share options. For further details
of the said share options granted, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017, respectively.

4. 274,050 share options have been granted to each of Ms. Zhang Ye and
Mr. Zeng Hongbo prior to their appointment as Director.

5. 274,050 share options have been granted to Mr. Guo Song. For
further details of the said share options granted, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 February 2015, 30 June 2015,
7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017, respectively.

6. 3,873,500 share options have been granted to each of Mr. Zheng Bailin,
Mr. Shen Ruolei and Mr. Pun Chi Ping and were subsequently consolidated
into 38,735 share options. For further details of the said share options
granted, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June
2015, 7 February 2017 and 5 December 2017, respectively.
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EERIBTRABZER (B)

RERB 2z (&)
e

1. 770,518,568 RM 2 tF R AP RHEELBIFE -
PREEEEHEEZEEEARAR(—MRESEM
R 2 HRAGF  A&HLEEREF100%)2EH
B REBHRAEED - REERRARBEE
EEEBBZE2HRMDTHEREE - 175,918,568
RER& R /R v 26,315,789 % A% 19 34 Fe AR 5% 55 B 5% 4 2%
TARRELFTFTRPREZER  HER =T —NF
A+ ZASTHBRREN KRB R RS
M HEBATRRESNARE ABERET -
EZHE  #2HAARARBAHAE-T—/\F+A
Z+ARB 22— NWEF—A=+—B8BEK=ZF—h#F
ZAZtHZRAZAERAR -

2. 745,400,000 M 2 iF B R R EEBEXBRAF
HE BREEBEXERARZEBRIBEES
XBERARI(HALERERA)EESR - BREE
HFRHBERD  REEWEAREREEEELER
RARBAZEZMRNPHEAES - AR EEEX
BIRABIEE Z5,400,0008% B 15 34 K AR B 75 51| 1% 1
B MRES EERZZE—-hF=-A=+=H
BITHRERF R ASEB LR EIE - BB AHR
BEHFNAREABRSAET - EZHE - F25
—E-)\FENA-+—8 —E-hhE—-A-+H
AZRAERZE—AF_AZFT=-BARBK °

3. 38,735,070 BREER TR EEREEBAMHA
387,351{pfERE - A LB REEREZE S5
& BE2HALQRASS AT —tF=-_AtH
F—ZT—+F+-_BRERAZRE

4. 274,050 FEIR B IOOREE R+ R BALR A ERR T
REFANZERTRELLIRBAKRAE -

5. 274,050 B EC I FRMELEE - B LB E T
RS F2HARRBHS AT —HA
#ZA+A B - ZT-AFEAA=+H - ZZ2—+
FZRA+ARZZE—+F+ARBZAEL -

6. 3,873,500 IR EE E B R TEMMEE - XS
BRERERTRE  WEEA G H38,735M R
o BB ELMBEREBREZEZHE  F2HX
ARAHPLRAE—TE—RAFAA=Z+H - ZF—+t
FZRA+ARZZE—+F+ARBZAEL
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF

THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Interests in shares in associated corporations RAEEEBR G 2 ER
Amount of
registered Approximate
capital/ percentage
number of interest in the

shares held in

capital of the

the associated associated

Associated corporation Director corporation  Capacity corporation

REB L E AR EE

2B aLE, IR AR 25

L E E= FREROBE 56 ZBRBEDL

Huajun Group Co., Ltd.* ™3 Mr. Meng RMB3,000,000,000  Beneficial owner 100%
EEEEBR QR W mEE AEKE¥3,000,000,000t Em#EAA

7. CHG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huajun Group Limited CEES£EHR
KA.

As 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares (“Shares”), underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have such under provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section
352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

T\

A

7. TREZREAEERERRARZZENBAR -

RZE-NFE+ZR=+—H KREXHHEE
v BEARAREERTIETHRABRARA
FEAEMEBEE(EE R E S BRI EXV
BB 2 Bt ([ Bt 1) - BRAAR ) S B & B0 ()
REIORR M) IRIBEF LB GEPIEXVEEET
R8NP Z X AME AR R RE AT (B KE
REBEZEFESF KPR RIREREFRRRTE
ZEZBORR)  K(NREE 77 R AE HHIFEXV
BBSR 3521RZA B RN X IR B Pt 2 Z RS+ 3K(iii)
REETRAKMER I EHBETAESETE
HRGNRESTRAMG RN R LB -
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EEEHREE
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS BEESRBERMNETFRERE
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND THE ERRERR BHKB

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, »

E-NF+ZA=1+—8 REEFmRA

the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of AAREEHEBITHABUINZIATALTRAE

the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 and
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of

REZ B RARB RO P A RIERE S LB K
BIZEXVERSE 25350 8B 2 &3 [ 5 336 1Y AR E 2R
MARBRE 2 ERIAR - REEREEESR
MAERNEMBBERATRARRBRERRNG LRRE
ZEEERIANEE 2 10% 3 A £ RS -

share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of the Company:

Approximate
percentage
of interests

in the issued

share capital
of the
Company as at
31 December

Name of Shareholders Number of Shares  Capacity 2018
H-E—-NF
+=A=+—8
AKATEET
A=
BRERERE BHEE 51 ZEMHYBEIH
Bao Le 77,075,559 (L)  Interest held by spouse (Note (c)) 127.04%
i 4 BB R B 2 s (f1aE ()
CHG 70,518,568 (L)  Beneficial owner 116.23%
FEEREE EmlEE A
Huajun Group Limited 70,518,568 (L)  Interest of controlled corporation 116.23%
EEEBEBRAF (Note (a))
Firiz il B i e
(KtaE(a))
Nanjing Huajun Real Estate 5,400,000 (L)  Beneficial owner (Note (b)) 8.9%
Co., Ltd.* ExnlEE AN ZED)
MREEZEEXBRAA
Huajun Real Estate Company 5,400,000 (L)  Interest of controlled corporation 8.9%
Limited (Note (b))
EEEEARAA Frizs) = BR s
(KtaE®b))
Mr. Meng 75,918,568 (L)  Interest of controlled corporation 125.14%
mTE (Note (a) and (b))
Frizs) =B s
(M 7% (@) (b))
769,640 (L) Beneficial owner 1.27%
E=nEBA
387,351 (L)  Share Options 0.64%
FEA i
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) 70,518,568 Shares are held by CHG as long position. The entire issued
share capital of CHG is beneficially owned by Huajun Group Limited
(EESEHBR A7), which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Meng. Mr. Meng
was deemed to be interested in all Shares held by CHG by virtue of SFO.
Amongst 70,766,408 shares, 26,315,789 shares involve issue of convertible
bond under specific mandate and are subject to shareholders’ approval.
For further details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 26 October 2018 and 31 January 2019 respectively.

(b) Long positions in 5,400,000 shares are held by Nanjing Huajun Real Estate
Co., Ltd.. The entire share capital of Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. is
beneficially owned by Huajun Real Estate Company Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Meng. Mr. Meng was deemed to be interested in all Shares
held by Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. by virtue of SFO. 5,400,000
shares held by Nanjing Huajun Real Estate Co., Ltd. involves issue of
convertible bond under specific mandate and is subject to shareholders’
approval. For further details, please refer to the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 21 September 2018 and 25 January 2019
respectively.

(c) Madam Bao, being a spouse of Mr. Meng, was deemed to be interested in
the interest held by Mr. Meng.

The letter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at the 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company was aware of
any other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation which had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 and section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as set out in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to which
the Company or subsidiaries or controlling shareholder of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director of the Company has or had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of
the Review year or at any time during the Reporting Period.

Z-\FR

RIB o K& SR 68 F
ERRz2EmN KB (B

et

(a) 70,518,568 i A A R EIZEE L B IS 1EMF R ° HE
EEEE PO TRAREEZEEEFRAF(H
BEEEERERAESRS - BIEFSHREEE
Bl - BREWRANPHREEEEREAF 22N
REARERS © 1870,766,408 & R 1 # + 26,315,789
AR A&7 % R AR AR B R A B 1T PTIRR (B 5 R B FFRR
Rt - EZHE - BFRMARRBHH AT
—NE+A-+REBER-ZE-NFE—A=+—HBZ
ANERBEH -

(b) 35,400,000 1D 2 FAHERERELERAR
BE BREERELARAFAZZBRAHMEEE
2 ERAR(MEEEDEHE) BHES - RIED
EREEHRY . BAEREAREREEELER
ARBEZ2HBRATREGES - mEREREYE
IR AT 25,400,000 B3 35 B AR 1% I35
BTURRE S RASRELE - ESHE - B2
MAATBEANA-E—\EAA=+—AR=
T NE-A-+TEAZASRER -

© BELAREEIRE)WAARELLREZE
A A -

[LIRRBIZ5FR -

B EXFEBEEN KRB\ Ft=A=—
B AAREFREBTHA B TAEEAL
AT (AATEFREBTRA BRI LEE
IR SRR (9 o0 B 1R 0 5 R (1
XVER B2 B35 8 2 153X B 336 e AR A
ARBBEZBRHLAE -

EERRZ ZBHBEGONE
=

BriR A B ISR MTIESARTESN - REBEFEE R
BERREMERE - SBEFELARR  WERQ
A EM B QR NERBRER AN AR ARE
EREARRETAWE L EREXA[ERS
EHEEEANGENR S - RERBEARLH o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 September
2007. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to Executive
or Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group (the “Participants”) and for such other
purpose as the Board may approve from time to time. Pursuant to
a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at
a special general meeting held on 25 October 2017, the new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) has been adopted and approved.
The Scheme shall remain valid and effective until 24 October 2027.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i)  The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme, unless approved
by Shareholders and which must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total number of the relevant class of securities of
the Company in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 6,066,920
Shares.

(i) The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options (including both exercised and
outstanding options) granted pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to each of the
Participants in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of the relevant class of securities of the Company
(or its subsidiaries) in issue.

(ili) The exercise price shall be solely determined by the Board,
and shall be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the share option to the Participants,
which must be a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on
which licenced banks are open for business in Hong Kong
and the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities (the "Business Day”); (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the share option to the
Participants; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

A share option may be exercised at any time during a period
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and
notified by the Board to each grantee the period during which
an option may be exercised and in any event, such period shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which any
particular option is granted in accordance with the Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must
be held before the share option can be exercised unless
otherwise determined by the Board.

According to the Scheme, the offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, HK$100
is payable by each of the Participants to the Company on
acceptance of the share options as consideration for the grant.
The share options to which the offer relates shall be deemed
to have been granted on the date of offer of such share
options.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of share options have been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was 2,703,132
(31 March 2018: 3,638,583) representing approximately 4.46%
(31 March 2018: 6.0%) of the Company in issue at that date.

The movement of share options under the Scheme during the

BRETEI(E)

BRECESTSRABHRNBEEERE
EEBAMSERBREALTABZER
RERTTRE AR E i IR T AT
MFERT - FEHETSHEBIREZTE
PRERE A E FE A i 2 B EEH10%F -

(iv)

(v BREZFSRTEEIN  BEREBBRER
TITERT VAR A BRE 2 REHR -

RigZatdl SR20REEREEREE
BEF 28R N MR AE 2 X TR BRA
RNEIXH100 T - tER/RTHHE - &
ZETHBANERERNESERLAH
BREZEAEERT -

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—08 REZHFEER
MERETE 2 BERESE £2,703,13215 (=

—N\E=A=+—0 :3,638,5831)) ' {GA&RRA T
REBBEBETEBRENIH(ZE—N\FZA
=+—H8 :60%) °

RMEHME - ZFEBETZ2EREEH 2500

Reporting Period is presented as follows: T
At At
1 April 31 December
2018 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2018
RZZE-N\%F
R-B-N\§ +=A
mA—H [5%:4 =EiNEd BAK =+-H
Movement during the BHEZZ-N\F 3,638,583 NIL NIL 935,451 2,703,132
nine months ended +=A= + AiE & i
31 December 2018 NERZE
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, although there is no restriction against such rights under
Bermuda Law.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SHARES

During the Reporting Period, the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that each Director, Secretary
and other officers of the Company and shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties in their respective offices. The Company
has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance, which is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Reporting Period,
to cover potential legal actions against its Directors and senior
officers of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As disclosed under the section “"Connected Transaction”,
convertible bonds will be issued subject to the completion of
"lssue Convertible Bonds to CHG". The reason of entering into
the transaction is to raise fund for the intended use of proceeds
as stated under the section “Use of Proceeds in Fund Raising
Activities”.

Save as disclosed above in note 37 of the consolidated financial
statements and the section under “Share Option Scheme”, the
Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreements for
the nine months ended 31 December 2018 and no equity-linked
agreements subsisted as at 31 December 2018.
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USE OF PROCEEDS IN FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES &£&EZHEHIEHAR

The Company has conducted the following fund raising activities for

the year ended 31 December 2018:

Net proceeds
(approximately)
FrgRUERE (4)

TTNEERE

Intended use of proceeds

FreRERE RS

ARRBE_Z-\F+_A=t—LFECHE

Actual use of proceeds

FIERaRRAR

Date of announcement Fund raising activities
NERH £47E9
26 October 2018 Issue of convertible

bonds under
specific mandate

“F-N\F RERHIRE
+A=17~A RTARRES

T\

A

Approximately
HK$999,400,000

#1999,400,0007% 70

(i) HK$502,140,000 for repayment
of borrowings

(i) HK$198,240,000 for payment
payable or to be payable for
construction costs of existing
property projects of the Group

(i) HK$299,020,000 for the
Group's investment in and
acquisition of assets in the
property development and
investments and printing
sectors that are complementary
to the Company's existing
principal activities.

(i) 502,140,0008 T BIEEREE

(ii) 198,240,000 LA{EY NAEERE
VEICEWARH N ET S e
b

(iii) 299,020,000 T REASEREH
BREEREOFITE(BARRRER
TEERBART ) CREREENE

Not yet utilized as the issue
of convertible bonds
under specific mandate is
subject to Completion after
approval of Independent
Shareholders on 22
February 2019

NEABE - REBRERAR
BRTTRRESEN-Z
“NEFZAZ+-REGE
%@ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%‘&ﬁ%
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total staff of 3,164
(31 March 2018: 3,173).

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
retirement schemes and discretionary bonus and also provides in-
house training programmes and external training sponsorship.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued share capital as required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the nine
months ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who will retire as auditor of the Company upon
expiration of its term of office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 28 June 2019.

By Order of the Board
Meng Guang Bao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 May 2019
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HUAJUN INTERNATIONAL GROUP
LIMITED E#ZEREEER QA

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS HUAJUN HOLDINGS LIMITED EZE# A
R a])

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huajun
International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 60 to 291,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that as of 31 December 2018, the Group
had capital commitments of RMB2,669 million as disclosed in note
52 to the consolidated financial statements, incurred a net loss of
RMB396,111,000 for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018 and had net current liabilities of RMB1,657,542,000 as at 31
December 2018. The Group's ability to continue as a going concern
is dependent on a number of assumptions, including:

(i)  the continuous financial support from the immediate holding
company, including the issuance of convertible bonds
at an aggregate sum of HK$1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB877,193,000) to the immediate holding company, of
which RMB428,000,000 has been received by the Group at
the date of issue of this report, and the directors expect
that remaining RMB449,193,000 will be received from the
immediate holding company by 30 June 2019, and the
immediate holding company has agreed not to demand for
the repayment of the amount due to immediate holding
company amounting to RMB4,651,013,000 as at 31 December
2018 (which comprises of amount due to immediate holding
company at gross amount of RMB1,872,931,000 as disclosed
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and the
obligations under financing arrangements at gross amount of
RMB2,778,082,000 as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements) until 31 May 2021;

(i) the directors expect that bank borrowings from Yingkou
Coastal Bank of RMB1,487,620,000 will be able to be renewed
upon maturity;

(iii) the directors expected that pre-sale certificates of certain
property development projects will be obtained after meeting
the pre-sales conditions and contribute substantial cash inflow
to the Group from pre-sale of these properties in 2019; and

(iv) if necessary, the directors believe the Group has the ability
to refinance its borrowings using the Group's investment
properties as security or by realising the value of the
investment properties through sales.

However if the finance described above is not available (in particular
from immediate holding company and Yingkou Coastal Bank) or if
the Group is not able to generate the expected cash inflows from
its property development projects, the Group would be unable
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. These
events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going

BRET SR

MRETFERRERMANERAE - RAYHA
SRR BRENEITR/ERENEH - 5LF
ARERMEFTBEFAMBEEREAALAR
REETREN - AT SHELEHREHES
MER - L [FREFECENERTRER
E]|ERREENFERIN RARSTIEES
WETHRRETFHE -

Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter
HAEETTER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRERNAEERRETSE

Bank") for related companies

ZHBRERZ BT EE

Accounting treatment for the obligations under financing arrangements with the immediate holding company
and financial guarantees provided by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank Co., Ltd. ("Yingkou Coastal

HEERRAFZBELAEREEEBUE R GRITRBRAF([EOMERT])BZ A RIEE A AR

We identified the accounting for the Group's
obligations under financing arrangements with the
immediate holding company of RMB2,778 million
together with the financial guarantees amounting to
RMB2,978 million given in favour of Yingkou Coastal
Bank for credit facilities granted to related companies
as a key audit matter due to the quantitative
significance and the complexity of the financial
arrangements that included the deployment of credit
facilities granted to related companies, a series of
bills financing arrangement and financial guarantee
contracts for related companies in favour of Yingkou
Coastal Bank.

HREELH B EZEREMRE - HBBRBEQRR
HEERMEZDE - —RIIRBERE L MAE Q8 /8IRTT
REZARBBERRG L HBERELD  BHABMEEE
HEEERARZBECHAEARK27/8EE T - ER
HEBARER Z FERENE DA BRITIERR R ARM
ZHBRRARE2978B B LIERMRBETFE -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group obtained advances
from its immediate holding company of approximately
RMB2,778 million through these financing
arrangements from immediate holding company and
details of the financing arrangements and financial
guarantees are disclosed in notes 43 and 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
RZZB-N\F+_A=+—HB BEEEEBEEEERAF
ZRETHFEHEREERARRGBOARKE2778BETZ
TR RE LRI BERZ FERENGS M BERERW
FT43%38(b) °

Our procedures in relation to the accounting
treatment for the Group's obligations under financing
arrangements with the immediate holding company,
together with the financial guarantees provided by
the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank for credit
facilities granted to related companies, included:
BERESBEERIERARZBERIAE  BRESEMN
LOMBRITRAIBARBBARNERZEERERHE M
BREARZGFTRERF - 8215

o Obtaining an understanding of the background
and purpose of the financing arrangements and
making inquiries with the Group’s management
and key personnel involved in the arrangement in
respect of their basis and assessment in relation
to the accounting for the financing arrangements
and provision for financial guarantees;

s TEHRBRERHZESKAN YRNEEEZEERE
R hkZREzTBEANEERNERBE LB RTTE
BERZ G5 RIEZ AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRETER BERARBARNTEEFARETEE

Bank") for related companies (Continued)

ZHBRERZ B EE(B)

Accounting treatment for the obligations under financing arrangements with the immediate holding company
and financial guarantees provided by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank Co., Ltd. ("Yingkou Coastal

BEERERAAZBELRERBEEBUE O RERITROBREDF([EOMERT ) RZ A RIER A AR

Given the complexity of the financial arrangements, |
in evaluating the appropriate accounting treatment
in respect of these financing arrangements, the
Group requires careful consideration of all facts
and circumstances to determine the appropriate
accounting treatment under HKFRSs.

ERRMERF 2EMIE  RATEZERERZRE SR
BRER  BXEATHEZERZMEERIERN  UIREBEE
B RMEEAETHEEN ST RIEITE ° .

Obtaining and reviewing the relevant loan
facilities agreements and bills financing
agreements between the related companies
and Yingkou Coastal Bank, financial guarantee
agreements entered by the Group in favour of
Yingkou Coastal Bank, and arrangement between
the Group and the immediate holding company
in respect of the financing arrangement;

B REMEBAREE B RITIIZZEBE
RREHBELEZEREGS  EEBAZE0EER
TREBATLZ M BRERGH  AREEEEER
BERARBARMER L5

Confirming, on a sample basis, the existence,
amounts and terms of the financial guarantee
contracts with Yingkou Coastal Bank and the
amount due to the immediate holding company
under the financial arrangements;
RHEREERREE DB RITCMBERENR
BIFHE - RRER - ARBRERETBIERNER
ERARZFE

Obtaining an understanding of the underlying
fund flows in respect of the financing
arrangements and agreeing these to supporting
documentation to substantiate the fund flows;
THREERERHZHRES R RAEEREE
PRESRE 2 FERAXM

Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment adopted by the management, as well
as the disclosures set out in notes 43 and 38(b)
to the consolidated financial statements, in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs.

AMEEREERBEEMBRELIZRERAZE
FAREHR - ARERS M REMTE43538(b)2

= = NS
EEARE °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
RREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BARBSTRNTEERREEFTEER

Valuation of investment properties

KEYFZIEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the quantitative significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the management estimations
required in determining the fair values.
BPBREMR 2 EEN REREFFEIHRNEER
HERGEMBHREANEHEZN  MEEREAMNE
RIAFEEHGE -

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties of the Group
comprised of completed investment properties of
RMB516,800,000 and investment properties under
construction of RMB5,297,575,000, of which are all
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and represented 37% of the Group's total assets.
MG M BRRMT17AERE - EEEZREVER
BERIREYHR ARY516,800,0007T RIEZKRED
£ AR®5,297,575,0007T © 2HHMRFEARKME
(TR IEEEEEEET% -

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on valuations performed by
independent qualified professional valuers (“Valuers”).
The management of the Group works with the Valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.
EHEEECREMEDNENBILAERZEXMER
([MAEmM D) ETZHERATERZY - EEEERER
HER & ER R P RSB 2 MERM R AR -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

B ERREME 2 AERBNEF B

o Evaluating the Valuers’ competence, capabilities
and objectivity and obtaining an understanding
of the Valuers’ scope of work;

o  HMEEEMZERE st REFBUL THEEMZ
TiEEE

] Discussing with the Valuers and the management
to understand their valuation techniques, the
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used
in the valuations to assess if they were consistent
with the requirements of HKFRSs and the industry
norms;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
RREETEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRBARNAREFARETEE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REYEZHE(E)

Fair value gain on investments properties of
RMB192,015,000 were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018.
BREVMENRAFERZARE192,015000tER=-F
—NFHA-HE-_T-N\F+-A=1t—BHHENE
ARG EMEE KSR AR

As further disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the completed investment
properties at a fair value of RMB122,610,000 (31 March
2018: RMB155,200,000) were measured using the fair
value model based on the market comparison method
and the significant unobservable input was adjusted
market unit sale rate while the remaining completed
investment properties at fair value of RMB394,190,000
(31 March 2018: RMB247,120,000) were arrived at based
on income approach, where the unobservable inputs
are adjusted monthly rent and the market yield. The
investment properties under construction were valued
either using the residual approach or depreciated
replacement costs/market approach and the significant
unobservable inputs were adjusted market unit sales rate,
adjusted monthly market rent, expected developer’s
profit margin and estimated total construction cost to
complete.

BUREMBEREWNASRI7TE—FSEE  ERTREY
E2RFER/ARI22,610000L(ZE—NF=ZA=+—
A : AR#155,200,0007T) * Ty ERAMIZLLEIAA R FE
BESE  HEATNAHEHABBAKLARMISEN
HEER  MATER/ARE394,190,0007T(ZF—N\F
ZA=+—8: AR¥247,120,0007T) 2 A FE R TIRE
METHRBANEMER - BT RABBAKARETA
HekTHLdRX ERREVERBRBKEIRTESE
BERAN /MG EGE  AEATABEREAZBEAKLA
BMSEMHEER KARFAMSES  BRER
HAR R R R A 53k TR SEROR ©

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs
and source data used in the valuations by
comparing them, on a sample basis, to existing
tenancy profiles, publicly available information
of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry in the PRC;
and

o HHESA  BARGENTIEHAZERIRE
BREBFEOMRR - BUATLEMEN AR ASER
ARBPIEFBEEMETEN T RLE - AFHEE
BEM K

o Assessing the appropriateness of estimated cost
to complete for investment properties under
construction by comparing the costs incurred to
date against the budgets provided by the Group
and evaluating whether the expected property
developer’s profit margins are comparable to the
market and the Group’s specific information.

e BEAMCEANKAESEFERHNHBITETHLR
AHET TERE AR B E VAR REE 1 - I
IEMERRECEARNERTHETERESE
ZEEERHELE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
RREETEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRBARNAREFARETEE

Valuation of properties held for sale

FELENYEZ 1518

We identified the valuation of properties held for sale
as a key audit matter due to its quantitative significant
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with significant estimations involved in
determining the net realisable value of properties held
for sale.

R ELENMEZHETRBREBFTFEIAR
HUEBREMBRRNEBICEZN - MEETHED
ENMEZAIBRRER S RERNMEE -

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties held for sale
with carrying amount of RMB5,736,201,000, which
included completed properties held for sale of
RMB1,381,870,000 and properties under development
for sale of RMB4,354,331,000, which are all located in
the PRC which in aggregate represented 36% of the
Group's total assets. These properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (the
“"NRV"”) on an individual basis.

WAERE MR 24FT R - EEBEEE 2FED
EMYEREEARARKES736,201,0007T * EHRBIEE
®THEHELENYEARE1,381,870,0007T & 3 & &F
S ¥ ARYA,354,331,0007T + 2HHNAPE - A
HEEEBEEIK - ZERFEHENWEERIAKA R
AEIEE( A # R FEDBEEVIER -

Our procedures in relation to valuation of properties
held for sale included:

B AR ELENYE 2 BERRNEFEHE

] Obtaining an understanding on the management’s
process of estimating the construction costs
to complete for properties held for sale and
estimating the NRV of properties held for sales;

o THREBEMIEEMRTUATKIFIELEMENE
B R AbFHRHELR SR R # R RE

] Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling price used by the management with
reference to the selling prices in the presale
agreement and market prices achieved for
comparable properties, including an evaluation
of the appropriateness of the comparable
properties used by the management of the Group
based on our knowledge of the Group's business
and the property markets in the relevant locations
on a sample basis, if applicable; and

e RERMUEEBEXRBLBBEMEZYMETSZT
RIERmEEE(ER)FHERELERERZ
MEBRILYEZTEMERZAANEE 2 SE
1t PRALEEEEEEEAZILYECHEE
R

B \FH

99



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B XA RS S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BERESSE(E)

Key audit matter
RREETEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMRBARNAREFARETEE

Valuation of properties held for sale (Continued)

FELENYEZEE ()

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, NRV is estimated by reference to the
actual or estimated selling price less estimated costs
to complete the development based on existing asset
structure and material price lists and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sales. If the actual NRV
on properties held for sale is less than expected as a
result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
allowances for impairment losses may result if the NRV
is less than the carrying amount on each individual
property held for sale.

MINGRE B RMARMESPAIRE - ATERFEDERR
BEERBRMHEBRRIHETHEN S BLENM
AR RS2 ZBRSAF EERE MR IR AR -
HMFELENMEZERAIZR FERTSRAE S
R/ SHEEEREANEREAZEMERTEL - MEE
RIFELENMEN AR FEENKREE - BIFTes
BYENREBERE

] Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
costs to completion of properties under
development for sale on a sample basis by
comparing the budgeted construction costs to
actual development costs incurred, and signed
construction contracts with sub-contractors
committed and relevant market information
showing the latest cost trend.

s PREZERARERDELANFRKALE I
HEEARD BRARBNERESH ERBEEHKA
BENHEBETSEN  RMGEEFGRERTEE
PERGTE TRANSIENE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

Ht &R
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HBEPIYGEEMBRROBAMS - HAWEE
EHEEMES  FIERET  TRHEMESR
BHEEMBERR XK MESTBEDERED
BERFEEANEBRELUFFEERBRRMA
BR - ERERMERTHN I WREFBSE
MESFEENBERRL  HMFTEREZE
B fEEHE BPRBEFRSE -

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

58

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence Lam.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 May 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COM PREHENS|VE INCOME
GAREREBLERRE
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
—E— ) \FNA—AZE=—F—\F+=-A=1+—HHRH
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E2-N\F —tF
A—H mA—H
—EB2-N\F =EZFT)N\HF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
HfaE AR¥T ARETIT
Revenue Wz 6

Goods and services B R 2,609,167 3,870,944

Finance lease income EERERA 953 17,928

Interest income from provision of finance REHRE ZF B A 6,590 21,586

Rental income from property investments  #)34&%& 2 S WA 22,139 3,356

Dividend from securities investments BHREZRE 5,081 7,787

Others Efb 58555 -
Total revenue Fallogas 2,649,485 3,921,601
Cost of sales and services SHE R RIEAAR (2,565,567) (3,581,803)
Gross profit ES 83,918 339,798
Other gains and losses H sk N B iE 8 (37,152) 23,153
Other income HAnUg A 9 23,294 26,373
Change in fair value of investment properties & &Y% 2 A EE 17 192,015 (96,948)
Selling and distribution expenses $HE K SR X (93,215) (117,699
Administrative expenses 1TEE (333,637) (323,646)
Impairment of goodwill SR 18 (5,846) -
Reversal (impairment loss) of AN ZIER B R CREEE)

— trade receivables —B 5 EWEIR (19,372) (6995)

— other receivables — H A E Y RIR (9,750) =

- financial guarantee contracts —UBERED 38 261,713 (484,122)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale (“AFS") B[t & ([AIHEHE ])

investments WE 2 REREE 23(d) = (133,877)
Impairment loss in respect of property, E@YE -  BMERSEZ

plant and equipment BIEEE 15 (68,699) (114,083)
Finance costs B 75 & 10 (444,252) (163,681)
Share of (loss) profits from associates DL AR (B8 )& T (8,371) 3,441
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 49 20 188,829
(Loss) gain on disposal of associates mEEZE AR (HE) IS 20 (8,637) 2,611
Change in fair value of convertible bonds ~ AJ# &% 2 A F{EE &)

— derivative component —0TEE D 37 118,374 (74,484)
Loss before tax BR A& 18 (349,597) (925,030)
Income tax expense FiS i 2 11 (46,514) (3,425)
Loss for the period/year R EEEE 12 (396,111) (928,455)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBEnkHM2EER
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
—EF- N\ FHA-AE=F-N\F+=-A=1+—HARH
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —+t5F
mA—H MmA—A
—E-N\F ZEZT)N\F
+t=A=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Other comprehensive income (expense) HttZ2EKEF(BIX)
Items that may be reclassified ARNEZENSEERR
subsequently to profit or loss: HIER :
Exchange differences on translating of BREBINEGE BN ZFE
foreign operations 26,496 (28,705)
Change in fair value of debt instruments BEAFEFAHMEmKES
at fair value through other comprehensive  ([1Z AFEFAEMEE
income ("FVTOCI") W )2 EBBIE AT
(EB=EY) (3,880) =
Reclassification adjustment relating to SFABRBEBRLERATE
loss on disposal of debt instruments SFAEM IR G 2 ER
at FVTOCI included in profit or loss TAZEHHERE 2,560 -
Change in fair value of AFS investments AHEHERE 2 A TEEZEY - (135,264)
Reclassification adjustment relating to AR ERERE B
impairment of AFS investments DrEAEE - 133,877
Reclassification adjustment relating to HERMEHEREZEN
AFS investments disposed of DEERHE S (524)
25,176 (30,616)
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEEMIBEERREN
profit or loss: b= =
Exchange differences on translation to ERREIEE
presentation currency EH =58 (100,642) 120,577
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hif, SFEHM2HE(BIX)
for the period/year PN (75,466) 89,961
Total comprehensive expense Bl FEXEBEXAE
for the period/year (471,577) (838,494)
(Loss) profit for the period/year B FE (E518) = F
attributable to: FEMEIAT :
Shareholders of the Company NATIRER (388,926) (931,079)
Non-controlling interests IEIE R AR R (7,185) 2,624
Loss for the period/year e FEBR (396,111) (928,455)

—E—)\FR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmRkAMEERER

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\E —E—+F
WWA—H mA—H

E-F-N\FE EZT)N\F
t=RA=t—-B =A=+—H

NOTE RMB’'000 RMB’000
ihFsa ARBTT ARBTT
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E(FAZ) WAL
attributable to: JEMHIAT ¢
Shareholders of the Company PiN/NETI 3 (463,301) (840,164)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR R 2 (8,276) 1,670
(471,577) (838,494)
RMB RMB
AR®T AR
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic YN (6.41) (15.35)
Diluted #E (6.41) (15.35)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2018
RZFE—NF+ZA=+—H

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+t=ZA=+t—H =A=t+—H
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
ihFsa AR¥ETF T ARBTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAHE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MERE 15 1,308,271 911,156
Prepaid lease payments TEfHEERIE 16 302,247 147,562
Investment properties KEYE 17 5,814,375 5,424,780
Goodwill mE 18 8,087 13,933
Club membership SR 19 - 1,701
Interests in associates REERRI 2R 20 28,400 45,873
Interests in joint ventures REEREELR 21 6,100 -
Deposits for machineries and investment M RIGEYME T B
properties 22 100,020 153,447
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTABR M
profit or loss BE 23 44,688 -
Other receivables H At E U RIE 28 32,686 -
Debt instruments at fair value through BEAFEFAHMEmKES
other comprehensive income ZEKIA 23 49,031 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 23 - 70,741
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 41 10,957 9,762
7,704,862 6,778,955
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties held for sale BIEREYE 24 5,736,201 2,435,166
Inventories FE 25 261,118 321,799
Deposits for acquisitions WhEke 26 - 564,000
Deposits for leasehold land for BERBEHECHE
development for sale Tz RS 22 50,000 -
Prepaid lease payments TS HEERIE 16 8,106 3,849
Finance lease receivables Bl & M EFEWGRIE 27 - 11,434
Trade and other receivables, and B 5 I E fth FEYWGRIE &
prepayments BT 28 827,860 878,881
Loan receivables and interest receivables FEW B SR R R B 29 12,187 107,294
Tax recoverable AT UL EI IR 1,041 44,020
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTABR S/
profit or loss BE 23 173,580 -
Held for trading investments BIEEEZIKRE 23 - 101,222
Pledged bank deposits RITHRER 30 285,634 262,823
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 30 701,946 255,113
8,057,673 4,985,601
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2018
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\E —E2-N\F
+=ZA=+—8B =HA=+—H
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
HtaF ARET T ARETT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade and other payables, and other B 5 R E b ET FRIE R EAM
liabilities =R 31 1,298,398 1,739,900
Bill payables TR 32 576,664 503,552
Tax payable e 18 104,221 94,744
Borrowings B 33 3,619,333 2,170,314
Obligations under finance leases RhE T EAE 34 6,847 -
Obligations under financing arrangements gl & 22 BE#IE 43 2,693,469 -
Contract liabilities aHarE 35 973,061 -
Corporate bonds NREH 36 214,840 128,042
Convertible bonds AR (E & 37 = 634,818
Financial guarantee contracts B EIR S 4 38 228,382 496,793
9,715,215 5,768,163
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BERBAE (1,657,542) (782,562)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 6,047,320 5,996,393
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred consideration EERE 39 95,000 —
Deferred income EIEL A 40 21,660 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 41 76,524 28,520
Amount due to immediate holding company B B#ZILHR A B2 508 42 1,706,956 520,000
Borrowings =g 33 1,178,000 2,423,739
Obligations under finance leases RhE M EHRE 34 17,719 -
Corporate bonds NRESH 36 76,109 128,223
Convertible bonds AR (E S 37 244,632 214,390
3,416,600 3,314,872
NET ASSETS REE 2,630,720 2,681,521
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2018
RZFE—NF+ZA=+—H

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
t=A=+—-B =A=+—H
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
Fat AR¥TR AREFT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXREE

Share capital N 44 55,203 55,203
Reserves EE 2,513,008 2,481,599

Equity attributable to shareholders of KRB PEI e e
the Company 2,568,211 2,536,802
Non-controlling interests FE VRS AR B 2 62,509 144,719
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 2,630,720 2,681,521

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 291 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14
May 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

ZRELE
Mr. Meng Guang Bao

DIRECTOR
EF

B \FH

BREIOE2VNAEZEAUBRRDEFEN -
E-NFRAATHBRELFFAIEL - XARAT

BEERREEF

REZL
Ms. Zhang Ye
DIRECTOR

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SRS EIR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RRTRRAE
Retained
Statutory  Exchange  Share-based Deemed  Investment profits Non-
Share Share surplus  translation ~ payment  contribution  revaluation Other ~ (accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) ~ Subtotal interests Total
HRhAER A #2R

hx  REEE iERBGE  ERGR  2MURE BEZRER RREGER  RMBR (TR M BREE g
RMBOO  RMBOD  RMBOO  RVBON  RMBUMD  RMBOO  RMBOX  RMBON  RVBOD  RMBOI) B  RMBON
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2017 R-E-tEmA-HzEH 55203 2,551,848 35,264 649 06,959 195,924 1911 5033 73200 3391920 133921 3505847
(Loss)profitfor the year EE(BR)E 5 5 5 8 S s s s 931,079) 931,079) 2604 928,455)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for  EEE{2ENE(E)

the year - - - 92826 - - (191 - - 90915 (954) 89,961

Total comprehensive income (expense) for ~ £EBAEAR(F Y28

the year - - - 9282 - - (191 - 931,079 (840,164) 1470 (838.494)
Capital injection by non-controlling HEATMFERRRAE (W)

shareholders of subsidiaries (note) S S S S S S S S S S 35,816 35,816
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 4900) li ) - - - - - - - - - - (22740 (274
Expiry of share options (note 47) - - - - (15,970) - - - 15970 - - -
Acquisition of subsicliry with

non-controlling interest S S S S S S S S S S (1,280 (1,280
Dividend paid to non-controlling nterest

sharsholder of a subsidiary S S S S S S S S S S (2.667) (2661
Deemed contribution from the controlling

company (note 42) - - - - - 50812 - - - 50812 - 50812
Reversal of deemed contribution from the i

controlling company (note 42) S S S S S (65,766) S S S 65,766) S (65,766)
Transfer to resenve 8Y5GE - - (50) 5 5 5 = e 50 = = =
Balance at 31 March 2018 RIE-NE=R=T-BrkR 55,203 2,551,848 35,234 99,324 50,989 180970 - 5033 (441799) 2,536,802 144719 2,681,521
Loss for the period iMEE - - - - - - - - (388.926)  (388.926) (7185 (396,111)
Other comprehensive expense for the period - HEEK2ERR - - - (73,055) - - (1,320) - - (74.375) (1,091) (75,466)
Total comprehensive expense for the period - - - (73,055) - - (1,320) - (388.926)  (463,301) 8276) (@151
Expiry of share options (note 47) - - - - (8,386) - - - 8,386 - - -

Acquisition of subsidiary with nor-controlling
interest (note 49(a)
Deemed controution fom the contolling 8 H BERAR AL
company (note 42) - - - - - 186,346 - - - 186,346 - 186,346
Deemed contribution from reversel of financial BfEREBEHHERANZE

- - - - - - - - - - (MIS0) (111,150

quarantee contracts (note 38) - - - - - 223,905 - - - 223,905 - 223,905
Deemed contribution relating to an wnlsted ~ E{ERENPEZE (75 8230
investments in China Huacai LRETREZHE
(defingd in note 23(d)) - - - - - 154,470 - - - 154,470 - 154,470
Reversal of deemed contribution from f
the controlling company (note 42) - - - - - (32,795) - - - (32,795) - (32,795)
Acquisition of additional nterest from hEE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (37,216) (37,216) 31,216 -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RE-NETAZT-AZER 55,203 2,551,848 35,234 26,269 42,603 712,89 (1,320) 5,033 (859,555 2,568,211 62,509 2,630.720
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had established certain ~ ffzt - HE_Z—NF=ZA=F+—BILFE  AEREDR®
non-wholly owned subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the PEARANMB(TFBE])KLEFIHZEMRBER
“PRC"). The amounts represented initial capital injection from the non- A ZELERARBIFERBRR VB ERTE »

controlling shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\E —E—+F

MA—H MA—H

BEZE-N\F 22T )\F
+=H=+-—H =A=+—AR
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETFTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE

Loss before tax BR Bi AT & 18 (349,597) (925,030)
Adjustments for: HE
Amortisation of financial guarantee contracts MBERE N2 B S (22,129)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds AR & 2 N FES
— derivative component —{TEHD (118,374) 74,484
Change in fair value of held for trading investments  H{EEEB 2R E 2 D FEEH - (639)
Change in fair value of investment properties BEMEZ N FEES (192,015) 96,948
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABR ERMEEL
NHERE 9,476 -
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOC] HEERAFEFALMEEKEZ
BHBIAZER 2,560 =
Depreciation and amortisation of FRBEEMEREE
non-current assets 91,894 113,156
Dividend income from securities investments BHEZE 72 BWA (5,081) (7,787)
Finance costs B%ER 444,252 163,681
Loss (gain) on disposal of associates HEBE AR 2 EE(kE) 8,637 (2,611)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRAz s (20) (188,829)
Impairment loss on UNTEIEZBEEE
— trade receivables —B 5 REMHIE 19,372 695
— other receivables — H b RN RIE 9,750 -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 5,846 -
Impairment of inventories FERE 7,528 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Mm% - BEREERE 68,699 114,083
Interest income on bank deposits and RITERRBITERFTRZ
pledged bank deposits B A (5,339) (14,577)
Impairment of properties held for sales FIELEMERE 29,050 -
Impairment of deposits for machineries BB ERREA RS RE
modification and enhancement 25,000 -
Interest income on finance lease receivables BMEMEEYEIE 2 FBIA (953) (17,928)
Interest income on loan receivables FEWE T2 FIBUA (6,590) (21,586)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME  BENMREZ (WE)ER
plant and equipment (244) 290
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEMEEERE 2 WG - (524)
Loss on disposal of club membership HESMmeR B 63 =
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SV (518 ) Y o 2R 297 (157)
(Reversal) impairment loss of financial guarantee HBREREHER)REESE
contracts (261,713) 484,122
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investments AHHERE ZREER - 133,877
Share of loss (profits) from associates D hEE A Rl EE (5 7)) 8,371 (3,441)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A Ao gi—%
,%ZR =] IE@/JILE%:Z
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —t5F
A—H MA—H
—E-N\F E2T)N\F
t=RA=t-B =A=t1—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F R ARBFT
Operating cash flows before movements in EEREBRI RERENE
working capital (209,131) (23,896)
Increase in properties held for sale BIEHEZWEEM (240,105) (1,361,749)
Increase in deposits paid for acquisitions WHERIEE MRS EM - (564,000)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERDGEM) 86,077 (83,318)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables Z 5 M EH b U R IE > (35 0) 101,963 (211,075)
Decrease in loan receivables EWE ZUR A 95,106 677,505
Increase in held for trading investments BIEEEZIREEM (8,765) (10,454)
Decrease in finance lease receivables REM S REWRFIER D 12,020 259,926
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B REMENZTEGRD )L (720,133) 703,493
Decrease in bill payables JEN RE R D (145,206) (1,202,847)
Increase in contract liabilities BRAEEM 293,608 -
Cash used in operations i‘“ “Fﬁﬁﬁfﬁi (734,566) (1,816,409
Income tax refunded (paid) Bl (2 ) TS Hi 52,175 (50,604)
Interest received on loan receivables EHQTEWE KA B 6,590 126,413
Interest received on finance lease receivables Eﬂﬂl%ﬂﬁfﬁﬁffqﬂl Iﬁﬂ/@ 953 17,928
Dividend received from securities investments BUEHEE RS 5,081 7,787
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFBHRAZREFR (669,767) (1,714,885)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE  BENMERE (109,319) (137,918)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment HERE &R EEHIE 3,123 2,905
Payment for purchase of investment properties BARBMEZNR (5,980) (365,175)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL ~ H &R AT EFABEZZEREE
Fri5sIE 73,054 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale o &S A ﬁg&ﬁZﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂiﬂ(
investments S 47,000
Proceeds from disposal of club membership HESMmeEmMERA 1,638 -
Payment for prepaid lease payments iﬁrﬁﬁf E708 (88,205) (12,447)
Interest received on bank deposits BRI TERFE 5,339 14,577
Investments in joint ventures i **ﬁ%z&é (6,100) -
Release of pledged bank deposits R RITEIRTR 144,880 624,788
Placement of pledged bank deposits FRERITIE AR (130,978) =
Refund of deposits paid for acquisitions WIS N2 ZERR - 500,000
Deposits paid for purchases of plant and equipment YW E I &2 @A Kk —BIRE W E L
and an investment property %% (293,860) (147,503)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries Hﬁl,ﬂ%ﬁﬁ% BIZFRERE (49,774) (52,433)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from disposal of subsidiaries H & K& A TZ@fﬂé(umﬁ JIRA (695) 79,606
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — & AR PS5 465 =
Repayment from a former associate Py=| *Faﬁﬁljﬁﬁﬁ%@j,z&&w\ 6,484 -
Advance to a former associate A RIS R A (16,400) =
Advance to a related company i) /NG (9,413) -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE (FTH)EL 2B FE (475,741) 553,400
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/T/\IEQ/JILE%%

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
— At —t5F
A—A8 mA—A
—E-N\F E_T-)\F
t=RA=t-B =A=t1—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from borrowings ERMAEFIE 2,136,256 2,784,852
Acquisition of additional interest from f—H I Hxﬂx%”ﬁlﬁﬁﬁgﬂ\%

a non-controlling shareholder S (1,280)
Repayment of borrowings BEER (2,282,020) (785,388)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases BEREHERE (2,226) =
Advance received from bill payables RECANES PSRN 721,870 -
Repayment of bill payables BRENRIE (523,552) (673,930)
Interest paid BEAFE (481,150) (400,391)
Capital contribution by non-controlling shareholders  [ff&A R JEFE AR 2 )T &

of subsidiaries = 35,816
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BITRHRE S PG TUR = 486,180
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BITRRESFABRIA - 50,902
Repayment of corporate bonds BEATES S (24,390)
Payment of transaction costs for issue of BARAEF IR KT

corporate bonds S (4,434)
Payment of transaction costs for issue of BOIABRRES 2 X HKATR

convertible bonds = (4,706)
Redemption of convertible bonds B AR E S (550,923) -
Repayment to an associate BE Mk e QR 2R = (21,372)
Advance from immediate holding company KAFEERATZEMN 2,559,718 805,812
Repayment to immediate holding company EEAEEERAR ZFHIE (1,180,812) (999,321)
Proceeds from financing arrangements AL HETE KA 1,183,417 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders of BRI BA AR R RS

a subsidiary = (2,667)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEDEL 2R FE 1,580,578 1,245,683
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B¢ &5 & % @Y% nF5E 435,070 84,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ FARERBEEEY

AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD/YEAR 255,113 172,686
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of ~ ERE U FTIFINER S EH 2 T E

cash held in foreign currencies 11,763 (1,771)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ ERAERASEEN

AT THE END OF PERIOD/YEAR 701,946 255,113
—T—)\FRH 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE
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GENERAL

Huajun International Group Limited (formerly known as Huajun
Holdings Limited) (the “"Company”) is a limited company
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place
of its business is 36/F, Champion Tower, 3 Garden Road,
Central, Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2018, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) consider that immediate
holding company of the Company to be China Huajun Group
Limited which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
ultimate holding company of the Company is Huajun Group
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Meng Guang Bao (“Mr. Meng”), who
is the chairman of the Board of Directors and an executive
director of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in notes 7 and
56. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the "Group”.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") to enable the
shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group's financial position and performance.

Change of financial year end date

During the nine month period ended 31 December 2018, the
reporting period end date of the Group was changed from
31 March to 31 December because the Directors determined
to align the financial year end date of the Group with
that of its principal subsidiaries in the PRC. The Directors
consider such change will facilitate the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements for the current
period cover the nine month period ended 31 December
2018. The corresponding comparative amounts shown
for the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover a twelve month period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018 and therefore may not be comparable with amounts
shown for the current period.

—RER

EERBREEERAR(ABEEZERSE
RAR(IARAR]) AR BEREZMAK
UZERRERAR  MEKROKESRE
BaXZMBERAR (TR ERE
e ARAE 2 MPFEEML N Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda - EX E&E X MH AT B IR
TEEEIREERNEE R _T—N\F
FTZA=4+—8 XRAEF(TEF )R
RARNFZEEERAFIRTHEZSHE
BRAR  ZARA—RREBELES
AT AT - MARBREERAD
AIREZEEERAT  ZRFREBK
S HEBRIERARBARGBIESTGERHE
BTEEREBRAE(REED -

ARBRREZERDE - KB RR 2T
BEBHPOMTET 56 - AR REKE
NGIE YRS S

ARABNEEERET(ET]) - MA
EEZFEEUBRRAARE(TARE])
25 AR EEAARRRRERANE
Bz RN R KA -

EXRMEFER

HE_Z—N\F+ZA=+—HIEAHEA
HfE - AEB v REHAMEEBEBR=A
—t+—RA%A+-_A=+T—H8 REA=Z
EREFEMBRFAARENPRENEE
WEBRARZHBRFEBRE - EER
REBEHEFTEREANEB ZIREVB
WK o At AHBZEAMBHRRRE
HE-_Z—N\F+ZA=+—HIEAMEA
HfE - meEa kHEME2EKER  £8
BmBEE  REREREXRKBENE
FrRZAELREBRE_ZT—+tFNA
—BE-_Z— \F=ZA=+—H+=-@A
HAfA - MUKW ATE AR AR 2 &R 1ELL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that as
of 31 December 2018 the Group has capital and other
commitments of RMB2,669 million as disclosed in note 52
to the consolidated financial statements, incurred a net
loss of RMB396,111,000 for the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 and had net current liabilities of
RMB1,657,542,000 at 31 December 2018.

The Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis
taking into account the following facts and assumptions:

(i)

Continuous financial support from the
immediate holding company

On 1 August 2018, the Company entered into a credit
facilities letter with the immediate holding company
in which the immediate holding company agreed to
provide interest-free credit facilities of RMB7,000 million
to the Group, of which RMB4,651,013,000 has been
drawn as at 31 December 2018 (which comprises of
amount due to immediate holding company at gross
amount of RMB1,872,931,000 as disclosed in note 42 and
the obligations under financing arrangements at gross
amount of RMB2,778,082,000 as disclosed in note 43).
Subsequent to period end, a supplementary agreement
was signed in which the immediate holding company
agreed not to demand for the repayment of the amount
due to immediate holding company until 31 May 2021;

On 26 October 2018, the Company entered into
convertible bond subscription agreement with the
immediate holding company in which the Company
agreed to issue and the immediate holding company
agreed to subscribe a 1.5% coupon 5 years convertible
bond at an aggregate sum of HK$1,000,000,000
(equivalent to RMB877,193,000) which needed to be
paid by 30 June 2019. Up to the date of the report,
the immediate holding company has advanced
approximately RMB428 million to the Group as part of
the convertible bond subscription. The Directors expect
that the remaining RMB449 million will be received from
the immediate holding company by 30 June 2019.

B \FH

2

T e M BHRRANEREE

MR E T RRMTS2ATHEE - ERE
BT )\F+_-_A=1+—8 KEBEEH
BEARHEMEAEARE 266988 T -
YR —_ZE—N\FHA—BE_FT—N\F
T+ A=+t —HHEEEAFEBEARY
396,111,0007C * WERZFT—N\F+=
A=+ BH#BRDEEFBEARE
1,657,542,0007C * M EERE M5 K
W EREEEZRASEZARRRBIE -

EEZRAR KARUTEERMER B
BREZERUUSAMBRRBIE -

(i) REEEZRLADZFEMBEX
=2

RZTE—NEFENA—HB AAFHE
EREBRARGINEERE R
HPEEERARRBERANERER
HESEERMEARK7008 &
JC - E AR ¥4,651,013,0007T B
R-ZE-N\F+-A=+—HEW
(BIENFRAEELBEAEARE
1,872,931,000 T K E T E B ZER A
ARBEMWNFBAEEREAEAR
& 2,778,082,000 T K Bk & % BE &
)  REIRE - MiamZEDEE]
HPBEEEBRQARRER =T =—
FRA=Z+—BAITEREEEN
HEEERARFIE

RZE—NFE+A=+H AR
RIE H RN R T M Al B EH
REHHE HPAQRIRERT
MEELERARRERBEREA
1,000,000,000 % 7T (48 & R A R &
877,193,0007L ) 2 15%E B HF
HBmRES  REREZFNR_Z
—NEXNAZT+HRXHN - EER
SHE EEERARERMALEE
FERNHARKA2EETT  (EATH
BREHFRESEN—BD - £EFE
HER—_ZE—hEA=+HAA
BEEZERARIWES T ARK4498

e —

H/IT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

72

(ii)

(iii)

Renewal of bank borrowings from Yingkou
Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings
of RMB4,797,333,000, of which RMB3,619,333,000 was
current in nature and RMB1,903,620,000 was provided
by Yingkou Coastal Bank, which is a related party of
the Group as disclosed in note 54(c). Subsequently
after the period end and before the date of this report,
Yingkou Coastal Bank had renewed bank borrowings to
the Group of RMB620,920,000 and granted additional
bank borrowings amounting to RMB1,083,498,000 to the
Group. Given the historical experience of borrowings
renewal, the relationship of Yingkou Coastal Bank with
the Group and considering the availability of assets to be
pledged upon maturity of the borrowings, the Directors
expect that borrowings of RMB1,487,620,000 will be able
to be renewed by Yingkou Coastal Bank upon maturity
in September 2019, March 2020 and April 2020 for
extension of at least one year.

Cash inflow from property development
projects

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had properties
held for sale amounted to RMB5,736,201,000, of
which RMB4,354,331,000 were under development.
The Directors expected that pre-sale certificates of
certain property development projects will be obtained
after meeting the pre-sales conditions and contribute
substantial cash inflow to the Group from pre-sale of
these properties in 2019.

2.

o A
=)

(ii)

(iii)

PIBRRORREE(E)

REEONBRITZRITERZ
=

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ' &
£ E B E R AR 4,797,333,000
JT 0 Hep AR #3,619,333,0007T8
mEMEE & AR ¥ 1,903,620,000
JC A BT 5E54(c) T i B8 2 7 5k [ B Bt
EONERITRE - REBRER
RAIRE BHR - & O WFRITE
BERTASEEZRITERARE
620,920,0007T + ¥ [ A 55 B 3% 58
SNRYER 1T 8 A R #1,083,498,000
T BERERERMNBALR &
PEBRITEASENBERLERE
HEREREETERNEE £
EIEE - EOBBRTEBIRE
—hENhA ZEZTF=AK=
TEFNAERERERARE
1,487,620,000 cE B = D —14F -

REMERBERENRESR

W—_ZE—-NE+=-A=+—8"
REEHRERELHEMEARK
5,736,201,000 t + E R AR ¥
4,354,331,000 =R FEH - EF
EH A TYEXEHRBEEENTEER
ERRRMEEESKRGERSE AR
ZE-NFEEZSEVERLEE
BERAENREBRA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(iv) Refinancing plan for investment properties

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had investment
properties carried at fair value of RMB5,814,375,000
with corresponding borrowings of RMB2,094,000,000
secured by these investment properties. The Directors
believe that if additional financing is required, the Group
would be able to refinance its borrowings using these
investment properties as security or realise the value
of the investment properties through sales in 2019 and
thereafter.

The Directors believe that, taking into account the above
factors, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
satisfy its present requirements for at least the next twelve
months from the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. However, should the above financing
be unavailable (in particular the continuous financial support
from the immediate holding company as well as the renewal of
borrowings from Yingkou Coastal Bank) or if the Group is not
able to generate the expected cash inflows from certain of its
property development projects within the expected timeline,
(or if required, the Group is unable to obtain additional
financing through refinancing or disposal of the existing
investment properties), the Group may be unable to operate
as a going concern, in which case adjustments might have
to be made to the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
state them at their realisable values, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its non-current
assets and non-current liabilities to current assets and current
liabilities, respectively.

B \FH

2.

REMBHRRNVERELE(E)

(iv) REVEXNBEMETTS

RZFE—-—NF+=ZA=+—8"
REBHEBRAFEAARE
5,814,375,000 TR EME - A K
HZEREMEEROBEEBERA
R #2,094,000,0007C ° & £z -
WHEBEIINRE - AEBBAE

RAZEREMEERERETER
BREINEBNR _TE—NERz#E
HERBEYMEMSRLEYMENE
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EEREFIRRARERR  AREEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (the “"HKICPA") for the first time in the current

period:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had no
material impact on the Group'’s financial performance and
positions for the current period and prior year and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

FPEREER T REBITER
PR 2R

RAHE  AEEERBRXEBATHER

BHWAE(BERHMAE ) FEGZ
BT RARIE T BB SRR
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ERUBRELR URHXIRG2HHE
F2RUERTA) KEtE

BRAMBREER HEBMBHRELE
FAFUERTA) a5t TR A K IR
BRMBHREENE

9 BT A
EAEHAEA  (FA-T-MEE-T
ERRBHA)  —ATEBTEHG
BRI R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period
(Continued)

3.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current period. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Assembling and sales of solar photovoltaic products;

o Provision of processing services for solar photovoltaic
products;

J Manufacturing and sales of printing products;

° Sales of oil and other related products; and

J Sales of properties.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period
(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

B F0 37 5T A58 3T B 08 01 3 3R
R (e SR )
=]

FAEREER T REBITER
PSR E LR ()

31 BBUBREEAEISHEEFEN
Wz (&)

BREREENFERELAEISHE
VR BB

AREEEHRR T N\FEOA—H
BER A MR RER NS BED
ATHE - TREEINEREXE
RESHTENEE °

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported HKFRS 15

at 31 March at 1 April
2018 Reclassification 2018
BREEHE

MB|REER

KRR F15%
—B-N\F R=Z-N\%&
=ZA=t-H mA—H

2HRNREE EXDE MEREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®TT AR®TTT

Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale HELEME 2,435,166 4,905 2,440,071
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables, B o REMENKER

and other liabilities Hp B & 1,739,900 (382,102) 1,357,798
Contract liabilities (note) aHa’EHE) - 387,007 387,007

Note: As at 1 April 2018, receipts in advance from property pre-sold
and receipts in advance from customer for sales of goods
amounting to RMB382,102,000 in respect of sales contracts
were included in trade and other payables, and other
liabilities were reclassified to contract liabilities.

The Group has adjusted for a significant financing component
by applying a discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. The cumulated interest
expenses as at 1 April 2018 are accounted for on the same
basis as other borrowing costs and capitalised into properties
held for sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. [
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING =

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period

(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

The following tables summaries the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the current
period for each of the line items affected. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been

included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

FAEREER T REBITER
PSR E LR ()

31 BEUMBHREEREISHEFEN
Wz (%)

TREBMERATEMBRELRE
ISHEEAEER T - N\F+_H
=t - BERAUBRREREAHRE
MEARERERSAXYERE
MEE -  TREBINDREXEH
HEFENIEA -

s BB R KR E

position
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
KER
EBMKRE
ERIHE15%
M2 R AE HWesE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale BHEHEYE 5,736,201 (34,836) 5,701,365
Current liabilities hRBEE
Trade and other payables, Bo5hEMENTIE
and other liabilities MEMEE 1,298,398 938,225 2,236,623
Contract liabilities (note) axaBE Kz 973,061 (973,061) -

Note: As at 31 December 2018, receipts in advance from property
pre-sold and receipts in advance from customer of
RMB973,061,000 in respect of sales contracts were classified
as contract liabilities. The relevant significant financing
component of RMB34,836,000 was capitalised as properties

held for sales.

B \FH
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period

(Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

RG] RS E] BB % H
%ﬁ’?ﬁﬂﬁ%\;ﬁﬂ BaREEL )
A

FAEREER T REBITER
PSR E LR ()

3.1 BBUBBRELNEISHEEFEN

3.2

(Continued) W (48)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HiFE R nERNTE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Adjustments HKFRS 15
KER
EBMKRE
ERIHE15%
ME2R AE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Operating activities RETH
Increase in properties held for sale #{EH &M (240,105) 34,836 (205,269)
Decrease in trade and B 5 REMERZIERD
other payables (720,133) 258,772 (461,361)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 293,608 (293,608) -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current period, the Group has applied HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses ("ECL") for financial assets and other items
and (3) general hedge accounting.

3.2 BEBUBHEERIZEIVLAMTA

RAHE  AEBECERBEMBR
ERAEF M T ARAME R
BHmELENNBRBEEST - &8
B E LR BRI ABA T HE
BEFTRE i(1)$%ﬂ§§&$%ﬂiﬁa%
WOBRKFE  QeRMEENTEH
1;1%;%%5((%%1;1?;&5%%)&Em
BR &Q3 —REFERRE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period

(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
April 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 4.

—N\F,

B F0 37 5T A58 3T B 08 01 3 3R
R (e SR )
=]

FAEREER T REBITER
PSR E LR ()

32 BBHUBREZEREIREHMTAE)

AR EDIRIEE SR ELAE
SRR B I S R E B
BERAEOR - MEHR=F— N
/A — B (A R E) # R
IR T AE R S8R 2
5% (2 1R 18 T8 B 12 B TRA
#) BRBUR-F—N\FmA
—AEXRIERNIARARER
F e ZE-N\F=ZA=+—HHK
HER-_Z-N\FOA—-BNEE
2 B E RN R E R
fizsE S PR - AL WETIL
BAR -

At - AR BRERDIREETR S
FHERIZERER T A ¢ R ME
ERE  WETHRERTREEZX
FAYELLER o

EREAVBREEAFIREHMN
SRR ENHI TS
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period

(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and other items subject
to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial

application, 1 April 2018.

FAEREER T REBITER

PSR E LR ()

BB ELRIFEIRTHMTA(E)

BREREBMBEHEERE T
FER

TRETIREBERERAH _-_ZFT—N
FMA—-BREFEMHRE L
FIORRE B ERFEIORN TR
BEMHEBZBRREREEBEDN
HiBEMDBRAE -

Debt
Financial ~ instruments at
assets at fair value
fair value  through other
through profit  comprehensive
Available- or loss income
Held for for-sale ("FVTPL") ("FVTOCI")
trading ("AFS")  requiredby  required by
investments investments HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9
RE
EROERE
ié ERIE%
ERMERE RERLTE
EAIZHE FHARA
REZLTE 2EKE
iTARR (B R
e ([EDYE HPN:t
B (ATHEE) HABR)IN 2ERENH
EERE RE SREE B%IR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFTL ARETT
Closing balance at 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=t—BzHREx
- HKAS 39 - EAeERIE0R 101,222 70,741 = -
Effect arising from initial application BREREANBRELAEIR
of HKFRS 9: EEngE2
Reclassification BNE
From AFS investments (note 1) BEfERE (1) = (70,741) = 70,741
From held for trading investments (note 2) BBEEBERE (H32) (101,222) = 101,222 =
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 WZ2-N\ENA—B 7 &R - S 101,222 70,741
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current period
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes:
(1) AFS investments

Listed bond investments with a fair value of RMB70,741,000
were reclassified from AFS investments to debt instruments
at FVTOCI, as these investments are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and the
contractual cash flows of these investments are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

(2) Held for trading investments

The Group has reassessed its investments in listed fund
securities and listed fund classified as held for trading
under HKAS 39 as if the Group had purchased these
investments at the date of initial application. Based on the
facts and circumstances as at the date of initial application,
RMB101,222,000 of the Group's investments were not held for
trading and continued to be measured at FVTPL because the
investments were neither measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
these assets from the application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables. To measure
the ECL, trade receivables and finance lease receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprise of deposits and other receivables,
loan receivables and interest receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash are measured on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Z-\FR

B F0 37 5T A58 3T B 08 01 3 3R
R (e SR )

FAEREER T REBITER
PSR E LR ()

32 EBBUBHEEAEIGNREHMITAE)

BREREBYIEHEEREIH
FEBM (E)

ikt -
M ARmERE

NEERAREET0,741,0007TH L
EHFRERATHEEREENHER
BRAFEFAEMEERENEST
B REAREREEEENAR
BREBRENReRERLEZSEE
MEBNEBEAFE - MRSRE
WENBESREARERMAEER
SR B

2 HEEERA

AEBEEEHFEERNLTEEES
REmESNEE  TREEEE
FAEREFE O RRFEEE - M
MAEBEERERERBHEEA
HERE - BEREREME BN
FERBR  AKBENREARE
101,222,000 7T 36 3F 5 {F B & 3 4 &
BATEF ARG E  REAZE
REWFFIRE R AIIE A FEFTA
Hih 2 E o

ERE B MM E LR E &
HRSEERBNSRAETATE -

RIFFEHEEBEEXNRE
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BT EHE S EEFRALBER
ERUFAEREMEREREER
AEEHEEEE - RFEEYE
EEE EZRKFELRBERE
UK AEERESEEERRSTEH
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BRBIEARESREMBERR
H - ERERRERFE BT
HBEZARRTELRRSE - R
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ZEEEBEEEEHFE  AEhE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. EA#HIIR&EITEBIKR
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HFRA(TERBMBHREER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) (&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are A EEE ER 2T REETE SR
mandatorily effective for the current period MR EER(E)

(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 3.2 EBBYUBHBEEREELHMITAE)

583

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

The Directors considered that the measurement of ECL
has no material impact to the Group's accumulated
losses at 1 April 2018.

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 3.3
financial position arising from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
show the adjustments recognised for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

31 March
2018
(Audited)
—Z-N\F

BREREBMBEHEERE T
HEB (E)

RIBHEREEBERAARE(E)

EERA FHEEBENEY
AEER-_Z-N\FHA-BNHZR
FAAEBRYEEATE -

FE B FIT 8 #7 2E B 1 B 4 47 & B 75 ik
RRBIZE

HREXWASRESABRNE
B HUSEMBERRKREATE
Fle TRERNSEXFZEBEAND
BRHER - TRABINBREXE
HEBTENIER -

1 April

2018

HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9  (Restated)
—E-N\F

ZA=t—-H BEMBHRE BEUBERE mA—H

(BEZ) ERIFE15%  ERIFEH (&%)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABZNER

BE - - 101,222 101,222

Debt instruments at FVTOCI BATEFAEMEZT
KamEE TR - - 70,741 70,741
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE 70,741 - (70,741) =
Held for trading investments BEEEHRE 101,222 = (101,222) =
Properties held for sale BEHEME 2,435,166 4,905 = 2,440,071

Trade and other payables, BHREMERFIER
and other liabilities Hin&(E 1,739,900 (382,102) - 1,357,798
Contract liabilities aHatE - 387,007 - 387,007
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 16 Leases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015 - 2017 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

: Effective for business combinations and asset acquisition for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements
of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the
Group. Upfront prepared lease payments will continue to be
presented as investing or operating cash flows in accordance
to the nature, as appropriate.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB56,354,000 as disclosed
in note 51. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB7,905,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of RMB653,000 as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease
payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be considered as additional lease payments
and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Directors assess that such changes
would not significantly increase the consolidated assets and
consolidated liabilities of the Group and would not result in a
significant impact on the financial performance of the Group
upon adoption of HKFRS 16.

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening accumulated losses without restating
comparative information.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide additional guidance with the objective of assisting
entities to determine whether a transaction should be
accounted for as a business combination or an asset
acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The amendments will be mandatorily effective to the Group
prospectively for acquisition transactions completed on or
after 1 January 2020. The Directors do not anticipate that
the amendments will have material impact to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. The amendments also
align the definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

The application of new requirements may increase the
Group's capitalisation of finance costs to properties held for
sale and investment properties. However, the Directors do
not anticipate that the amendments the above-mentioned
calculation will have material impact to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties and financial instruments which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the reporting
period are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that.

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at the acquisition date. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction by transaction
basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

For assets and liabilities acquired from the controlling
shareholder, the difference between the purchase
consideration and the aggregate fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed is recognised as contribution to
controlling shareholder and included in deemed contribution
reserve in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets on a pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial information of associates or joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate or joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the
Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration for a
significant financing component, the Group applies a discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
The relevant interest expenses during the period between
the advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the same
basis as other borrowing costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (e.g. sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently charged to profit or loss that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or losses on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as 'prepaid lease payments’
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Construction cost incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, other than construction-in-progress (as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction-in-progress for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress less their residual values, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Club membership is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gain or loss arising from derecognition of club membership,
measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets and club membership
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and club membership
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Club membership with indefinite useful lives is tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets and club
membership are estimated individually, or when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash- generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and club membership
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs comprise the acquisition costs, borrowing cost
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
and other direct costs attributable to such properties and
allocated to each unit in each phase based on sellable floor
area, using weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for properties held-
for-sale less all estimated costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into HK$; and (ii) the assets and
liabilities of the Group denominated or translated in HK$ are
then translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. RMB), using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an interest in an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of joint arrangements or associates that
do not result in the Group losing joint control or significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significant reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 3) (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

(iii) Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
debt instruments/receivables classified as at FVTOCI
as a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. All
other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCl without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial

instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
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transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and
o an actual or expected significant adverse change

in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

J the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information regarding specific exposures that
is reasonable, supportable and available without undue
cost or effort. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKAS 17 Leases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is
the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as
a separate group. Loans receivables and interest
receivables are assessed for expected credit losses
on an individual basis);

J Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, finance lease receivables
and loan receivables and interest receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For investments in debt instruments
that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying amount
of these debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, AFS financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated

as FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or
J it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together
and as a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
losses includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 48(c).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of AFS debt instruments relating
to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivables and interest receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or
o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, loan receivables and interest receivables, the
assets are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if
they were assessed not to be impaired individually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the allowed credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivables and
interest receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable, loan receivables and interest receivables are
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
other liabilities, bill payables, amount due to immediate
holding company, borrowings and corporate bonds) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds containing debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments or
with settlement option is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative component are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9 (since 1 April 2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018); and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting condition is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits
(accumulated losses).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period/year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax”
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
(Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the Group has a business
model for its investment properties whose objective is
to hold all its investment properties so as to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group's
investment properties have been measured based on the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amounts entirely
through use.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of investment properties. Note
17 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties.
The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2018 was RMB5,814,375,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB5,424,780,000) as set out in note 17.

(b) Estimated net realisable value on properties held for
sale

In determining whether allowances should be made to
the Group's properties held for sale, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment and
the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the actual or
estimated selling price less estimated costs to complete
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sales). An
allowance is made if the estimated net realisable value is
less than the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable
value on properties held for sale is less than expected as
a result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
allowances for impairment losses may result if the net
realisable value is less than the carrying amount.

The carrying amount of properties held for sale as at 31

December 2018 was RMB5,736,201,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB2,435,166,000) as set out in note 24.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and finance lease
receivables

Before the application of HKFRS 9, impairment losses
on trade receivables and finance lease receivables are
assessed and provided based on management'’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
The Directors have assessed the creditworthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer or
borrower. Any increase or decrease in impairment losses
on trade receivables and finance lease receivables would
affect profit or loss in future periods.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired
which individually assessed for ECL, the Group uses
provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. The Group uses debtors’
ageing to assess the impairment for its customers
which grouped by different segment in relation to
its operations because these customers consist of a
large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The provision rates that applied
are based on historical default rates from respective
segments taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available
without undue costs or effort.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. Different default rates are
applied to the customers in different businesses. In
addition, receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 48 and 28,
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of unlisted investments in China Huacai
(as defined in note 23(d))

For the year ended 31 March 2018, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost was considered to be objective evidence of
impairment of the Group's AFS investment. When an AFS
investment was considered to be impaired, cumulative
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income were reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

Impairment loss on AFS investment was assessed and
recognised based on the management’s regular review
of recoverability of the AFS investment. A considerable
level of management'’s estimation was exercised by the
Directors when assessing the valuation of the unlisted
fund investments. As at 31 March 2018, impairment of
AFS investment amounting to RMB133,877,000 had been
recognised in profit or loss.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018, the change in fair value of RMB154,470,000
has been recognised as a deemed contribution by
controlling shareholder. Details are disclosed in note 23.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Provision of financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were of the opinion
that the financial condition of Hareon Companies
(defined in note 38) had significantly deteriorated
with certain of their debts are default in payment. The
Directors considered that it is probable the creditors will
demand the Group to repay the outstanding principal
and interest of the subject debts on behalf of Hareon
Companies under the financial guarantees provided by
the Group.

On 26 June 2018, three statutory demands were served
on the Company by China Cinda (defined in note 38) to
demand the Company to repay the three outstanding
debts totalling of RMB278,153,000 on behalf of Hareon
Companies pursuant to the financial guarantee contract.
Therefore, the Directors consider that it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation arising from the
financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had recognised a
provision of RMB496,793,000 which was the best estimate
of the Group on the probable cash outflow of the
obligations under the financial guarantee contracts.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018, the outstanding bank loans pursuant to the
financial guarantee contracts are settled, accordingly,
the Group was no longer liable to any of those financial
guarantee contracts. Consequently, Group has reversed
the impairment of financial guarantee contracts. Details
are set out in note 38.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATION (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Provision of financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, a bank loan drawn from the
banking facilities associated with the financial guarantees
which is previously provided by the Group in favour of
Yingkou Coastal Bank (defined in note 54(c)) to secure
the facilities granted to an independent third party, is
still outstanding and past due, and accordingly being
in default. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, the
Group is obligated to compensate the holder for loss
suffered when no repayment of the loan happens. As
a result, the Group reassessed the financial guarantee
liabilities and recognised the provision in aggregate of
RMB34,478,000 in profit or loss.

In addition, the Group has provided guarantees to
several related parties for credit facilities in aggregate
sum of RMB2,978 million in favour of Yingkou Coastal
Bank. Among the guaranteed facilities, aggregate
amount of RMB2,778 million are drawn by those related
parties and remitted to the Group, with details set out
in note 43. The Directors were of the opinion that the
remaining guaranteed facilities drawn by those related
parties are virtually certain to default given the financial
position of those related parties. Accordingly, the
remaining amounts are recognised as financial guarantee
liabilities at 31 December 2018.
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6. REVENUE 6. Wi
A. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 A ZE-N\FOA-BAE=Z-N
December 2018 Ft+-A=+—HHYE
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () BEFEXWKmDHE
customers

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
“E-\EMA-REZE-\F+ZR=+-BEH

Property
Trading  development
and and Solar Financial
Printing logistics investments  photovoltaic services Total
g% VL
Bl RUK REE  ABEAR BB @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®Tn ARETr AR AR%Tn ARETx
Type of goods and services &R R R ER
Sales of: HE
- solar photovoltaic products ~ ~XBG X RER s = = 51,548 = 51,548
- printing products - IRl 551,540 - - - - 551,540
- petrochemical products -FRltER - 1,910,464 - - - 1,910,464
- properties o - - 77,222 - - 71,222
Processing services NIkH%
-solar photovoltaic products ~ —AG#XIRER - - - 18,393 - 18,393
Total revenue from contracts ~ BEA#AIE
with customers 551,540 1,910,464 77,222 69,941 - 2,609,167
Finance lease income HERBUWA - - - - 953 953
Interest income from RERE 7RI BMA
provision of finance - - - - 6,590 6,590
Rental income from property ~ #1E#E 7HE WA
investments - - 22,139 - - 22,139
Dividend from securities EEREZIRE
investments - - - - 5,081 5,081
Others iy - - 5,555 - - 5,555
Total revenue gy 551,540 1,910,464 104,916 69,941 12,624 2,649,485
Geographical markets HEMS
The PRC l:F 163,629 1,907,159 77,222 69,941 - 2,217,951
The United States of America Bl
("Us") 225,257 - - - - 225,257
Hong Kong i 42,336 1,558 - - - 43,894
European countries ERMEIR 71,788 1,424 - - - 73,212
Other countries EEFx 48,530 323 = = S 48,853
Total ey 551,540 1,910,464 77,222 69,941 - 2,609,167

AEEXBEFANZEHMEK
N — (RS R RERR o

All of the Group's revenue from contracts with
customers are recognised at point in time.

138 ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—E-NFAR-AE

—E-NEF A= —HEH

6. REVENUE (Continued)

A. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

B \FH

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Assembling and sales of solar photovoltaic products,
and sales of petrochemical products

The Group assemblies and sells solar photovoltaic
products, and trades petrochemical products
mainly to customers in the PRC.

Revenue from sales of solar photovoltaic products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being the time when the goods have
been shipped/delivered to the customer’s specific
location (“Delivery”). The normal credit term is 30
days upon Delivery.

Revenue from sales of petrochemical products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being the time when the customer
draws out the petrochemical products from the
Group's warehouse or storage location (“Draw
Out").

Following Delivery or Draw Out, the customer
has full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods and has the full
responsibility on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon
Delivery or Draw Out.

For the trading of petrochemical products business,
the Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits range from 10% to 20% of total
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit
before the petrochemical products are delivered
to the customer, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract and setoff with
the total contract sum upon the sales transaction is
completed.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

140

A.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Manufacturing and sales of printing products

The Group manufactures and sells printing
products to customers in the PRC, US, Hong Kong
and other overseas countries.

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of printing products, the relevant printing products
specified in the contracts are based on customer’s
specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
Group concluded that the Group does not have an
enforceable right to payment prior to transfer of the
relevant printing products to customers.

Revenue from sales of printing products is
therefore recognised at a point in time when the
completed printing products is shipped/delivered
to customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the printing products and the
Group has present right to payment and collection
of the consideration is probable.

The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days in
accordance with the invoice date.

The Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits range from 10% to 20% of total
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit
before the manufacturing process commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract and setoff with the total contract sum upon
the sales transaction is completed.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

A. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

B \FH

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Provision of processing services for solar
photovoltaic products

These contracts entered into with customers
for assembling solar photovoltaic products, raw
materials are provided directly by the customers
to carry out assembling services by Group
(i.e. processing services) for completion of the
productions. The relevant photovoltaic products
specified in the contracts are based on customer’s
specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the
Group concluded that the Group does not have
an enforceable right to payment prior to the
completion of assembling services and delivered
to customers. The normal credit term is 30 days in
accordance with the invoice date.

Revenue from the provision of processing services
for solar photovoltaic products is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed
solar photovoltaic products is delivered to
customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the solar photovoltaic
products and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on
sales of properties, the relevant properties
specified in the contracts are based on customer’s
specifications with no alternative use.

6.

W zs (45)

A.

—E-\FOA-REZT-N\
E+-A=+—AHR#E)

(i) BFEXNHBHEME(E)

A G BE L A E m mI I TR
%

%3 B AR S KBS BE IR EE fm £
BPAUMAHTE  BFHE
BERERM L A A EEET
FTEREEMAZERBE(BMNT
R - BHTRENERRL
REMDERELPER » A&
HipBE R Ag - KERHEES
WIGRR  AEERS - EEK
AERBEZNTEPR - &
5 [ £ BN R A BT 58 1) 0
TTHER - —REEHA/ERNE
S HHM30A -

Bt - R AFEEE S IRE m
MITRBHOMKERE TR
(BRE L NEm RN T &8P e
B (Al PERF AR
S fm 12 11V M T AN 5= [ 9 76 LB
R SRR I m] BE AR (X
B FEIE) R

HEVXE

HEMEREETPITLMNALN
meE - ARTRENEED X
TEREPENR  WEEME
KAz -

141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

6. REVENUE (Continued)
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A.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Sales of properties (Continued)

Taking into consideration of the relevant contract
terms, the legal environment and relevant legal
precedent, the Group concluded that the Group
does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of residential
properties is therefore recognised at a point in
time when the completed property is delivered to
customers, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property
and the Group has present right to payment and
collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives 30% to 50% of the contract
value from customers when they sign the sales
and purchase agreement. For the customers who
use mortgage loans provided by the banks, the
remaining portion of the total contract value will
be paid to the Group from the banks once the
customers meet the requirements of the banks. The
payment is generally made by the bank before the
delivery of property to the buyer. Such advance
payment schemes result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction
period while construction work of properties is still
ongoing.

The Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the amount
of the contract liabilities during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.
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e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE
6. REVENUE (Continued)

A. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligation for contracts with

customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for sales of properties
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2018 and the expected timing of

recognising revenue are as follows:
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Sales of
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HEME
RMB'000
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Within one year
More than one year but not more than

two years

More than two years

—%FR
—EWF

MEFERE

138,985

833,341
1,784

974,110

Except for the above, all of the Group's other
remaining performance obligations for contracts
with customers are for original expected duration
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

144

B.

6. WE(%E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B. BE=-Z-N\F=ZA=+—-HL
FE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as AEBERFERNZBEZZHTWT -
follows:
Year ended
31 March
2018
BE-Z—N\F
=A=+—H
LFE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Sales of: HE -
- solar photovoltaic products — KGR RER 760,247
— printing products — DRl & 658,104
— electronic parts and devices —EFEHRAEH 390,233
— petrochemical products —AftEm 1,977,006
— industrial equipment —T¥XE 35,758
- properties L /E 49,596
Finance lease income EEAERA 17,928
Interest income from provision of finance RERE ZF B WA 21,586
Rental income from property investments MEREZHEKA 3,356
Dividend from securities investments BHREZRE 7,787
3,921,601
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by different business lines. Information reported
to the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment is prepared on this
basis. The Group has identified the following five reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as follows:

° Printing: Sales and manufacturing of high quality multi-
colour packaging products, carton boxes, books,
brochures and other paper products

° Trading and logistics: Trading, logistics and supply chain

management

° Property development and investments: Property
development and investments

o Solar photovoltaic: Sales and manufacturing of solar
photovoltaic products

o Financial services: Comprised of provision of finance

through money lending services; provision of finance
through finance lease; provision of securities brokerage
services and investment activities in equity securities,
funds, bonds and asset management services and other
related services

In addition to the operating segments described above,
each of which constitutes a reportable segment, the Group
had other operating segments which included provision of
medical management services and sales and manufacturing of
industrial equipment in the PRC for the year ended 31 March
2018. The sales and manufacturing of industrial equipment
business was suspended after the disposal of Zhejiang Linhai
(defined in note 49(b)) in the year ended 31 March 2018.
The medical management services business has also been
suspended as the Group has completed the services contract
with the counterparty during the year ended 31 March 2018.

None of these segments met the quantitative thresholds for
the reportable segments in both period/year. Accordingly, all
of the above operating segments were grouped as “All other
segments”.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. BEIB(E)
Segment revenue and results DS R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results INTRIZARED BRI 2 R E B W R &
by reportable segments: EEDH
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 ZE2-\FEA—-BEZZE-N\F+=A
=t+—-HHHE
Property
Trading development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments’ Al other
Printing  logistics investments photovoltaic ~ services total  segments Total
nERR HEAD X

AW ERRWE  REE ABEXR  SRER g Rfa8 it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARWTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARET:

Segment revenue HHkE
Revenue from external customers  RESNSRFAIME 551,540 1,910,464 104,916 69,941 12,624 2,649,485 - 2,649,485
Segment profit (loss) AHER(EB) 914 (12,380) 102,564 (187,358 (357)  (96,617)  (32,672)  (129,289)
Unallocated amounts AOREE
Change in fair value of hRERZ
convertible bonds ATERY
- derivative component -frEEs 118,374
Corporate administrative PEARER
expenses (142,582)
Corporate other income TEEMRA 3451
Finance costs HHER (444,252)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBA AN 20
Loss on disposal of associates  (HEHE N TR (8,637)
Other gains and losses At REE (24)
Reversal of impairment for RESBERGOAE
financial quarantee contracts 261,713
Share of loss from associates  AHEERFEE (8,371)
Group's loss before tax REEZRENER (349,597)
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7.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2018

Property

Trading  development

and and

Printing logistics ~ investments
VEGES

OB EmRWE  REE
RMB'OOO  RMBO0D  RMB'000
ARRTR ARETR ARETR

EEAH(E)

DR ERFEE(E)

BE-Z—-N\F=A=+—HLEFE

Reportable
Solar  Financial  segments’  All other
photovoltaic ~ services total  segments Total
—Jtﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ g

ABRAR  SREH g Rnd it
RBO0 RO  RVBCO  RVBODD  RMBCN
ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

Segment revenue Aalia
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMIZEPEME 658,104 2,367,239 52952 760,247 47301 3,885,843 3758 3921601
Segment profit (loss) it EE) 914 37293 (140975 (130,041) (93614) (326423 (8,838 (335,261)
Unallocated amounts AAEE
Change in fair value of hRERL
convertible bonds ATEEY
- derivative component B iE) (74484
Corporate administrative TETHER
expenses (91,398)
Corporate other income REEMRA 8,75
Finance costs HHER (163,681)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEHBATINE 188,829
Gain on disposal of associates  HEBEN TN 2811
Other gains and losses ElhzREE 2280
Provision for financial quarantee  BITSIERAHIRE
contracts (484122)
Share of profits from associates ~ A{EBE R AT el
Group’s loss before tax REEZRHABE (925,030)
The accounting policies of the operating segments and the KED 2 GETRR AR BRI 4PT i

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each operating
segment without allocation of gains or losses arising from
change in fair value of convertible bonds - derivative
component, corporate administrative expenses, corporate
other income, finance costs, (loss) gain on disposal of
associates, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated
other gains and losses, reversal of impairment (provision) for
financial guarantee contracts and share of (loss) profits from
associates. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REDFI(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEUNE R EE(E)
Other segment information Hith 5 SER
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 —E-N\ENBE-BE=-E-NE+=A
=+—BH™E
Property
Trading  development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments’  All other
Printing ~logistics ~investments  photovoltaic services total  segments Unallocated Total
VEEES EECHE] 28
A8 EERUR RRE  ABEXR SREH B RAE KSR it
RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB‘000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
Amounts included in the measure 23 AABERT
of segment profit or loss or AHREZHE SR
segment assets:
Depreciation and amortisation BnirE R
for the period 26,940 7987 6,878 44914 342 87,061 - 4,833 91,894
Additions to non-current assets HRAELRYAE
during the period 84,262 90,605 176,259 295,354 32 646512 - 862 647,374
Additions to non-current assets BRERKENELA
through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ FEFFEHEE
during the period 62,394 - 189 199,128 - 380,433 - - 380,433
Impairment loss of WTREZHESS
- trade receivables - ERRUGE 9,069 - - 10303 - 193n - - 1930
- other receivables - EpRisuE - 917 7,468 - 126 8,511 - 1,239 9,750
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, ~ HEME « BERARE
plant and equipment Lb&)ER (541) s 201 e E (340) s % (244)
Change in fair value of investment ~ RENEZATES
properties - - (192,015) - - (192,015 - - (192,015
Change in fair value of financial BROTETAERL
assets at FVTPL SREE/DTERD - - - - 9416 9476 - - 9476
Loss on disposal of debt instruments  HERATFE AL{h2
at FVTOC AlE ERTARR - - - - 2560 2560 - - 250
Interest income on bank depositsand - {73 kBT
pledged bank deposits FRZHEMA (81) (705) (2968 (1,337 (170)  (5.261) - 78) (5339
Interest income from finance lease ~ RERERERUEEL
receivables HEMA - - - - (953) (953) - - (953)
Interest income from loan receivables KB ENE 2 FIE A S = 5 - (6,590 (6,590) 5 S 6,590)
Impairment loss in respect of property, BB/ « BERRE
plant and equipment LfEER - - - 68,69 - 88699 s - 88699
Impairment of properties held for sale  {ETEMEAE
(included in cost of sales and services) (REE RIRHE
HARAR) - - 29,050 - - 29,050 - - 29050
Impairment of deposits for EEREYIipa
machineries modification and RERE
enhancement - - - 25,000 - 25000 - - 25000
Impairment of goodwll BEHE S = 5 5,846 S 5,846 5 S 5,846

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. RBEQI(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PR BERES(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Bt EER(B)
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_Z-N\F=A=+—HLEFE
Property
Trading ~ development Reportable
and and Solar  Financial ~ segments”  All other
Prnting logistics investments ~ photovoltaic ~ services total  segments  Unallocated Total
NERE EE 2%
OF  BHRMRE kg AB#AR  2RRE o Absd AR Eh)
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Amounts included in the measure  E3AABERT
of segment profit or loss or APEEHEZER:
segment assets:
Depreciation and amortisation EnFEREY
for the year 4209 8,995 523 44,898 290 103,668 6,141 3347 113,156
Additions to non-current assets ERREFNDEE
during the year 59,113 2,088 850,884 184,075 8871 1,105,031 0,597 825 1127453
Additions to non-current assets ERERKENELA
through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ FEETEER
during the year S = 61,157 S S 61,157 5 S 61,157
Alowance for bad debt on BARYIE BERE
trade receivables 695 - - - - 695 - - 695
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, ~ HEWE - BRERRE
plant and equipment ) B2 (36) - 3 = = 303 = (13) Al
Change in fair value of investment ~ RENEZATES
properties - - 96,948 - - 9,948 - - 96,948
Change in fair value of held for BEBERE/ATE
trading investments 28 = = = = (639) (639) - - (639)
Realised gain on AFS investments A/t ERE 7 FEE
i - = - e (524) (524) = = (524)
Interest income on bank depositsand - 7 EH R FFTHR
pledged bank deposits Tz HBMA 209 (1,087) (6,007) (1,344 (378 (10,908) 2,036) (1633) (14,577)
Interest income from finance lease ~ REBEREENFE
receivables ZHEHA S = = - (1798) (17928 5 S (17928)
Interest income from loan receivables K EENET 2F8 A - - - - e (21,58) - - 158y
Impairment of AFS investments I EREZHE - - - - IR 13387 i - 13387
Impairment loss in respect of property, 8% * BERREL
plant and equipment HEER S s = 114,083 - 114,083 5 - 114,083
149

B \FH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) BEDE(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PR BERESE(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Ht 5 5EHR (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities Z]K‘i BrRENABRBEBRUBKESIHES 2
by reportable segments: SHTF
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F Z—\F
t=A=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Segment assets DEEE
Printing ENfmY 603,543 515,484
Trading and logistics B 5 R 558,060 620,470
Property development and investments PE R NIRE 12,361,690 8,731,430
Solar photovoltaic NI P AN 1,182,627 1,107,569
Financial services % AR TS 390,673 362,626
15,096,593 11,337,579
All other segments 2 ERE fh 53 &P 9,431 41,313
Unallocated assets A EE 656,511 385,664
Consolidated total assets IEEBEE 15,762,535 11,764,556
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7. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 7. REDE(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SRR B R EE(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Ht 5 5EHR (&)
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\EF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—8B Z=A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Segment liabilities PHEE
Printing ENfmY 727,987 755,536
Trading and logistics B 5 R 631,828 381,079
Property development and investments ME R NIRE 4,705,876 3,589,838
Solar photovoltaic NN 944,393 1,397,619
Financial services & RRAR 136,294 220,818
7,146,378 6,344,890
All other segments 2 ERE fh 53 &P 3,188 3,169
Unallocated liabilities Ao aiE 5,982,249 2,734,976
Consolidated total liabilities RAMAE 13,131,815 9,083,035
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BERSIEIALADIHSEER :
allocating resources between segments:
o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than o RBOEBERANBANT IR
corporate assets and interests in associates and interests EReaE E%Zﬁé mIN FTEEE
in joint ventures; and BOMELEDE + K&
. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRI EN FIEEEENERE
than corporate liabilities. 4R AR R o
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the US.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the location of the operations
of relevant group entities. The following table sets out
information about the geographical location of revenue from

EEAH(E)

THEEREE(E)
B EH

REENKET
B o

ENMHAEEE - REMX

AEERBIMNBEFPZEFBEEMTIER
EPMMHES c ARAREIERBEE
MERDEREHRESEEBNREUESR
5l o TREINIRBINBEF ZEFKERIE
MBEERMIBLEER

external customers and non-current assets:

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets*

RE I
BEFZEXE FRBEE
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\£ —tF
MMA—H mA—H
EZE-N\F ZEZ-)N\F —E-N\F — N\
+=ZA=t+—HB =A=+—H +=ZBA=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMETF T ARMBTT ARMF T ARBT T
The PRC s 2,246,246 3,302,353 7,584,309 6,678,740
The US EE 225,257 283,817 157 98
Hong Kong B 50,833 237,875 15,720 19,614
European countries BUOMBI R 73,212 59,428 = =
Other countries HiE=x 53,937 38,128 = =
2,649,485 3,921,601 7,600,186 6,698,452
e Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax & IRBEETERERIAREEHESR
assets. Ee
Information about major customers BEETEZEFHER

The Group’s customer base is diversified and none of the
customers whom have transactions with the Group exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue during the current period and
prior year.

AEEEBZUIENBEEER - RAHHE
FBAFE HBERFHEALSENRSHE
BAEBEERER10% o
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HttlmKEE
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
mA—H MmA—A
B-E-NF ZET-)N\HF
+t=A=+—-8 =A=t+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Amortisation of financial guarantee BT TSR G #0883
contracts (note 38) (F17%38) = 22,129
Change in fair value of financial assets BRAVEFABRZ EREE
at FVTPL ZAHEES (9.476) -
Change in fair value of held for trading FEEEREZATEE
investments - 639
Exchange (loss) gain, net PE 3, (B9 18 ) W s % 58 (297) 151
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREZ
plant and equipment Weas (B518) 244 (290)
Loss on disposal of debt instruments HEZRAFEGTALMEE Y S
at FVTOC| ZEBITAZER (2,560) =
Gain on disposal of AFS investments HEHEERERS - 524
Impairment of deposits for HER U RIRA 2 e RE
machineries modification and (KtzE22)
enhancement (note 22) (25,000) -
Loss on disposal of club membership HESMeHEEE
(note 19) (Kt:E19) (63) S
(37,152) 23,153
OTHER INCOME 9. HftA
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —T—+tF
mA—H MmA—A
EZE-N\FE ZE_ZT)\F
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARETTT
Interest income on bank deposits and BITFERRBRITHEAER
pledged bank deposits ZMEHA 5,339 14,577
Others Hip 17,955 11,796
23,294 26,373
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mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB M
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
RA—H MA—H
EZE-N\F ZFEZT)\F
+t=A=+—-H8 =A=t+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings and RITERREMERKZFE
other borrowings 377,687 354,165
Interest on obligations under finance leases FI & EHAEF S 419 -
Interest on significant financing REMEMELEEAREKD
component arising from pre-sales of ZH B
properties 29,931 -
Imputed interest arising on interest-free  REBEER AR 22 EERK
borrowings from immediate holding ZIHEF B
company 38,388 15,858
Imputed interest arising on obligations BMELBAEESE 2 HETNE
under financing arrangements 109,291 -
Effective interest expenses on AR ESRZ ERFERAX
convertible bonds (note 37) (Ktz£37) 95,379 61,692
Effective interest expenses on NAEHF CERNERX
corporate bonds 23,590 29,177
Other finance charges Hin B & R 23,427 5,961
698,112 466,853
Less: interest expenses from bank S A E R RIS AR
borrowings and other borrowings KERITERLEM
recognised in cost of sales and AR AR
services S (2,418)
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B FERYEENMEE
investment properties under EEIEEYE EEFR
construction/properties under HEME(ME)
development for sales (note) (253,860) (300,754)
444,252 163,681
Note: The borrowing costs of general borrowings have been capitalised at ffet - —RERZERKKRRENE10% (=2

154

a rate of 10% (31 March 2018: 10%) per annum to expenses on the

qualifying assets.

—NEFE=ZA=+—H 10%)ERNLAEEER

AEMRX
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1. FIfSHiExX

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E—tF
A—H MmA—A
ETE-NF ZEZT—N\F
t=A=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Current tax: BIEARIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH 124 3,701
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EATER 2,042 27,381
Other jurisdictions HuibaEwE R - 186
2,166 31,268
Under (over) provision in prior years: DAFEEZBETC(BeEEE) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB (323) (1,216)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR ETER (2,118) 2,503
(2,441) 1,287
Deferred tax (note 41) EER IR (Hat4a1) 46,789 (29,130)
46,514 3,425

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the current period and prior year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the current period and

prior year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

B \FH

EB RS TR AN E K A S T {5 E R
TR AIA16. 5% T B5H & -

RIBPECERETE(TEEMERED
REZERFBEERGED - hEMEA R
REARAFEFE 2 BRIGR25%

Hip AlEERVIRIRAMAERER 2 RTT

BEHE -
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FrigHifx (&)
The income tax expense for the period/year can be reconciled H, FRETEBIA A

156

to the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

HEAE

SN

s N EAM

E2HRERARGRATEBRERIT -

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —ET—tF
A—H MmA—A
ETE-N\F =ZEZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARETTT
Loss before tax PR AT RS 18 (349,597) (925,030
Notional tax on profit before tax, BRI a2 BEMIE - REA
calculated at the rates applicable to TN B R ERE R )i A Hy B R
profits in the jurisdictions concerned g (94,457) (169,521)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FFHUW B M E » FAIFEEF
tax purposes ZHBETE 88,905 123,332
Tax effect of income not taxable for FHRWENME  BEARREA
tax purposes 2B E (63,560) (6,472)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERZ AR EREZE 2 A
differences not recognised A 103 28,520
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBMIEBEEE 2 RIBEFE 119,504 26,501
Utilisation of tax losses previously FAUERERZBHIBEEE
not recognised (1,540) (222)
(Over) underprovision in respect of AFFE (B BET e
prior years (2,441) 1,287
Income tax expense FriS i il 2 46,514 3,425
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

12. LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 12. i FEBR
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —tF
A—H mA—H
—E-N\F ZEZZT)N\F
t=ZRA=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Loss for the period/year is arrived after A, FEER TSR (GTA)
charging (crediting): AT &RIRRES
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) ExWe (MFE13) 11,037 15,313
Staff cost, excluding Directors’ BTIKA  TEFEEEHE :
remuneration:
Salaries, wages and other benefits f'i TEREMER 203,858 267,751
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {REFIEHEIHE R 24,460 30,508
Total staff costs 48 TR 239,355 313,572
Rental income from investment BEMEZHBHA
properties:
Gross rental income from investment wREMEZ BHESWA
properties (22,139) (3,356)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred 5 i/ FRELHES WA Z
for investment properties that WEME L BEEE
generated rental income during X
the period/year 1,834 278
(20,305) (3,078)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F&{J 0 & B # 5% 5,588 4,320
Auditor’s remuneration % EREN N
— Audit services —EFH R 6,367 2,423
- Non-audit services —IFEF R 272 316
Cost of inventories recognised as FERAERERY
an expense 2,466,174 3,536,848
Impairment of properties held for sales FIELEYMERE
(included in cost of sales and services) (BIEHE MR ) 29,050 -
Depreciation for property, plant and W BEIEREITE
equipment 86,306 108,836
Interest income FE WA 12,882 39,514
Operating lease rental on land and T RBREYHKEHER S
buildings 19,510 22,141
Research and development expenses fEER 5,614 21,213
—E—)\FRH 157
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. EE - FETHAEREEZ
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS v B
Directors and Chief Executive EERFETHAE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors and THRENKENEEERFETHAER
the Chief Executive were as follows: 2
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 —E-N\FOA-HBHE=ZB-N\F

tZA=+—HBHH

Retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
and other bonus scheme
Fee  allowances (Note a) contributions Total
HeR HiERa BIRER
e Hit2a (Hiita) HE 38 @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMT:R

Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Meng AEE - 5,618 - = 5,618
Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive) (Note b) 5B &+ (FTHR£5() (Hfztb) - 1,406 - 12 1,418
Mr. Guo Song (Deputy Chief Executive) ~ SME% 4 (BIfTH4H) - 1,325 - - 1,325
Mr. He Shufen (Note b) fAIfi% % 4 (Hfitb) - 1,100 - 98 1,198
Mr. Zeng Hongbo (Note d) SRR (A7) = 777 S 8 785
Independent Non-executive Directors BV HFHTEE
Mr. Zheng Bailin EnmiE 231 S - - 231
Mr. Shen Ruolei hEEEAE 231 - - - 231
Mr. Pun Chi Ping EAT 231 - - - 231
693 10,226 - 118 11,037
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13. &5 ~§Eﬁ£ﬁz)&§&1§éZ
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) N (&)
Directors and Chief Executive (Continued) BEERFETHAE(E)
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_Z—N\F=A=+—HItFE
Retirement
Salary benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fee allowances bonus  contributions Total
ek RINER
ik Hii BBiEa HESA @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive Directors HiITEE

Mr. Meng ks = 7,364 = = 7,364

Ms. Zhang Ye (Chief Executive) (Note b)  REEZ L ({THEE,) (A1itb) = 639 = 4 643

Mr. Wu Jiwei ("Mr. Wu") (Note c) REERE((REE] (Witc) - 4176 - 15 4,191

Mr. Guo Song (Deputy Chief Executive) ~ S8% 4 (21T HER) - 1,579 - - 1,579

Mr. He Shufen (Note b) [R5 (Hatb) - 1,007 - 10 1,017

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUHE{TEE

Mr. Zheng Bailin Fmmrs 173 = = - 173

Mr. Shen Ruolei NERRA 173 = = = 173

Mr. Pun Chi Ping R e 173 - - - 173
519 14,765 - 29 15,313

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors waived MABRAEFE  TEFZITHAER

any emoluments during the current period and prior year. R E RN

During the current period and prior year, no emoluments were RABRAGFE  AEEBESFEM

paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement FOTEMES - (EAMAREEIMA

to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of RNEERH RS RERBERMIE -

office.
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

160

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the individual
performance of the Directors and performance of the Group as a
whole.

(b)  These Directors are appointed on 20 December 2017 and Ms. Zhang
Ye is designated as a joint chief executive officer of the Company.

(c) On 30 March 2018, Mr. Wu is resigned as an executive director and
the joint chief executive officer of the Company.

(d) On 1 July 2018, Mr. Zeng Hongbo is appointed as an executive
director and chief risk officer of the Company.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as Directors.

13. B8 - TEAHRABRESS
()

EERTIETHRAEE)

(a)

BEEAN2EERNEERARERERR
MEE

ZEEEN_FT—tLEF+-_A-_t+HEZ
£ ML TEEERARBZBEITR
HEL -

RZE-NF=RA=+H RELEBHEELD
BIITE R RBEITRAER

R-ZE-NFLA—H W BARLTEERE
RPTESEHRARREFEREE -

ERRTEFEZHFHERSTREEARR]
RASENEBMIRER 2 REERE

FABTIFMITEE C HFNEREIERE
ERHEZRBER -
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, there were five (year ended 31 March 2018: five)
directors whose emoluments are included in the disclosures
above. No emoluments of the non-directors individuals
should be disclosed for the current period and prior year.
The emoluments of Mr. Zeng Hongbo of RMB418,000 (year
ended 31 March 2018: the emoluments of Ms. Zhang Ye of
RMB1,613,000 and Mr. He Shufen of RMB980,000) prior to his
appointment as director of the Company for the period from 1
April 2018 to 31 December 2018 were as follows:

AEBREZRSFMALHT  BERSA(E
E-E-N\FZAZ+—RALEFE: 1R)
EE HENFHR LEXHEE - RABHK
NAFE  BEFEZTATZHEMAETHU
FE BT N\FNA—RAE=-ZT—N
FH+-—A=Z+—BHM - CAAREEZH
BAARE418000T(BE-_T—NF=
A=+—HLFE  REZTZHFMHAA
R#1,613,0007T & o] 35 58 & 2 H A A
R#980,0007T) + EEZTAESAINE
BT -

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —F—+tF

mA—H mA—A

E=2-N\F BT )\F
t=A=+—-HB =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT R ARBETTT

Salaries and other allowances e R EAERL 414 1,940
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  RKEFIETEIHE R 4 35
Discretionary bonus IS IEAT - 618
418 2,593
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14.

162

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to shareholders of the Company is based on the
following data:

14. BRE#E

2 TGRS IR AR R M8 S 1R TV AR
AT BUBE HAS ¢

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E—tF
mA—H mA—H
B-E-NF ZEZZT-)N\HF
+=ZA=+t—H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARETTT
Loss B8
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted FARFTESIREARL#EER
loss per share (loss for the period/year Z BB (AR R IR R EN
attributable to shareholders BN FEEER)
of the Company) (388,926) (931,079)
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-)N\F
+=A=+—8B =HA=+—8H
Number of shares RGOEE
Number of share for the purposes of AReTESRERK
basic and diluted loss per share BEEBE s ROEE 60,669,200 60,669,200

In determining the number of ordinary shares in issue for
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Share Consolidation (as
defined in note 44) has been regarded as completed since 1
April 2017.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds since their assumed conversion would have anti-dilutive
impact for the current period and prior year.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average
market price for shares for the current period and prior year.

BEEBE_E-\F=ZA=+—HILEFE
ZEBTEBREAR  BROAMH(EERR
M4 R AEE T —EFEUA—HR
B °

AEEREEERY MRRERARE
AEBzABEES  RE/KEZRR
RN AMEATFEELEREEYE -

AESREEERY TRRITEARRZ
BRE REAREBREZITERERAN
HNAEEERDZFHHES -
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ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - BERZE
Plant Furniture Computer
and and and office Motor Construction-
Buildings ~ machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles  in-progress Total
HAR EfR
BEY  BEREE EEHE BAZERE nE EEIR -y
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  AREBTR ARETT ARETRT ARBTT ARETR ARET:
COST KA
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FNA-A 710,957 718,490 32,581 59,953 32,443 58,318 1,612,742
Additions AE 28,498 41,652 5932 7,168 7,261 47,407 137,918
Reclassification EFNE 28,404 = = = = (28,404) =
Disposals HE = (3,093 (74) (1,360) (2,625) - (7,152)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 49(b)) {11 M @2 &)(Azt49(b)) (10,849) (3,590) (3) (404) (379) (33,784) (49,009)
Exchange adjustment EX A% (148) (15,176) (776) (1,948) (702) - (18,750)
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NF=A=1-H 756,862 738,283 37,660 63,409 35,998 43,537 1,675,749
Additions NE 39,570 108,945 121 2,192 7113 210,454 368,395
Acquisition of subsidiaries IEEIB 2 A (H17249(2)

(note 49(a)) - - 175 29 108 185,197 185,509
Reclassification BHNE 21,785 s s s s (21,785) =
Disposals fE - (7,915) (209) (244) (497) - (8,865)
Disposal of subsidiaries EME R (Hit9b)

(note 49(b)) - - - (21) - - (21)
Exchange adjustment B 1,843 11,907 635 1,942 591 = 16,918
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+-A=+-A 820,060 851,220 38,382 67,307 43,313 417,403 2,237,685
ACCUMULATED S ERAE

DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tENA—A 140,937 352,566 13,382 47,518 9,39% - 563,797
Provided for the year FREE 46,726 45,743 5,056 5412 5,899 - 108,836
Disposals HE - (2,519) (38) (754) (646) - (3,.957)
Impairment loss recognised ~ REZHRZRESR

in profit or loss = 95,940 9,813 464 S 7,866 114,083
Derecognition upon disposals  F\L &M B A AR 4 HRER

of subsidiaries (note 49(b)) (Hiz#49b)) (1,430) (24) (1) (206) (18) = (1,679)
Exchange adjustment R AR (132) (13,844) (568) (1,695) (248) - (16,487)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\$=A=t-H 186,101 477,862 27,644 50,739 14,381 7,866 764,593
Provided for the period HREE 36,791 36,852 3,168 4,353 5,142 - 86,306
Disposals HE - (5,606) (42) (98) (240) - (5,986)
Impairment loss recognised in - A BR A ZFEER

profit or loss 17,285 51,414 - - - - 68,699
Derecognition upon disposals  FLE B A R4 1R

of subsidiaries (note 49(b)) (Hz+49b)) - - s (19) s = (19)
Exchange adjustment EHAE 1,822 11,457 576 1,375 591 - 15,821
At 31 December 2018 WZE-N\F+-A=1+-H 241,999 571,979 31,346 56,350 19,874 7,866 929,414
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZEB-\E+-A=1+-H 578,061 279,241 7,036 10,957 23,439 409,537 1,308,271
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+-H 570,761 260,421 10,016 12,670 21,617 35,671 911,156
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15.

164

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-
line basis, over the following period:

Buildings 20 - 50 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Computer and office equipment 5 -6 years
Motor vehicles 5 -6 years

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018, all of the
buildings are situated in the PRC and held under medium term
leases.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the Directors conducted a review of the Group's property,
plant and equipment and determined that a number of
assets are impaired, due to the suspension of a solar product
manufacturing plant and the proposed relocation of certain
solar photovoltaic production facilities to other factories in
the PRC. The recoverable amount of the property is subject
to impairment as at 31 December 2018 is carried at valuation
based on deprecated replacement cost approach carried
out by an independent qualified valuer, LCH (Asia Pacific
Surveyors Limited. The recoverable amount of the machinery
and equipment are expected to be minimal with reference
to the second-hand market and residual value. Accordingly,
impairment losses of RMB68,699,000 has been recognised in
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and determined that a number of assets were
impaired, due to closure of manufacturing plants in solar
segment and the recoverable amount from these idle assets
expected to be very minimal. Accordingly, impairment losses
of RMB114,083,000 had been recognised in respect of the
relevant assets, which are used in the Group's solar segment.
As at 31 December 2018, these impaired idle machineries with
original cost of RMB50,758,000 are temporarily stored in a
third party warehouse. As at 31 March 2018, the machineries
with original cost of RMB50,758,000 were stored in related
company’s warehouse and no fee is charged by the related
company. The related company is a company controlling by
Mr. Meng. The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets
have been determined on the basis of their residual value.

CWE - BENERRE(E)

EWE - BERREEE S R
T E A E (5 T A SR E R
SEIRA TR 8

BEY 20E 504
5 K ies 10E 154
RAREEHE 5% 104F
B RAE R 5ZE64E
RE 5264

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—BE=ZZF—N
F=ZRA=+—8 " FIEEEWHLRPEH
WA ERFAERA -

R_ZE—-N\FNA—HE-_Z—N\F+=
A=Z+—B#M ESHAEENYE -
BEREBETEN  YETETEAED
WA REAEE—EKGEEREIER
EREFBETAGREXREERES
FHRHEEMIR - R _ZE—N\E+_-A
=+—R - BREZYEZATREEER
BN A B EERMFSEITRAZE/MAERAR
ERTEEERNEFETZHETIER - &
BEFE_FMERFHREEB  TEHEER
Rz EeREEM - At - ERNER
TR E R B AR 68,699,0007T °

HE-_Z-N\E=A=1+—RBIFE &
EHASEZYE BERRGBETE
B YETEETEECHE  BRAXRK
DEMEERANRKEZEHEEE
A e B|EHRE - At EFA
SEHNRKRYEERANIEREEERR

K #114,083,000 T B R EEHE - R=F
—NE+—A=+—8 " ZEERLAE
AR M50,758,000 Tt E R ER BEHRE
BERR—MEZAHNRE - R=2T—N\
FZA=Z+—8 ZEERKETBARE
50,758,000 T Fy# 23 17 MUR BB B A RIEY B
EEBEBARYEKE - ZEH AR AR
BAEEERSINAR - HEEEMNTRES
HOREFSBEEET
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment with a total carrying amount of
RMB452,237,000 (31 March 2018: RMB708,470,000) has been
pledged to secure bill payables and borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 (note 53).

The carrying value of plant and machinery includes an amount
of RMB35,862,000 (31 March 2018: Nil) in respect of assets held
under finance leases (note 34).

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15.

16.

M~ BB R&RE(E)

ME - - BERKEBEZHAEMEEARE
452,237,000 ( ZE—NF=ZA=+—
H : AR#¥708,470,0007T) » R=ZZE—N
FH+-—A=Z+—HEEAREBZENE
B R G EIR (FIFES3) -

BEAEENEROEREREREHRER
BB ES T ARKE35862,000T (=%
—NE=A=+—8 : #)(Kt7E34) -

RN EERIE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NFE T N\F
+=A=+-B =A=t+—A
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARET T

Analysed for reporting purpose: BEREREMN IO :
— Current assets —RBEE 8,106 3,849
— Non-current assets —JEREBEE 302,247 147,562
310,353 151,411

At 31 December 2018, prepaid lease payments amounting to
RMB224,965,000 (31 March 2018: RMB129,634,000) have been
pledged to secure bill payables and borrowings of the Group
(note 53).

—E—)\FR

R=_ZFE—NFE+=-A=+—8" %Hﬁ
EFIBEE A AR224,965,0007T (=
—N\E=A=+—8: /\Eﬁ%129,634,ooo
) BEAREEZENERRERZK
R (PfF3ES3) ©
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

166

17. REY*

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
=5 'E
REWE REW= wst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBFT ARBTT
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FHA—H 76,779 4,629,394 4,706,173
Additions NE S 754,398 754,398
Additions through acquisition FRWE—FRRNEBAR
of a subsidiary (note 49(a)) NE (K15E49(a)) 61,157 = 61,157
Reclassification upon completion B IEEH DA
of construction 427,695 (427,695) -
Change in fair value of investment &Y% 2 A FEEE)
properties (163,311) 66,363 (96,948)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—NF=A=+—8H 402,320 5,022,460 5,424,780
Additions A= - 90,751 90,751
Disposal & (11,771) - (11,771)
Additions through acquisition R —FEH B AR
of subsidiaries (note 49(a)) NE (HaE49(a) 118,600 = 118,600
Change in fair value of investment &Y% v A F{EE
properties 7,651 184,364 192,015
At 31 December 2018 R N\&F
+=A=+-AH 516,800 5,297,575 5,814,375

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties. All of these
investment properties are under medium-term leases in the
PRC.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at
31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out on the date by
LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited (31 March 2018: Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited and
Avista Valuation Advisory Limited). These valuers are firms of
independent qualified valuers not connected with the Group
and have the appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

AEERBEERESAURBA S HE
BREEZMBNEER AR FERN
HETRTE  XYOBERAAREYE - FIA
AZEREMETINPEATHEERS -

AEEREVER-_ZE-—NF+-A
=t—BARZZE-NF=ZA=t+—HZA2
FEDLDERMETHEMARQF(ZF
—NF=ZA=+—H : FEBTEENL
RERAARAR RN E#HFABAGRRD
BDRZAMETNHEESL - ZFHE
MARAEEMEREZBLABRME
B - X EAEEEERIL SHE I 2 FE
WMERTRPHELR -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE(E)

Investment properties are measured at fair values for
financial reporting purpose. In estimating the fair value of an
investment property, the Group uses market observable data
to the extent it is available. The Group engages independent
qualified professional valuers to perform the valuation. The
management of the Group works closely with the valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of these investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s completed investment
properties carried at fair value of RMB398,200,000 (31 March
2018: RMB314,370,000) and investment properties under
construction at fair value of RMB5,297,575,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB5,022,460,000) have been pledged to secure bill payables
and borrowings of the Group (note 53).

As at 31 December 2018, completed investment properties at
fair value of RMB122,610,000 (31 March 2018: RMB155,200,000)
were arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions. As at 31 December 2018, completed investment
properties at fair value of RMB394,190,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB247,120,000) were arrived at based on income approach,
where the average monthly rent of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the market yield
expected by investors for these type of properties. The
average monthly rentals are assessed by reference to a long
term rental agreement entered with a tenant for all lettable
units of the properties. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar commercial properties in a land and
adjusted to take into account the market expectation from
property investors to reflect factors specific to the Group's
investment properties.

B \FH

HRBMBHRE RN REWER A FER
B ERFTRENENQFER - AKH
ERATBERATHRAMSIERNA AR
B AEBEBBEBELABEREEMEME
THE AEEEREEGEMZYS
15 WARAZBRIET A BENMETERE
ANE - AEBERANGBETEEBLIFE
KA BRI MM IZEIRANBAE - AL
AAREMENATE -

EMFAZEREMEITER MENR
SERERERERK AR -

RZZE—NF+ZRA=+—H  &x&H
ZERIKENMEDNRLATFEARYE
398,200,000 (== ZE—NFE=ZF=+—
B : AR#314,370,0007T) %8 © MEiE
BEMENRFERARYS,297,575,000
T(ZE—NF=ZA=+—HB: AR¥
5,022,460,0007T) * B A{EAREE 2 B
ERRER TR (MIEES3) -

RZE—NF+-_A=+—H8 BRT
2HREWEZ AFEAREK122,610,000
T(ZE—NF=ZA=Z+—HB: AR¥
155,200,0007T ) 752 & A 18 [F b B f &1+
WBEEMEZMIBERHERMER - K=
T N\F+-_A=Z+—H BEBIZERE
MEE 2 AR #394,190,0005T ( —ZF — )\ 4
—A=+—H : AR®247,120,0007T) &
FERBAEMER  MZEWENRE
AEEAENN TS ARSI REES
S EAYETERN TSRS TG
MAIR - P B AR IR EWENE
AEEAENLE2ERARATTVARE
HEHZEETMH - BBEEDEREGDN
— B HNEEREMENHEERSIEL
MRS REETE  WEHABENTRYER
BENTHHE  URBREREBNITE
MERBNBTEE -
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17.

168

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties under
construction with aggregate fair values of RMB1,936,675,000
(31 March 2018: RMB1,728,000,000) were arrived at based on
the residual approach, where the gross development values
are determined by reference to either (1) the monthly market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties; or (2) market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.
The valuations have further taken into account the accrued
construction cost and professional fees relevant to the stage
of construction as at the valuation date, the remainder of the
cost and fees expected to be incurred for completing the
development and developer’s profit margin.

For the remaining investment properties under construction
with a fair value of RMB3,360,900,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB3,294,460,000) as at 31 December 2018, the management
reviewed the construction status of the buildings and
structures of the subject investment properties and considered
that no market sales comparables were readily available for
such preliminary stage of construction. Therefore, the fair
value was arrived at by reference to the market value for the
existing use of the land, plus the current costs of construction,
less deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimisation.

17. REWE(E)

RZZE—N\F+-A=+—8 " B FE
B ANREE1,936,675000T( —E— NF=
A=+—8: AR#1,728,000,0007T ) &
TR EMFERFSREED  MBREE
BENEL2EMNZEMENZHBAHEERAE
UHNFATERS  WAREERZER
MENIBEIMISEI R KR - KQ)KE—
WA RAMAEENE 2 XS ERBN TS
B BEMERE - SEERNGEEDS
BRERBRARNETEERN A REEE
A AN EREESTEENES
PN N B A LA B 35 8 7 s ) SR T R 2R o

RZZE-—NFF+ZRA=+—8  EHTE
wEMEZ AFERBARYS3,360,900,000
T(ZE—NF=ZA=+—H8: AR¥
3,294,460,0007T) * BEEECEHEEY
WIETIERREMIEEMENLEE TR
ARV TR BRI E R EH M5
EAHLERNER - Bt - Z2FEHS
ELIRBERBRATE IMERBRER
AR E M E B R ATEEEE R A RE
ME{TER -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 and 31

March 2018 are as follows:

17. REWE(E)

REBRRIFEBMOT

RZE—N\F+-_A=+—BE-_Z—N
FZAZ+—HAEBEREDERATE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 3 2018
R=ZZE—NF
+=ZA=+—8
B=HR ZATE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
Commercial units located in the PRC MRz SN 5,736,575 5,736,575
Residential units located in the PRC MRz EEEA 77,800 77,800
5,814,375 5,814,375
Fair value
as at
31 March
Level 3 2018
R-ZZE—N\F
=A=+—8H
E=M /NS
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Commercial units located in the PRC R 2 B S AL 5,348,580 5,348,580
Residential units located in the PRC MRARBZ (EEEA 76,200 76,200
5,424,780 5,424,780
169
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TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

170

Recurring fair value measurement

The following tables give information about how the fair values
of these investment properties as at 31 December 2018 and
31 March 2018 are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Level
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

17.

REWME(E)
ERMEATENE

TRIITRNAEEZERENENR_F
—NFTZA=+—BR-ZE-N\F=H
=t+—BANRHERRIZMRANGET
ERBABBR)NER - URREAFER
ERABBNABREEHQFEFEN
RHERBRN(E—E=4) -

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
BEELRZY EZELEEEA
LI A¥E DYEERAA HERE BAEE HEEOVEZBE
31 December 31 March
2018 218
B-0\F ZE)E
tA=t-B  ZA=t-A
RMB'000 RMB000
ARRTR  ARETL
Investment properties under 3,360,900 3294460 Level3 Depreciated replacement — Market unit sale rate per square  Asignificant increase in the
construction located at Minhang =% costs/market approach meter of the land, after taking ~ market unit sale rate would
District, Shanghai, the PRC WESERL/ Mt into account usage life, the resultin a significant increase in

RTE AR ERRENE

fair value, and vice versa
MRENEEARENEEHATE
REE Rz %

location and size factors, at
RMB20,300 (31 March 2018:
RIMB20,705) per square meter.

GYARCIHTAENER £2
FERES NEREERR
BETFXARED00T(ZE
“NEZAZT-R: ARK
20,70572) »
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs
EEEREEY
PN ¢4

Relationship of
significant unobservable
inputs to fair value
EERIBE/AA
UBRNTEZBR

Fair value
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique
ng AYE DYEERAH HERY
31 December 31 March
2018 018
“2-)\f T\
tZA=t-R ZA=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Investment properties under 1,936,675 1728000 Level3 Residual approach

construction located at the F ez
south-eastern side of the
junction of Titan Road and
Zhongshan Road, Shahekou
District, Dalian City, Liaoning
Province, the PRC
IR EEEEAZT)T AR
BEREURRREERY
TRRENE

B \FH

31 December 2018: Market unit
sale rate per square meter at
RMB16,400-19,000

ZE-NFTZA=T-8:8%8
ARENERARE 16,4002
19,0007

31 March 2018: Monthly market
rent at RMB114 per square
meter for office use and
RMB270 per square meter for
retall use; and

ZE-\E=A=1-0: §ATH
BEGTARARE U AERR
BRNRETARARB 20T
TERR R

Estimated cost to complete
amounted to approximately
RMB543,059,000 (31 March
2018: RMB867,067,000)

[EETRT A4 B ARES543,059,000
T(ZE-\E=f=1-R:
AR E867,067,0007T)

Expected developer's profit
margin at 20% (31 March 2018:
15%)

SRARMRNER%(Z5 N5
ZR=T-H:15%)

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

TEENERARANAEHATE
REBEN R

Asignificant increase in the cost
to complete would result in
a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

R IRAARANAEHATE
KERSD  R2AR

Aslight increase in the expected
profit would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

BEEHEN HREYATERR
TH Rz
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EERIRRY EERIBEZAA
S AYE DAVERRAR fHERE PNt YERNTEZBR
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
It [t ik
tZR=t-A  ZA=T-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT  ARETR
Investment properties located at 250,100 U112 Level 3 Income approach Average monthly rent at RMB64 A significant increase in the
No.4, Sanba Square, Zhongshan 228 WA per square meter (31 March monthly rent would result in a
District, Dalian City, Liaoning 2018: RMBG3 per square significant increase in fair value,
Province, the PRC meter) based on existing rental  and vice versa
RhERERRETHIE= R contract. BRREABENREIATEAR
FoRENE RERARN BATHEEAET 2N R
ARARBUT(ZE-N\F=A
St BLHRAREST) o Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
Market yield at 3%-6% significant increase in fair value,
(31 March 2018: 5%). and vice versa
THERRERNEH ZE-\F  TAORELNTHEERATER
ZR=t-R:5%) BEM R
Commercial units located at the N/A 1750 Level3 Market comparison method ~ Market unit sale rate per square  Asignificant increase in the
basement of Xianghe Commercial TER =4 e EE meter RMBS, 142 market unit sale rate would
Building, Guanxi Community, BEAATSENERARY result in a significant increase in
Gaizhou County-level city, 51447 ¢ fair value, and vice versa

Yingkou City, Liaoning province,
the PRC*

TAREEER SN ENERTER
HEANE B AZEN

* Disposed during the nine-month period ended 31 December 2018.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EEEREEY EEELRE A
{IES AVE DYERERH fERE BAYE HERATEZBE
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
BN\ ZE)E
tZR=t-8  =A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Commercial units located at Jincan 8,400 8490 Level3 Income approach/market 31 December 2018 income Asignificant increase in the
Garden, Xiong Yue Town, Yingkou 224 comparison method approach: Average monthly rent:  monthly rent would resultin a
City, Liaoning province, the PRC (31 March 2018: RMBB per square meter basedin ~ significant increase in fair value,

RnERER ENTREACELE
BREN

Market comparison method)
WA/ TR (ZT-NE
A=A R

B \FH

existing rental contract
“F-\EtZRz1-A:
YNE: §ATEHRS : REFRE

DASTARARRT

Market yield: 6.5%-8.6%
TREHE : 65%28.6%

Market comparison method: Market
unit sale rate: RMBA,500-5,840/m?

mELRE : TEENEE: 8¥h
AR 5007258407

31 March 2018: market unit sale
rate: RMB4,09%4 per square
meter

Z5-\EZA=1-RB: TREM
£F : §EARARELOUT

and vice versa
BRREARENEEHATEAR
B k2R

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

MAEREEN THEERATER
B k2%

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

TEENERARANAEHATE
REBEN k2%
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17.

174

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWX(E)
Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
EEEREEY EEELRE B
S AVE AVERRAR fhERE LN ¢ UBRNTEZBR
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
ZE-\F ZEF)\E
tZR=t-B  ZA=T-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETR
Commercial units located at Jinfeng 16,400 2070 Level 3 Income approach At 31 December 2018, average A significant increase in the
Guesthouse, Sanjiazi Community, 224 (31 March 2018: monthly rent at RMB67 per monthly rent would result in a

Bayuguan District, Liaoning

province, the PRC
RhERELGRBE=FF1HES

BEEZBREN

Commercial units located at the 45,500 34690 Level 3
middle of Kunlun Street, Bayuguan 224
District, Liaoning province, the
PRC

IR EEERHEERR R AGTRE
BB

Market comparison method)
WAK(ZE-NE=A=1-R"
ALEE)

square meter based on existing
rental contract

RZB-N\E+ZA=1+-0 BB
RREN BRTHELAET)
RAARHIT

Market yield at 6.5%-8.6%.
FEE% R0.5%E8.6% °

At 31 March 2018, market unit
sale rate per square meter
RMB11,851 per square meter.

R-T-NF=R=1-R §¥]
KBENERSTIKARY
18517

Income approach/market
comparison method
(31 March 2018:
Market comparison method)
YN/ TEMEE(ZE-)\F
SR=t-R: TRLEE)

31 December 2018: income approach:
Average monthly rent per square
meter: RMB152 based on existing
rental contract

- \Et-AZt-R:
IAE: STFABATAES
BEREROBARRS2T

Market yield rate: 6.5%-8.6%
TREEE : 65%28.6%

Market comparison method: Market
unit sale rate: RMB4,500-5,850/m?

B TRELER : 874
AR 5007258507

31 March 2018: Market unit
sale rate per square meter.
RMB6,100
Z5-\EZA=+-B: §EHR
RENERE : AR%6,1007

significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

SRS AGENBEHATHEAR
B k2R

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in feir value,
and vice versa

MAORRSHTHBEHLTER
BN kM

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

TiREL EEABENBSRATE
KRN - R

Asignificant increase in the
monthly rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa

SRS AGENREHATHEAR
210 Rz m4

Aslight decrease in the market
yield would result in a
significant increase in feir value,
and vice versa

MAORRSHTHBEHLTER
BN kM

Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

HiREL EEABENBERATE
KRN - RZIA

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
Fair value Significant significant unobservable
Property Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
BEELERY BEELHE/BA
{IES AVE DYEERBH HERE BAYE HERATHZBE
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
BN\ ZE)E
tZR=t-8  =A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Office units and commercial units 118,600 N/A Level 3 Income approach/market Monthly rent per sq.m: RMB43  Assignificant increase in the
located at Liangsi District, Wuxi Tl #=8 comparison method BRESETHA  ARBMIT monthly rent would result in a
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC WA/ mREE significant increase i fair value,
e THE RS RER, Market yield rate: 4.33% and vice versa
BASBLREREN [RRICE BTk GARSABENBERATEAE
) VAR
Market unit sale rate per sq.m:
RMB24,000 Aslight decrease in the market
BYFAMAENER : ARY yield would result in a
24,0007 significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa
TR AL TREERATER
BEN R
Asignificant increase in the
market unit sale rate would
resultin a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa
TREEEARENASYATE
REEM RZHA
Residential units located in 77,800 76,200 Level 3 Market comparison method ~ Market unit sale rate per square A significant increase in the
Shenzhen City, Guangdong 224 MRS meter RMBA4,500 per square market unit sale rate would
Province, the PRC meter (31 March 2018: resultin a significant increase in
fReRERL FIG 728l RMB44,000 per square meter).  fair value, and vice versa
EInATRENERART IR TREMEEARENAEALATE
ARBUSOT(ZZ-NEZR KBEN R
=+ BEARARBAL0
e
5,814,375 5424780

All above market unit sale rate and rental have considered the
location, size factor, layout and floor.

There was no transfer among the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the current period and prior year.

B \FH

2R LTS ENEBRESZEZEEM
g HERAE - BRKEE -

REHBEEMFE  —BARXFERBR

PallprAlLiRick: 3 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
RMB’000
ARBTTT
cosT R
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—tFHHA—H 63,084
Addition arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 49) FEWEK B AR MANE (H:i49) 8,087
Derecognition upon disposal (note 49) HE BRI R (K 5E49) (57,238)
At 31 March 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZBE—N\FE=ZA=+—HK
—Z-N\F+ZA=+—H 13,933
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 RZZE—tFMNA—HK
- N\F=A=+—H =
Impairment loss recognised during the period AN HER Z R EEE 5,846
At 31 December 2018 R-F-N\F+=-A=+—H 5,846
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 8,087
At 31 March 2018 R_E—NF=ZA=+—8H 13,933
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill have been SREARAMNE - BECD D EEMEESR
allocated to two individual cash generating units ("CGUs"), ReEFEBEN(ReEELEN])  BE
comprising solar photovoltaic business and financial KGR AAEBRERBRBEL R -F
services business. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of —NF+ZA=+—BRZZF—N\F=A
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2018 and =+—H  BE2ZEEEGIRZFRERE
31 March 2018 allocated to these units are as follows: B)DMETHEN !
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-)\F
t=A=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARBTT
Solar photovoltaic NCEEDIAN - 5,846
Financial services 2R AR 8,087 8,087
8,087 13,933
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e SRR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

18.

19.

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the closure of a solar photovoltaic manufacturing factory
and proposed relocation of production facilities resulted
in a net loss for the operating segment. Accordingly, the
Directors have consequently determined impairment of
goodwill directly related to Solar photovoltaic amounting
to RMB5,846,000 and recognised in the profit or loss for the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, management of the Group
determined that there is no impairment of any of its CGU's
containing goodwill.

18.

BE(E)

R_E—NFNA—HBE-_ZT—\F+=
A=+—H8H  —EXBGEXREET
BMERILTEEREREBEEREERL
EoERSEEFE  EHit - EFHEEH
NG AREERBENNEREARYE
5,846,000 HR =T —NFHA—HEZ
T-N\F+ZA=+—HEHNERER

BHE_T-N\F=A=+—HILFE K
EEEEEREENEEEHENESE
HEEBUBERE -

CLUB MEMBERSHIP 19. BEFTEE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—EB-N\F —E-N\F
+t=A=+-8 =A=+-~
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Balance at the beginning of period/year B /#1444 1,701 1,868
Exchange adjustment PE 582 - (167)
Disposal HeE (1,701) =
Balance at the end of period/year HR ERAER - 1,701

The club membership with indefinite useful lives is stated at
cost less impairment loss and is tested for impairment annually
whenever there is an indication of impairment.

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the club membership has been disposed of at a consideration
of RMB1,638,000. The loss on disposal of club membership
amounting to RMB63,000 has been recognised in profit or loss.

B \FH

EBETERMFHZEMEBARNRE
MEBEZ7]  HRRETRESREE
TTRERIE -

RZE-—N\FOA—HEZFT—\F+=
A=+—H8H  2Mg8eERBEAR
#1,638,000CHHE - HERFTEHEZEE
AR 63,000cERIERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. REHE R A2

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\E —E2-N\F

t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Cost of investments in associates BB E N T Z AN 18,000 35,615
Share of post-acquisition profits DG EE 1% 5 T 10,400 10,258
Total 5t 28,400 45,873

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

3
S
JiE]
®
i

SRRV EME R ZFEW

Principal Proportion of Proportion of
Country of place of ownership interest voting rights held
Name of entity establishment  business held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
EiRtR RUFEER  TEEXLY AREFRRARRE 2 A AREFRGRABZAS  IERR
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2018 2018 2018 2018
ZE-N\F 2)\E ZE-N\F T\
tZR=t-B  =A=T-B fZAZ+-RB =ZA=1-A
Liaoning BF Exchange Financial PRC PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Transaction of wealth products,
Assets Exchange Co,, Limited # M bond products, entrustment
("Liaoning BF Exchange") credit right products and
BE HLREERPLERAT logistics finance products
([EEHZH)) EifEn ErER RRERE
ERRUREREERIRG
Candice Group Limited The Cayman ~ PRC - 29% - 29% Logistic and trading of electronic

("Candice Group") (Note)
ZENREEARAT
(FEEREER) ()

Islands hE
REHE

178

products and devices

ETERREENDRRES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REEE Nz = (4E)

Note: On 28 September 2017, the Group and Gather Take Development Kz : R-BE—+FENA-+/\B  rEERES

Limited (collectively known as the “Vendors”) and On Win
Corporation Limited (the “Purchaser” or “On Win") entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group had
agreed to sell the aggregate 10.40% equity interests in Candice
Group Limited (“Candice Group”), a subsidiary of the Company,
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$4,278,000 (equivalent
to RMB3,656,800). In the meantime, Candice Group also entered
into certain subscription agreements with On Win, Mr. Ng Yuk Ping
and Evergrace Fund Limited (collectively as the “Subscribers”),
pursuant to which Candice Group had agreed to issue and allot to
the Subscribers a total of 40,000 subscription shares at a subscription
price of HK$411.39 per share.

Upon the completion of the above transaction on 31 October 2017,
the Group’s shareholding in Candice Group was reduced from
51.0% to 29.0% and Candice Group ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. Candice Group was recognised as an associate of the
Company thereafter. Accordingly, Candice Group's financial results,
assets, liabilities and cash flows would no longer be consolidated
into the Group's consolidated financial statements from that date.

The Group had recognised an initial fair value of RMB17,615,000 in
respect of the 29% retained interest in Candice Group.

On 30 November 2018, the Group has further entered into a
share repurchase agreement with Candice Group, pursuant to the
agreement, Candice Group had agreed to repurchase the remaining
equity interests held by the Group in full at a consideration of
HK$532,000 (equivalent to RMB465,000) and subject to the condition
that Candice Group settled the outstanding amount owing to
the Group of approximately HK$7,392,000 (equivalent to RMB
6,484,000).

Upon the completion of the above transaction on 7 December 2018,
loss on disposal of RMB8,637,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss and the corresponding interest in the associate of RMB9,102,000
is derecognised.

B \FH

BRARRR (G [EH7 ) EERBRIAF
(TEF IR ERDITLEERZ @ Bt K
SEREIAR SR EE4,278,000% 7T (48
BN AR 3,656,8007T) H & A1 & — B
BAREEMBEEBERERAR(EERE
E 1A £10.40% K - A - FEMEEE
TEER RFFARENERESHERAT
(5078 [REA DRI LA T RB WS - Bt
ERMBEERZRABESRINIET
7 73 88 A % 17 I BC 3% & #£40,000 A% 7 B8 ik

%o

RSN —_F—tF+A=t—HERX
% AKRBEREEZNREEZRRER
51.0% R E29.0%  BERRREETH
RERRZMBAT - EEMREBRERE
ERRARNRZBERT - Bt - ERERE
SEHBEE  BE AERRERER
B#% A ETBERAFTARNEE G EMBH
*o

AEEERNEERREERSR Z29%REA
RIS ERATFEARE7,615,0007T °

MRZZE—N\F+—A=+0 FAEEEEE
BEEEE— ST RGER R - REDR
& EERMBEEREEERARAMBE
B ER T 2 EPRAE - R 1B A532,0007 T (1B E
R ARK465,0007T) - AFEERBEBRLS
7B 4 R A SR B R 88 FRIE 497,392,000 7T
(HERARES,484,00070) B HAIEE ©

RZTE—NF+-AtBER LR 5%
& &5 18 AR #8,637,00070E 7 wR -
VECHERRBEE AR BREES AR
9,102,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

21.

180

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

21. RE8EER

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Cost of investments in joint ventures WEEEDEZRA 6,100 -
Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the REBESEELELENRRERARZFHBEN

reporting period are as follows: Ik

Principal Proportion of Proportion of
Country of place of ownership interest voting rights held
Name of entity establishment  business held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
L1 RUFEER  TREXME AREFRRRRRE 2 AN AREFRRAEZAN  IEER
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2018 2018 2018 218
ZE-)\E —E-0\% ZE-N\E ZE-N\%
tZA=t-R  ZA=t-B tzA=t-B  =A=t-H
Nanjing Bao Heng Real Estate  PRC PRC 51% - 50% - Development and management
Development Co., Ltd. il i of properties
ERRERMEREERAA NEREREE
Hua Xin Development PRC PRC 49% - 50% - Trading of photovoltaic products
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. hE hE and production

ER0FUR(IH)ERAA

KREREHREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 26 April 2018, Bao Hua Properties (China) Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement (the “Strategic Agreement”) with
Hengda Real Estate Group (Nanjing) Property Company Limited,
an independent third party, in relation to the formation and capital
contribution of Nanjing Bao Heng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Nanjing Bao Heng"). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions
stated in the Strategic Agreement, the relevant activities of Nanjing
Bao Heng require unanimous approval from all joint venture
partners. Nanjing Bao Heng is jointly controlled by the Group and
another joint venture partner and, as such, it is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group.

On 13 August 2018, Huajun Zhihui Energy Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “JV Agreement”) and contribution agreement with
an independent third party in relation to the formation and capital
contribution of Hua Xin Development (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. ("Hua Xin
Development”). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions stated in
the JV Agreement, the relevant activities of Hua Xin Development
require unanimous approval from all joint venture partners. Hua Xin
Development is jointly controlled by the Group and another joint
venture partner and, as such, it is accounted for as a joint venture of
the Group.

As the joint ventures have not started business during the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, there is no
share of profits/loss recognised to profit or loss for the current
period.

B \FH

21. REEEREF(E)

(@ RIZE-N\FWAZ+RB ARBHEE
MEARREBE(TE)BRARRBELE
= EBRMEEE(BR)BEARAFFL
BREAEIEZR ek ([ BREag ) - RB AR
ARREFHEREARAT([FHRRED
BRI EOEE o RBEBE BT A E T &
ARG ERRENERESAKLEBRE
BECEBHN—BUAE - BRREBLRE
BRS—aEhEBHLARES Bt B
ANERIIEAREN G EDRE -

b) RZZE-NFNA+Z=R ARFAHEZEMH
BAREEEERRERAREBEIE=S
RIVAECEBA((EEEBHEDREE
Bk NRERESCRER(OIF)ARD
A ([EB0EDORIITE - RIBEH R
AT E TR R Mt - R AR
ABARBREARELERHEN—BHLE
EELEBARERS —AERERHAR
B Bl REARINEAEENEE D
#,

RAELEER T \FHNA—RE_
TZA=+—HHBLRFESR
%o NAHEYERBSEEREGR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

22. DEPOSITS FOR MACHINERIES AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/LEASEHOLD

22. BEMERIREWE FERE
HEZHEL M Z1RE

182

LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT

Deposits for purchases or modification of: FEESKMEUTSEE S ¢
— Machineries — 25 29,520 153,447
— An investment property —REMHE 70,500 -
— Leasehold land —MHE i 50,000 =
Total #ET 150,020 153,447

Analysis as: ST -

Non-current JERNHEA 100,020 153,447
Current BVER 50,000 =
Total #ET 150,020 153,447

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of deposits for
purchases or modification of machineries, investment property
and leasehold land includes:

(a)

Deposits totalling of RMB7,630,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB20,447,000) for purchases of the machineries and
other equipment, which will be used in its printing
business in the PRC; and

Deposits totalling of RMB21,890,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB133,000,000) for purchases or modification of several
production lines and the relevant equipment, which
will be used in its manufacturing of solar photovoltaic
business.

Deposits totalling of RMB70,500,000 (31 March 2018:
Nil) for purchases of an investment property located at
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

Deposits totalling of RMB50,000,000 (31 March 2018: Nil)
for purchases of a leasehold land located at Yingkou City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC, for development for sale.

RZB-NE+ZA=+—H BExNR
K REVEREEIMZESHE
EEBRE

BEBARENPBENDREBH
BEREMEEZESARARE
7,630,000 C( —E—NE=RA=+—
B : AR#20,447,0007T) : &

5

b) BERNEBAREABAREE
EBHETEESRABEEZ
& A H AR 21,890,000 (=
E-NE=ZA=+—H: AR
133,000,0007T) °

(0 BEMRPBNNTIEMMMmAEE
Y2 e A £ AR70,500,0007T
(ZB—-N\E=A=+—R8:8\)-

d BEVRTEEEREOMMRAEE
HEMHAEL W ZEEAREAR
¥ 50,000,000 L (= ZE— N\F = A
=+—8:&)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

22. DEPOSITS FOR MACHINERIES AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/LEASEHOLD
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
(Continued)

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, the
Group entered into machineries modification agreement with
a vendor, an independent third party residence in the PRC,
to enhance the productivity of certain machineries used in its
solar photovoltaic business. Deposits of RMB25,000,000 is paid
accordingly.

After the modification has been completed, the management
considered that the vendor fails to increase the productivity of
the machineries in accordance with the agreement.

Subsequently, the vendor is found in severe financial difficulties.
Therefore, the Directors considered that such deposit is not
recoverable and an impairment of RMB25,000,000 is recognised
in profit or loss.

T\

A

R_ZE-NEFENA-—HE-ZT—)\F+=
B=+— B ANEEEMNL T BB
SR =HERE S BUR T E - ECE
BEARGHREBAMNSE THIBMNER -
BB S AR 25,000,0007T °

MEFRE - EEERAEN RERED
HIEFHR B -

Hig EHEBRBRENBEEE - Bt - &
ERREERSERRE - AR BRER
BB A K% 25,000,0007T °

183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/HELD

FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

SE s o
4&@ T

I B b S
NS

BEst ABm e @i
FET ARt 2 E UL

KIE WHEEER

FREYR

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—B-N\F  —ET)\F

t=RA=t—-B =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Listed equity securities, at fair value

EHREES - RATE

(note a) (Kiata) 13,509 20,903
Listed fund investments, at fair value EMESKE  BAFER

(note b) (KizEb) 4,916 80,319
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value ELETESEE  BATER

(note b) (Kt7tb) 45,373 =
Listed bond investments, at fair value IHEHEE - RATER

(note ¢) (Kfate) 29,274 70,741
Unlisted bond investments, at fair value FLEMEHKE - RATER

(note ¢) (Kfate) 19,757 =
Unlisted investments in China Huacai, RAEBENRELETRE

at fair value (note d) BRFER (K aEd) 154,470 =
Total HET 267,299 171,963

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAFET ABRZZ2E®ME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT E/IBRAFESTAEMEZEK
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH mBEBHR IR THMHEBER
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ B/ BEEEWEE)
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/HELD
FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Analysis as: DR
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
+=BA=+—-HB =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETFIT
Listed in Hong Kong NEB LM 12,688 20,903
Listed in overseas I T 35,696 151,060
Unlisted in overseas REINR ETH 218,915 =
267,299 171,963
Current BNEA 173,580 101,222
Non-current FERNER 93,719 70,741
Total Bt 267,299 171,963

—T-)\FR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—FE— \EWA—BE - FE—\EE+—F=+—FAHE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/

186

I EDK b S

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/HELD
FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

AN

0
v
N

5

s
NE

-
e\
EE by
IR E= 22!
555 525 M

_I.ﬁ-
il
i

[
%mﬁﬂ
oS
H
\]
/l
LN
i
el
&

Classified as: DR

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —F-N\F
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT

Financial assets mandatorily measured AR AT EFTABRTEZ
at FVTPL TREE 218,268 =

Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAEESAEmEEKE Y
BHEIA 49,031 -

Available-for-sale investments AIEHEEZKE - 70,741

Held for trading investments BEEE ZKE = 101,222

Total wEt 267,299 171,963

Notes: BiieE -

(a) The basis of fair value measurement of listed equity securities (a) TTRENAFEFEARERSEE LTHH
was quoted price of equity interest listed on the respective stock REZZFTISHREF/ER - RTEDRE
exchange markets. The fair value was measured at Level 1 fair value — R RAFEFERE(ESE RH5E48(c)) 5
measurement (as defined in note 48(c)). =

(b)  The basis of fair value measurement of listed fund investments was (b) LHELSKRENDAFEFEANGFT LR
based on the reference prices provided by counterparty financial BRUNSEBERAER - ATENREZ
institutions. The fair value was measured at Level 2 fair value BATFEFEFE(ER R TFH48(c))FHE ©
measurement (as defined in note 48(c)).
The basis of fair value measurement of unlisted fund investments FETESRENDNTEFEEREEE=
consisted of quotation provided by third parties which imply the use FREMNRE  EEREAFABETSEE
non-observable market information as significant inputs. The fair HERBERBAZE - ATFEDNRE=ZAL
value was measured at Level 3 fair value measurement (as defined in FEFEFE(ERRMF48(c)FE -
note 48(c)).

(c) As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate of these listed/ (0) RZZE—-NFE+=-_A=+—8 " &%&L

unlisted bond investments is ranging from 7.9% to 13.9% (31 March
2018: 7.9% to 13.9%) per annum. The basis of fair value measurement
is based on the reference prices provided by counterparty financial
institutions. The fair value was measured at Level 2 fair value

measurement (as defined in note 48(c)).

W EMEARENERENERNRT.9%
F139%(ZE—N\E=ZA=+—8 : 7.9%%
13.9%) « AFEFTEAEFH & @R
WREBRBER A FEIIRE_RIF
BFrE2H A (EERHE48(c)FTE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/HELD
FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Prior to 1 April 2017, the Group subscribed for shares of China
Huacai Finance Equity Investment Fund SP (“China Huacai”), a
private investment fund incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
managed by a financial institution listed on the Stock Exchange.
The investment objective of China Huacai was to achieve capital
appreciation through investing in funds, securities, bonds,
ownership interest and private equity investments offered publicly
or privately and in relation to energy and environmental protection.
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, the major underlying assets of
China Huacai was a prepayment for acquisition of power stations
from Hareon Solar Technology Co., Limited (“Hareon Solar”)
amounted to US$58,051,000 (equivalent to RMB401,692,000) (the
"Prepayment”).

As at 31 March 2018, the net assets of China Huacai attributable to
the Group represented approximately 33% of the total net asset
value of China Huacai. Pursuant to the offering memorandum
of China Huacai, the Directors considered that the Group has
no significant influence over China Huacai because the shares
subscribed by the Group did not confer the right to the Group to
appoint either directors or investment manager of China Huacai.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Hareon Solar was unable
to transfer the power stations to China Huacai or refund the
Prepayment in accordance to the investment agreement. In view
of this, the Directors considered that the fair value of the AFS
investments in the unlisted fund investment had significantly
decreased and the fair value loss of RMB133,877,000 was
recognised in investment revaluation reserve, subject to impairment
consideration.

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors reviewed the financial position
of Hareon Solar and determined to provide a full impairment of
RMB133,877,000 in respect of its investment in China Huacai. As a
result, the cumulative fair value loss previously recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve was reclassified to profit or loss.

Further on 28 April 2018, Hareon Solar published its annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2017, for which a disclaimer of opinion
was issued by the statutory auditor. As disclosed in the annual
report of Hareon Solar, Hareon Solar’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB1,529,855,000 and incurred
a net loss of approximately RMB4,477,199,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017. The listing status of Hareon Solar had also been
suspended by the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 29 May 2018.
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(d) RZZE—+tFMA—HA - AEERBEHEH
EHemRERERS ([FEZEN] - —18
RESHSEMAI A —MRE R T
ZEMBBER I ABREES)OREG -
FEEN ZRE B IEABBRIRENEIRIIR
REGHABSFLEES FH - &F - A
EREEGEAIABRBEREERARNEE -
R-E—+tENA—RAR=-F—N\E=A
=t+—H FREFZEERBEEEANSE
KRB AR AR (NEBR ) Ik
B MR 2 TET 3 IE58,051,000% T (FHER A
R ¥401,692,0007T) ([FEFRE]) -

RZZE-NE=A=+—8  *EBEEL
TREMHEEFEGTEENEEERE
#133% - REPEFH 2 HETE  EFR
R BRAE B B N T AKEE
PERSEFHAREFBERN - WAEEE
PEEMTEEATES

RBE-Z-N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE R
BREWS  BRAREEEREEHR TP
BEHSRERNFR - BERUL - BEFR
B FLEMESRERAIHEEREZAT
BEXME TR - A FEEEARY133,877,000
TR REBHBEHERER - EAFELR
BEEZE -

RZF—N\F=ZA=+—H8 ESREH
SR 2RI - WRERER P EER] 2
REBHIREREAR133,877,0007T « A
b ZARREEERENERZ RAAT
BEEBEENHEEERS -

AN R=ZT—NFEA=+N\B ' &B8X
RKAHEBEE-_T—tF+=-A=+—AH1t
FREZFR  ERHAEZERBAME LR
BER - RSB RZERAEE - =
—E—tE+-A=+-—RALEE FH
KR ABDEAEBBERDHEENARY
1,529,855,0007T * I FE A E5 1 F RO AR
4,477,199,0007C * BN Rz LAz IR E
—T- N\FRAZTNARBELBEELFR S
gz -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—FE— \EWA—BE - FE—\EE+—F=+—FAHE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

188

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/DEBT
INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/HELD
FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

In December 2018, China Huacai has entered into an agreement
to transfer the Prepayment to Mr. Meng, who is the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the limited partner of China
Huacai at the same date. This transaction is deemed as to be a
shareholder’s contribution to China Huacai because Mr. Meng is the
limited partner of China Huacai and there is no indicator as of 31
December 2018 that the recoverability of the Prepayment has been
improved. The Directors considered that the fair value changes of
the unlisted fund investment should also be recognised as an equity
transaction. For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the change in fair value of RMB154,470,000 has been recognised
as a deemed contribution by controlling shareholder in deemed

contribution reserve.

Subsequently on 7 March 2019, the Group has received a sum of
RMB154,470,000 from the redemption of all the investments in China

Hucai.

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment is measured at Level 3

fair value measurement.
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RZE-NF+=R PEEHFEITILH
# BEMNRAEERTARLE  REERR
BARRRAEERBERALTEEFNER
BRA o IR ZBARBIR A B B ER T
A REARREARTHEHEMNERAY
A MBE_E-NF+_A=+—H0 %
EPRKATANFRIER A DU E B E
EERRFLTESRENATEZH A
BRRBERD - AT \FOA—HZE

—E-NF+ZA=+—H

ATEEDA

R#154,470,0007c E A RIE X A R EFHER

REEEBRERAEE -

BRER-_ZF-NAF=AtH AKEEAR
BORMAERTHEEHNNREMBARE

154,470,0007T °

FETERESHRFEDEE=RATENS

R -

24. FELEWYE

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —E-N\F

t=A=+-8 =A=+—AH

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARMF T AREFTT

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEMERIYE 1,381,870 507,899

Properties under development for sale BRAPGEME 4,354,331 1,927,267

5,736,201 2,435,166

Properties to be realised after one year B —FREIR Y 88,203 51,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—E-N\FOA-HE-F

—NEF+ZA=+—HHR

24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

25.

All of the above properties held for sale are to be sold as
part of the normal operating cycle of the Group thus they are
classified as current assets.

As at 31 December 2018, all of the above land and properties
are situated in the PRC under long-term leases.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, the
Group has written down the value of RMB29,050,000 (31
March 2018: Nil) in respect of certain properties held for sales
because the carrying amount of such properties is lower than
its net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2018, properties held for sale with a
total carrying amount of RMB2,056,694,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB2,217,457,000) have been pledged to secure bill payables
and borrowings of the Group (note 53).

24. BIEHENME(E)

B LB ELRENYRERARE R
REBHALE - Bt - EEDBA/RY
BE -

R-ZZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 AL
T R EM AR RARBERBEOFEE -

R_E—NFMNA—HBE-_ZT—\F+=
A= + AEIRE - AEBBHETHED
& 1)) 2 HURA R 529,050,000 7T Z B E
ZE-N\F=A=+—8: &) AR
ZEMEZRMERN A SEFE -

R-ZE—N\FE+-A=+—8  EEHLE
A ANR#2,056,694,0007C (ZFE— NE=
B=+—8B : AR#%2,217,457,0007t) Z
BEREMECER  WAKXEEZ BN
Z R RS FIEER (FI5E53) -

INVENTORIES 25. 78
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=Bg=+-8 =A=+-H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFTT
Raw materials R 42,567 67,681
Work in progress TR 15,127 23,040
Finished goods SURY oh 203,424 231,078
261,118 321,799
At 31 March 2018, inventories with the carrying amount of RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H  KHEARA
RMB40,513,000 had been pledged to secure bill payables and R #40,513,000 ) FEEHM - AR

borrowings of the Group (note 53).

—E—)\FR

SE 2 BN RERAERIEER(IRES3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

26. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITIONS

190

26. WiERE

Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WHEHIEB R AIEMiZE

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F  —ET)\F
t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTIT

- 564,000

On 6 March 2018, the Group entered into three agreements
with independent third parties to acquire: (1) the entire
equity interests in Baohua Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.
(“Baohua Wuxi") (formerly known as Wuxi Huiling Real Estate
Co., Ltd.); (2) the entire equity interests in Wuxi Huiyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Huiyuan”); and (3) 55% equity
interests in Wuxi Huize Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Huize").
The total consideration for the acquisition is amounting to
RMB1,883,740,000. The transactions are made through Wuxi
Equity Exchange Co., Ltd., ("Wuxi Equity Exchange”) which is
a public service platform for acquiring equity of state-owned
enterprise.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has paid aggregate refundable
deposit of RMB564,000,000 to a bank account designated by
Wuxi Equity Exchange for these acquisitions. The transactions
have been completed on 6 July 2018. Details of the
acquisitions are included in note 49.

Baohua Wuxi, Wuxi Huiyuan and Wuxi Huize held certain
investment properties, and properties and land under
development for sales in Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

RZE—NF=ZARAB ' AEEHEBT
E=AEN =0 HE - KRB REM
E(EB)BRAR([RELB]) (FIHE
BREBXRRAR) ZIME : (QEH
MEERBXARAR([EBERE]) 2T
g RQESEEBEEERAR([E
HEZ )5 KE - WEERERARY
1,883,740,0007C - ZER S HEBRED
EERXZMERAR([EHEEIS])
(BRERBTEMNARRBEFES)#ET -

R-ZE-NE=A=+—0  ~EHEE
ZEWRBERESEEIDIIEEZRITE
F XA FiREES A R 564,000,000
T ZERGER-_E—NELAAAR
BR o UBE SR8 2 FE B S AT 5E49 ©

HREBHTREE TREVERERDF
EMER LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. BAEHEEWRFE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Current portion of finance lease receivables && 1 & & Uk k18 BN HA R - 11,434

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
REBERE REBERERE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—B-N\¥ “FN\E “B-N\E —FN\F
+=ZA=+-B =A=t-HB +=ZA=+-B =R=1-H

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT ARBTT ARETT

(Note)

(Hz)

Not later than one year —ER - 11,434 - 11,434
Later than one year and not later BB —FETBBME

than two years - - - -

- 11,434 - 11,434

Less: unearned finance income R BRERE s - - - N/ATN G F
Present value of minimum lease RIEENEEFERE

payments receivable - 11,434 - 11,434

Less: Current portion of finance W RERERKSENHES
lease receivables - (11,434)

Non-current portion of finance HERE RGBT
lease receivables - _

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

192

As at 31 March 2018, the finance lease receivables were
secured over the leased assets mainly by machineries and
equipment.

The Group was not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
of finance lease receivables in the absence of default by the
lessee. Estimates of fair value of collateral were made during
the credit approval process, by reference to the original cost
and the carrying value of the lease assets at the inception
of finance leases. All the Group's finance lease receivables
were denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the
relevant group entity. The weighted average term of finance
leases entered into was 1.25 years and all the leases required
repayment by instalments. In the event the lessee breaches
the lease contract, the Group had the right to use or sell the
assets leased and to call for full or partial repayment of the
outstanding balance of finance lease receivables. At the end of
the finance lease term, the lessee will be able to purchase the
leased assets at nominal price.

The interest rate inherent in the leases was fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The average effective
interest rate was approximately 8.4% (31 March 2018: 8.4%) per
annum.

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance
leases at 31 March 2018 were nil.

27.

BMEHERWEE)

RZZE-NF=A=+—RH mEHER
WHRIRT X B A MR EREEEE

HEABEARGENNBRT  ARETH
HERFETRRNERE ERHEZ A
me REBEHEEECRERALBERE
Pz REEREERLBIET SRR
ZRFEETHE AEBZABERER
ERWFBEAANAREE  ARERH
REEER RS - mEMRE 2 N
TR R1.25F - BFERERS B#
B FAEAERAY  AEBEBEREER
FHECHBEE - AIRAEBARENL
EMHALEERERERBRIAZ KE
BEEE  RREHEEHR - AHABRR
HEERBEHERE -

REERERA - HEFEKAA QB A
BEEERE - FHERFNERLNR84%
“T-\FZAZ+—H:84%) ¢

RZZE-NF=A=+—H ®EHERE
TEHHEEZARERABEERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND

=

A

28.

B2 R HMEWRTIERBANRK

PREPAYMENTS |
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\E —E2-N\F
+=A=+—-8B =ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables (note a) B S rINEIE (M Fa)
- goods and services — B R IR 224,967 395,342
Less: allowance for credit losses o EEEERE (22,459) (2,993)
202,508 392,349
Deposits and other receivables (note b)  1&& & E b EUEKIA (K zEb) 328,431 140,021
Prepayments (note c) FBAEFRIE (B aFc) 329,607 346,511
Total #Et 860,546 878,881
Analysis as: DA
— Current — BN&R 827,860 878,881
— Non-current — JERNHR 32,686 =
Total #Et 860,546 878,881

The Group allows credit term to selected customers on a case-
by-case basis depending on the business relationship with and
creditworthiness of the respective customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the management would
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed from time to time. Allowances for credit losses are
recognised against trade receivables at 31 December 2018
and 31 March 2018 based on estimated recoverable amount
determined by reference to past default experience of the
counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s current
financial position.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

relate to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

—N\F,

AEBEZERBERLREFEEEPNER
MEREEEE  MREEFPROERS -

REMTAFELH  EREBIHEE
EEMEELSE  IREBEFFPEEEER
B BEFNEERES TR TR - B
BREEREESERFBEBRZZE—N\F
+ZA=+—RARZE-—NE=ZA=+—
Bzt B & mmER - malkE s
B 2RBREFIMBARACEURS
HFHBERP R RETED T MAEE o

AR B H IR ARIBUE 2 B 5 R YRR B3 3]
YEENELNEFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND

194

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice
date which approximates the respective revenue recognition
date, at the end of the reporting period.

=+

S|

?gﬁf@@ﬂ&fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
3 /E

AT REREHABER - REEAH(AZE
FRERAHRE) 270 E 5 B YRGER
e - FEEBBREZFEDIMN -

il

i

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —E-N\F

t=A=t—-B =A=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARBTT

0 - 30 days 0£30H 131,893 141,887
31 -90 days 31290H 34,506 120,866
91 - 180 days 91£180H 8,182 119,514
Over 180 days Hi#®180H 27,927 10,082
202,508 392,349

As at 31 December 2018, total bills received amounting to
RMB62,501,000 (31 March 2018: RMB210,725,000) are held by
the Group for future settlement of trade receivables, of which
certain bills were further discounted/endorsed by the Group.
The Group continues to recognise their full carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period and details are disclosed
in note a. All bills received by the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired related to customers that had good track
records with the Group. It has not been a significant change in
the credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

Other than the bills received, the Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2018, bills received with a total carrying amount
of RMB4,273,000 have been pledged to secure bill payables
and borrowings of the Group (note 53).

In determining the recoverability of trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
set out in note 48(b).

MWZZ—NE+-_A=+—0 EREE
waza A NR#62,501,0000(ZE—N\F=
A=+—8 : AR#¥210,725,0007T) A
S@EE BEARENE S EIREIE -
HPEFTERCHAZEEE SR &
Z o AEERBFEHMAEERREER
RE - FIERERN T - AEBAWEE
R BRI DR —F ©

RZZE-—NEF=R=+—H @#HERR
BENE S EUFIERR RSB RERIFE
RREBENEFBR - FEERYRELR
EEL - ERNATRAAERKED -

BRIEWRIESN - REBIW ARSI BB
BEMER®

R-BE-NEFE=A=+—B " L£REEA
AR#4,273,000cEREEEIEAARE
B 2 FEN =R R SR 2 I (Bf5E53) »

REEE S RKFAN AR E R - R&E
BEZEREENHRLANEEREHME
REZGRWFREEERZEMNES - 5
EEPRARENMEEA8(b) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND . BEZRAMBEWRERBELK
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) H(#E)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BEMERRE 2 B 5 IR R 2 1T 0
impaired: N
31.3.2018
—E-N\F
=H=+—H
RMB'000
ARETT
0 - 30 days 0%230H 4,649
31 -90 days 31£90H 4,640
91 - 180 days 91£180H 902
Over 180 days #E38180H 812
11,003
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REEBHBESOT
RMB'000
AREFT
As at 1 April 2017 RZZE—EFMA—H 2,452
Provision during the year FREE 695
Foreign exchange adjustment PE 5 A% (154)
As at 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H 2,993

=

A

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's trade receivables of
RMB2,993,000 were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that default for payments and management assessed that the
receivables were not expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowance for doubtful debts of RMB2,993,000 was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 48.

—N\F,

RZZE-NF=A=+—RH A&EHEH
JE YR IA A R #52,993,0007T E fE I EE E &%
HIVRE - 2RI E 2 FE W RIE S R
NRZ2EFPER  BREENEZFZRIK
BAEHARYE - Fith 2 RS ERE
B AR¥2,993,0007T © AN & [E I Mg 1t
SESRTAEMAERS -

W-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—H8 EH5RE
fib, & WK IR 2 R (B 7Yl 2 78 18 B BT 5
48 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

196

Transfers of financial assets

As at 31 December 2018, the total bills received include discounted
bills with full recourse amounting to RMB349,000 (31 March
2018: RMB25,929,000) and bills endorsed to suppliers and other
creditors on a full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to
RMB37,552,000 (31 March 2018: RMB168,410,000). As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
bills, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the assets
in the consolidated financial statements. The associated borrowings
and trade and other payables are secured over the discounted bills
and endorsed bills received which were not yet due at the end of
the reporting period and are recognised as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2018

28.

=+

S|

(%})EH{’MELI&%XIE&?EN%X
3 /&%ﬂ

il

i

() HESBAEE

RZZ—-NE+-_A=+—0  EKEE
BEAENTE2AEBEREZDMREEA
R#349,000(ZE—NF=A=+—8:
AR #25929,0007t) KA 2mMBREY
EEETHEBSAERNKRIBZERBARE
37,552,000t (ZE—N\F=ZA=+—A: A
R #168,410,0007T) - R ANEE 8 A EH
BEZEZEBE 2 ERRRKEI®R - HHEE
REEMBHRETPHEREEZ 2 IERAME -
BRI RE S REMEN KB AERR
ZRIBHER - MARSHERERIEZ
ERERKEZBRGAMBRARANERA
TENBIE °

R=ZB-NE+=ZA=+—8

Bills received

Discounted endorsed

bills with with full
full recourse recourse Total

MHEZmE

BEREZ

MHE2m EEEF

BEREZ e 2
EHREE ElREE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AR¥TR AR¥TR

Carrying amount of transferred assets EEEAEZRAME
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HABBEZEEE

349 37,552 37,901
(349) (37,552) (37,901)

Net position AR

At 31 March 2018

RZZE-NF=A=+—H

Bills received

Discounted endorsed
bills with with full
full recourse recourse Total
% 2m
BREZ
MiE2m BEBEET
BEREREZ HEmZ
B AL ER FEWEE FEE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT

Carrying amount of transferred assets EREEZEEAE
Carrying amount of associated liabilities HAEBEZEEE

25,929 168,410 194,339
(25,929) (168,410) (194,339)

Net position AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

Fo

r the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—FE- N\ FWA-—AE-—F—\F+-_A=+—HHR

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND 28.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Detailed analysis for deposits and other receivables is as follows:

=+

S|

(%})EH{’MELI&%XIE&?EN%X
3 /&%ﬂ

Ffet - (%)

il

i

b) BRENEMBEFBZFASTNAT :

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—~H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Deposits paid to: BATES -
— PRC real estate bureau for — P B i 2 3 B E#BPT
property pre-sold (FRFEEME) 14,227 4,279
- Rental deposits paid -effERe 7,905 6,906
— Others —Hih 13,070 5,279
Other receivables from: H e FOE -
- Receivables from a former associate — FEUR AT ESE & A R FKIE 16,400 -
- Receivables from a related company — PR RAEE A R IR 9,413 =
— Receivables from disposal of an investment — HEIRE Y 7 U R
property (note 17) (Ktz£17) 11,771 -
— Others (note i) —E A (HfaEi) 85,637 106,149
Other taxes receivables (note ii) E AR SR (KT aii) 170,008 17,408
328,431 140,021

Notes:

(i) The amount mainly represented receivables from sundry

debtors.

(ii) The amount mainly represented value-added tax arising from
the Group's property development and investment business.
As at 31 December 2018, other tax receivables amounting
to RMB32,686,000 is expected to realise after 1 year and

accordingly classified as non-current.

Z-\FR

0] FHSREIZRBUEEEBAK

I8 o

(i) FHBEIERLAFEMEERIR
AEBZBER -R-_ZT—-N\Ft+=
A=+—H HMWBERHEKARE
32,686,000 LA —F & BRI

FEDHRRIERNE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, AND 28. & %i& HtERKRERFENA
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) (&)
Notes: (Continued) st - (&)
(c)  Detailed analysis for prepayments is as follow: (c) TARTRIEZ AT
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=—A=+—H =A=+—~H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Prepayments to suppliers, in respect of: M ERXNNTENRIE - A8 :
— solar photovoltaic business —KIBRER K EBKA R 13,569 15,255
— printing —ENRY 3,482 22,627
- petrochemical products —A{LEm 44,779 63,670
- property development - LES 18,829 -
— others —Hb 13,863 4,959
Deemed prepayments to subcontractors for MFEHEMEGRER
properties held for sale (note) DB OB KRB ) 210,135 240,000
Other prepayments HEMIERFRIE 24,950 -
329,607 346,511
Note: On 29 March 2018, the Group has entered into an equity i RZFE—NF=ZA=+IA F&E
transfer agreement with a third party (the “Purchaser”), BRE=H(ET DI ZREER
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to transfer the i B AEEREEELEOR
entire equity interest in Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate Company AEMEERAR([EAR®REM
Limited (“Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate”) to Purchaser at ENEXRETES  REAARE
a consideration of RMB240,000,000. The disposal was 240,000,0007C ° HEKR ZT— N\F
completed on 29 March 2018. As the Purchaser is also a ZRAZTNABREK - BREF AR
subcontractor of the Group, the consideration is deemed as a SEZ2HEH  ZREWHEAEEES
prepayment to the Purchaser to set off against the equivalent SATHTER IR - AR RAEEE
value of future construction cost payables on properties EONRERRPHAEDERNOESE
development for sales. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

29. LOAN RECEIVABLES AND INTEREST 29. EWE R R EWKRFE
RECEIVABLES
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-\F  —ZE)\F
t=ZRA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Loan receivables FEWE = 11,403 106,955
Interest receivables JEULF B, 784 339
12,187 107,294
The Group's loan receivables, which arise from the money ZK’EIZfH&%f?xEEEAE}%&qJ B 12 44 {8
lending business of providing personal loans and corporate ABERRRRERZHEEBMEE - A
loans in Hong Kong and the PRC, are denominated in HK$. /%71:.#@
Certain loan receivables are secured by collaterals provided by ETERERNEPIREENIRBRIES
customers, bearing interest ranging from 8% to 12% (31 March BH - BN F8RE12%(ZZE—NF=A
2018: 8% to 18%) per annum and repayable with fixed terms =+—R :8%E18%)F T B AMN
agreed with the customers. The maximum exposure to credit BEEZTHWETHRRNESE - RE®REH
risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying value of the BTN SRR EERE & AT Rl
loan receivables and interest receivables mentioned above. B R EMF S HEREE
No loan receivables and interest receivables were past due but RZZE-NEFE+_A=+—BKZZE-N
not impaired at 31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018. F=ZA=+—H BEEKERLEKF

SEBHERRE -

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables and AR - \FF+T_A=1+—H8EK
interest receivables as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note B R EIF B RE ATl 5 15 S M
48. 48 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED

31.

200

BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2018, bank balances comprised of time
deposits with maturity less than three months and carry fixed
interest rate of 0.3% to 1.4% (31 March 2018: 0.3% to 1.4%)
per annum. The remaining bank balances carry interest at
prevailing market rates which range from 0% to 2.5% (31 March
2018: 0% to 2.5%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure bill payables and borrowings to the Group. The
deposits are carrying fixed interest rate range from 1.9% to
2.2% (31 March 2018: 1.9% to 2.2%) per annum. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the repayment of relevant
bill payables and borrowings.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and
pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 48.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER
LIABILITIES

30.

31.

BROKBRAS RITERTE

TA

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8  R17&8
BER=EA AR RIZ03%E1.4% (=
TE—N\F=ZA=1+—H :03%=E1.4%)
EFFRFTFEZTERGFR - B NRITHER
BN TFO%E25%(—E—N\F=A=+—
H : 0%ZE2.5%)KIRITHIZFEFEETE o

RITERFREFRAREZENRER
AR EAMARITERZERK - %F
TRENTI19%E22%(ZE—N\F=A
=+ —B 1 1.9%%2.2%) KB E F &5t
B RITEAEFERARENRIERE
RERRARE -

AR _ZE-—NF+_A=+—B8RT

HER R IBITIRBE AR EFGHFBER
FI5E48.

fii% REMENFIERHEME

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —F)\F

+=ZBA=+—H —A=1+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMF T ARBT T

Trade payables Z S RIE 184,806 439,974

Construction payables EEREN FIA 447,268 284,752

632,074 724,726

Accrued construction cost FEEHIREE R AN 213,658 320,145

Deposits received (note a) B S (Mfita) 50,653 9,101

Other payables (note b) H b P RIE (M 5Eb) 133,636 104,556

Other payables to non-controlling A ARTRIHIE AR

shareholders of a former subsidiary JEFE PR B 2 E A FRIE

of the Company (note c) (Ktate) 119,989 119,989

Receipts in advance (note d) U IE (K atd) - 382,102

Other accruals HibfESHE A 148,388 79,281

1,298,398 1,739,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER 31. EZ R HEMEMAHREREME
LIABILITIES (Continued) & (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and REBEHER - B 5 BRI REEEN
construction payables based on the invoice date at the end of RIBEREZAHZRESTHOT -
the reporting period.
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F —E-)N\F
+t=ZRA=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBT T
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 105,938 354,782
31 -90 days 31%:90H 44,033 58,877
Over 90 days B3E90H 482,103 311,067
632,074 724,726
The average credit period on purchase and construction T R EK AR FHEE BN F30E90
cost is arranging from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial H e AEEREUBRBERBE - UE
risk management policies in place to monitor that all trade EMBESRNTIEREERNES -
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
Notes: Ffat
(a) Detailed analysis for deposits received is as follow: (a) BEWREURE ZFAD T ¢
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
Y Wyl —E-N\F
+=A=+—H =A=+—-H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBFT
Rental deposit received Bl ERE 653 9,101
Deposit received for a joint property BEWRARYEREEBEEZ
development project (Note) =& (Hz) 50,000 -
50,653 9,101
—E-\EH —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER
LIABILITIES (Continued)

202

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Detailed analysis for deposits received is as follow: (Continued)

Note: On 20 June 2017, the Group has entered into a cooperation

agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with an
independent third party, a private company incorporated in
the PRC, to establish a joint venture company for the purpose
of developing a leasehold land currently wholly owned by the
Group, located in Dongguan City, Guangdong, the PRC as
residential properties (the “Project”).

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018,
the Directors noticed that the Project shall be abandoned
because it is unlikely that the Cooperation Agreement can
be continued due to the failure to comply with certain urban
renewal policies in Guangdong, the PRC. However, the
proposed termination on the Cooperation Agreement was
rejected by the counterparty, whom further raised a civil
prosecution against the Group for legal claim resulted from
termination.

As at 31 December 2018, the deposit represents the first
instalments received from the counterparty in advance for the
Project. In the meantime, the Directors have also, based on
legal advice, made a provision in respect of this legal claim.

Detailed analysis for other payables is as follow:

31.

ESRHMENREARREME
B(E&)

izt - ()
(@) CWBRERESZF@IWOT : (&)

ffet - R=E—EFA-+tH  AEES
—BBIE=T (—ARPEEMK
SRFLART) ETIL AR ([ & 1E
Wa&El)  MKIZAEZERERR - AR
REBABAEE2EHA 2N
BERREN 2 HE D IEEEME
(l%mEB ) -

R-F-\FWA-BE_F-N\F
ToA=t+—RERH EFIEIZ
HEANRE  RERAEBHERAE
E R ARREE ST B ERE T m B
BURMEEE - A - RHBEFH
EBEXEEHBOERKL - SE
ARSI BHR R R A REE —
SRHREFRAD

RZBE-N\F+=ZA=+—8 &=
BHRZER AR ZHFHRANKEZ

BB - R ERTERERE
RBZEEBRIEHEME -

(b) HEMENFIRZFADTMT :

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E2-N\F —E-N\F

+=—A=+—H =A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AR¥TT

Other tax payables H e iR 17,856 12,854
Others Hih 115,780 91,702
133,636 104,556

On 30 March 2016, the Group disposed of its 80% equity interest
in Yingkou Wanhe Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Yingkou Wanhe") and its
subsidiary at a cash consideration of RMB480,000,000 and received
RMB600,000,000 from the buyer. The payables of RMB119,989,000
represented cash consideration received on behalf of a 20% non-
controlling shareholder of Yingkou Wanhe, which are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

© RZE—XE=ZA=Z+8 X£ELHE
EOBAEEARRAR(IENEE]) R
HIWEARBORMBE  HeREAA
R % 480,000,000 7t * ¥ 8 B 7 KW A
K % 600,000,000 ¢ ° FEf KB AR
119,989,0007T R KX FHA & OB & 20% MK
ZIEERBRERENESRE  BEER -
Tet B RBIEERIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND OTHER 31. E 5 A REMEMSREREME
LIABILITIES (Continued) %E(/E')
Notes: (Continued) Bax - (48)
(d)  Detailed analysis for receipts in advance is as follow: d) FBRFBEZF@EAIWTEAT :
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —F-N\F
+=B=+-8 =A=+-~
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Receipts in advance from customers, KBS FELRFRIA
in respect of: B :
- property pre-sold —TEEWME - 168,014
- solar photovoltaic business — KGR ARED = 8,326
— petrochemical products —AfER - 147,113
- printing — BNl - 53,574
— others —H - 5,075
- 382,102
Upon the application of HKFRS 15, receipts in advance from RERBEMBRELNE1S%E - BEFE
revenue contracts with customers have been reclassified as contract Z’JW S FRRRIEENR D EREHNAR - &
liabilities. Details are disclosed in note 35. G X
32. BILL PAYABLES 32. BEE

Bills are issued to the creditors, either by the Group or by the
banks, in Hong Kong and the PRC with maturity up to one year.

An aged analysis of the relevant bill payables based on the
issuance date of the bills at the end of the reporting period is

SEHAAEEREELPENRTETT
BRA - BER—FREIH -

UTRERENERRENBESHERER
BB RREDIT

as follows:
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-)N\F
+=B=+-R =A=+-8
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
0 - 30 days 0&30H 565,091 50,973
- 60 days 31260H - 4,962
- 90 days 61290H 2,527 2,093
Over 90 days R0 H 9,046 445,524
576,664 503,552

All bill payables are secured by the assets as disclosed in note

53.

As at 31 December 2018, bill payables include commercial bills
issued by the Group totalling of RMB450,000,000 to a private
company controlling by Mr. Meng (note 54) as a repayment of
the amount due to the immediate holding company.

B \FH

NEEBRRZAERNEBEC R FES3H

3= o

R-_BE—-NE+-A=1+—8 ENEE
BENEERRZLEEH 2 —BAR
A B 2 482 5 A A R ¥450,000,0007T 2

I (M aE54)
AAFRIA °

LAMESE N BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

33. BORROWINGS

204

33. &%

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
t=ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Bank borrowings IRITER 2,699,046 2,994,053
Other borrowings from financial institutions & 5 & @i 2 HAb (&5 1,440,000 1,600,000
Other borrowings arising from discounted [R5 37 fE Uy 5 & 4 2 HAb S5
bills receivables 362,140 -
Other borrowings from non-controlling RE TR R 2 A ER
shareholders 296,147 -
4,797,333 4,594,053
Secured HILH 3,818,697 4,228,426
Unsecured 4aE 3K 978,636 365,627
4,797,333 4,594,053
Carrying amount repayable based on BB FANE RE(E
repayment schedule:
Within one year —FR 3,619,333 2,170,314
More than one year but not more than —F U HETEBBARE
two years 1,072,000 582,396
More than two years but not more than MEA LB TBRTRF
five years 106,000 1,841,343
4,797,333 4,594,053
Less: carrying amount repayable within B —FRERRWERE
one year and do not contain a RENE PG 2 EEE
repayable on demand clause (3,571,255) (1,490,814)
Less: carrying amount repayable within B —FREREWERESK
one year and contain a repayable BRERZEEE
on demand clause (48,078) (679,500)
Amounts shown under current liabilities REAREBETNIRERE (3,619,333) (2,170,314)
Amounts shown under non-current FRBEBETARERE
liabilities 1,178,000 2,423,739
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

CiC)S

The exposure of the Group's borrowings and the contractual

B (&)

AEBEBRMRANINAA(REFTEH) Z

maturity dates (or reset dates) are as follows: BT :
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E2-N\F —E-N\F
t=A=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Variable-rate borrowings: SFENAEREN
Within one year —FE R 50,426 256,544
In more than one year —F AL ETBRBMFE
but not more than two years 32,000 2,896
In more than two years MELA BT EREF
but not more than five years - 41,343
82,426 300,783
Fixed-rate borrowings: & E ) A
Within one year —F£ R 3,568,907 1,913,770
In more than one year —E Y HETBBAME
but not more than two years 1,040,000 579,500
In more than two years MEAELBTBRRF
but not more than five years 106,000 1,800,000
4,714,907 4,293,270

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as

follows:

AEBERZERFE(TERGHME)

HWELT -
31.12.2018
—E2-N\EF

t=RA=t—8©
RMB’000
ARBT

31.3.2018
—E2-N\F
=ZA=+—H

RMB'000
ARET T

Effective interest rate:
Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

EIFE
5 I {3
FBFIEER

3.3% -12.0%
1.5% - 3.0%

4.4% - 10.0%
1.7% - 6.4%

B \FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

33. BR(E)

The weighted average effective interest rate on the BRZMEFHERENERRTIN(ZF

borrowings is 7.7% (31 March 2018: 7.6%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018, certain banking S
facilities and loans granted to the Group are secured by the &
Group's assets. Details of the pledged assets are disclosed
in note 53. Details of the Group’s management of liquidity

P
1=}

—~

=
=P

E-N\E+_A=+—HAR=-F

A=1+—8 AEEERNE TRT
RERTAREEEEFER - B
EREE 2 H BN ES3ME - BEAE

—N\EFE=ZA=1+—H8:7.6%) °

A

risk are set out in note 48(b). As at 31 December 2018 and 31 BEERSECRM ZE LB
March 2018, none of the bank covenants relating to drawn 48b) e RZE—N\F+_A=+—HBE=
down facilities had been breached. TZ-N\F=ZA=+—8  #HEEHENH
BZRITRLEELD -
34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 34. MEHERIE

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —F-N\F

+=HA=+—H —A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: PEFENITA

Current liabilities TEBE 6,847 S

Non-current liabilities IERBBE 17,719 =

24,566 -

206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—E-N\FOA-HE-F

34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

—NEF+ZA=+—HHR

34. MEHEERIEE)

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
HEHEENK REHENRZRE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF ZE-)N\F& ZEBE-NFE ZZE)NF
t+=AH =A +=A =H
=+-—H =+—H =+—-H =+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETT AR®BTR ARETR
Amounts payable under finance leases: &4 & &+ 38
Within one year —FR 7,725 = 6,847 =
In more than one year but not —F FEATNEBBARE
more than two years 7,725 - 7,121 -
In more than two years but not MELA BN ERAF
more than five years 10,990 - 10,598 -
26,440 - 24,566 -
Less: Future finance charges B ARRBE T H (1,874) - N/A -
Present value of lease obligations HEAEZRE 24,566 - 24,566 -
Less: Amounts due within one year & : REIBEE FATR
shown under current liabilities R—F R EH
e (6,847) -
Amounts due after one year shown  JEREEFBIE FFIRR
as non-current liabilities —FRIPreE 17,719 -

The Group has leased certain plant and machinery under
finance leases. The average lease term is four years (31 March
2018: Nil). The average effective borrowing rate for current
period is 2.26% (31 March 2018: Nil) per annum. Interest rate is
fixed and ranges from 1.84% to 2.50% (31 March 2018: Nil) on ) o
the contract date.

All finance lease obligations are denominated in HK$.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by

the lessors’ charge over the leased assets.

—E—)\FR

=+—B8:&)-
R E2.26% (=

AEEREREREHES THRE LK
% THRERANEF(—E—/\F= A
AT BB R
T-NF=A=f—8;
RawaE  FIREE -

N F1.84%

BE250%(—E—NFE=ZA=+—H : &) -

PrAE R ETEE

ELFEA -

EARELETTAHE -

AEEBMEMSEREREAAZLEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 35. BHEE
31.12.2018 1.4.2018*
—E-N\E —E2-N\F
+=—BA=+—H mA—a*
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Sales of HE
— properties (note a) — ¥ (K ita) 895,595 189,334
— petrochemical products (note b) —AltEm(Kitb) 67,478 144,099
— printing products (note ¢) — DRl g (M atce) 2,999 53,574
— others —Efh 6,989 -
973,061 387,007
e The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the & ARPNSEREEAETBUBREEAE
application of HKFRS 15. 155R1& {E MO FHEE ©
Notes: ffat -
(a)  All contract liabilities arise from the Group's property development (a) FAEGHEBYELEAREBZMERRE

208

business and are within the Group’s normal operating cycle. During
the period, the Group has recognised revenue of RMB40,256,000
that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning
of the period.

The Group receives 30% to 50% of the contract value as advances
from customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement for
sale of properties, while the remaining portion of the total contract
value will be paid to the Group from the banks once the customers
meet the requirements of the banks for applying mortgage loans.
The amount is generally made by the bank before the delivery
of property to the buyer. The advance payment schemes result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment schemes
contain significant financing component and accordingly the amount
of consideration is adjusted for the effects of the time value of
money taking into consideration the credit characteristics of the
relevant group entities. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period of construction, it increases
the amount of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

B RAKEZIERZLERSARN - RHA -
REEER Y AR 40,256,0007T + 5FA
HyzamatE -

RUHENERTPEITEERRN - A%
BEPKEA HEER30%E50%ERTE
N MARKNEENHRT SREREPW
RIRTTER RIS B R (1 B BB [ A R
S o RIEBERMERXN T ERKAIARTT
XY - BANK S EBNMERZLEAY
MERANAE BEEFFESYHERTY
FEH IR

Utoh - AEBMBRENNEZEERARER
D BBt BN RREEYERHER
Be® EPARARSEEENEER
Ao ARZEERBMREENENG L
BESE  HBMNERDERGIEEET
BB EEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

35. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the expected timing of recognising

35. ENAaEBE(E)

izt - ()

(a)

(%)

RZE-NFE+ZA=+—RH  ®EREHA

contract liabilities as revenue are as follows: Al AT
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Within one year —&FR 130,036
More than one year but not more than two years —E LA HENHEBMRE 764,099
More than two years LA L 1,460
895,595

When the Group receives a deposit before the customer draws
out the petrochemical products from the Group’s warehouse or
storage location, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group typically receives
a 10% to 20% deposit in advance for each sale order. During the
current period, the Group has recognised revenue from sales of
petrochemical products amounting to RMB144,099,000 that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
period. All contract liabilities attributable to sales of petrochemical
products as at 31 December 2018 are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

When the Group receives a deposit before the manufacturing
activity of printing products commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The Group typically receives a 10% to 20% deposit on
acceptance of manufacturing orders. During the current period,
the Group has recognised revenue from sales of printing products
amounting to RMB53,574,000 that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the period. All contract
liabilities attributable to the sales of printing products as at 31
December 2018 are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year.

B \FH

M ANEEN T R AN B A & k17 b 2 e
DALERINKRERZS BEHRREHH
BREEANEE HEHEBAORER

WHBRZEEHE - ASE— R ETMHH
ERTERATNENI0% E20%HIE S - RAH
M AEERREEALERZWEARE
144,099,0007T * s AHIFIE N B ELER - B
—E-N\E+ A=t AHERLERE
EZFEAEHNEEEFER —FRERAK

%o

it AN 55 B A ED MY &R 2 B3 72 e R A AT IR B3R
% BERRANHBBELANEARE &
EREANERZ NSBRIEESE - A%
B — A X B T B R IR 10% E 20% MY
Be o PR ANEBEMREENRMA 2
W26 A R #53,574,0007T © st ABBMIA LA
B - RZZ—N\F+-A=+—H#E
ERlRERZFIBANABERNER—FR
TR A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

36. CORPORATE BONDS 36. ATEIES
The corporate bonds are interest bearing at the rate of 6% to NEIBEHFONBFNENF6%ESL5%
6.5% per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in arrear FEHBFIF—IR - BEFRAT -

and repayable as follow:

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
+=—A=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB'000 RMB‘000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FE R 214,840 128,042
More than one year but not more —FALETEAMSF
than two years 3,383 57,826
More than two years but not more MEA BT BRTF
than five years 4,972 7,683
More than five years AFEE 67,754 62,714
290,949 256,265
Analysed for reporting purpose: BEoERSE B ¢
— Current liabilities —nEas 214,840 128,042
— Non-current liabilities —JEnBAaE 76,109 128,223
290,949 256,265
The effective interest rate of the corporate bonds for the B \FEA-BEZZ—/\F+=
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 is ranged from A=+—HHH  RrEHFNERFHNE
8.2% t0 12.6% (31 March 2018: 8.2% to 12.6%) per annum. NF82%E12.6%(—E—NF=ZA=+—

H :82%%12.6%) °

For the year ended 31 March 2018, transactions costs totalling BE-_Z—)/\F=ZA=+—HIEE B
of RMB4,434,000 had been incurred for the issuance of the MEITRAREFELER L ARKA,434,000
corporate bonds. TLZ G ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 37. AIRRES
Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Group as at 31 rEER_ZE-N\F+A=+—HBEZ
December 2018 and 31 March 2018 are as follows: T-N\F=ZA=1+—BEITHAIRRES
HBEWT
Maximum
number of
shares of
Principal Conversion the Company
Date of issue amount Bondholder Coupon rate Maturity date ~~price to be converted
AAFTER
RTA% 3 BEEHEA REX 38R ERE RtWEAEA
2 January 2018 “E-NE-BTMA O HK$66,000,000%  Pu Shi International Investment Limited 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 1941176
66,000,000/ 7% (formerly known as CEFC Futures Group “E2-F WET
(Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited) o
ERARRARRAR (NRERHERE
(B%)eRARARLA)
2 January 2018 Z5-\E-FZtEA  HK$12000000%  Wisebrain Holdings Limited 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 352,941
12,000,007 Wisebrain Holdings Limited “E2-F WAL
g
24 January 2018 “E-\F-ACtWmE O HK$10000,000%  EE 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 20117
10,000,000 &% S AT
g
2 January 2018 ZE-N\E-AZTEA HK$I30000000%  Wonderland International Financial Holdings  10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 382359
130,000 00077+ Limited (formerly known as CEFC (HK) “E--F WAL
Financial Holdings Limited) -A-1=H
EERRSAIRERAR HREE(EE)
SRIERERLT)
2 January 2018 “E-\E-ATMmA  HKS30000,0004  Power Ace Investment Ltd 10.00% 23 January 2021 HKS34 882,353
30,000,007 Power Ace Investment Ltd 5 -k WAL
g
26 October 2017 ZE-EETAZEAE HKS175,0000000  Guild Plus Investments Limited 10.00% 19 October 2018 HK$85 2,058,824
17500000087 EHRABRAT 5\ 8ET
+AthA

—E-\EH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

212

37. AR ES(E)

Maximum
number of
shares of
Principal Conversion the Company
Date of issue amount Bondholder Coupon rate Maturity date ~~ price to be converted
AAATES
L7EH .3 BHHEA Z5% H%A BAE Rt AEA
26 October 2017 “E-HETATTRE O HK$175,000000°  Treasure Capital Finance Limited 10.00% 19 October 2018 HK85 2,058 824
1500000087 EREAMBRRAD -\ EtATABSET
8 June 2016 ZE-EAANE HK$200,000,000¢  CCBI International Overseas Limited 10.00% 8 June 2018 HK$78 2,564,103
0000000087 BRERSHNERAT Z5-\EXANA T8ET
8 June 2016 ZE-EAANE HK$100,000,000¢ ~ Central China International Investment 10.00% 8 May 2018 HK$78 1,282,051

100,000,000 7 Company Limited
HEERERRA

* outstanding as at 31 December 2018
L outstanding as at 31 March 2018

The convertible bonds entitle the holders to convert into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date
of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
relevant conversion price (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).
The conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. If the convertible bonds
have not been converted during the conversion period up to
the maturity date, the convertible bonds will be redeemed on
the maturity date at par together with the accrued interest.
Interest are being paid every six calendar months until the
maturity date.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
component and conversion right with settlement option
accounted for as an embedded derivative. As at 31 December
2018, the weighted average effective interest rate of the
liability component of these convertible bonds is 18.7%
(31 March 2018:15.3%) per annum. The conversion option
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

2-N\ERANE 1887

* JiS

ZE-N\FT+ZA=+—BHRER
& R-T—

NEZRA=+—HINREHR

AR IR T 158 AR AT 0 AT AR (R
FRERITRHEERHE A LE R IRE A
FRBHRESESFERRARRATAR(Z
REHEARRS]) - BIROHBETEEHR
RETIERD 2 R 31T - AR ESFEE R
HANBEEIH A RESR - AIRBERES
KRB R ERETNEREERD - &
ANEBAXN—RFE - EEBIHAL -

RRES D SMETD - aERD &
i EELRARTETAARNEE R
B -RZE-N\F+ZA=1+—8 %
SR RRESFAGBHRINERMEFISF
FMEAENIBIW(ZE—NF=ZA=+—
H :15.3%) c |MREITETETIZAFE
R MAFEZSHANIBENER -
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

37. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 37. AR ES(E)

AHE R FERBRBRERZBERDT
ETAFD 2 EBEFIMT

The movements of the liability and derivative components of
the convertible bonds for the current period and prior year
were set out in below:

Liability Derivative

component component

=N PTERS

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

At 1 April 2017 RZE—LFMA—A 259,864 19,073
Upon issue of convertible bonds BITO[ IR E 1A 445,477 35,997
Interest charged B HFIE 61,692 -
Interest paid BEARFLE (24,390) -
Change in fair value RNEEEH - 74,484
Exchange realignment PE g2 (21,063) (1,926)
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—H 721,580 127,628
Redemption of convertible bonds B O AR ES (550,923) -
Interest charged 2 U F 2 95,379 =
Interest paid EARFLE (70,899) -
Change in fair value N EEE = (118,374)
Exchange realignment PE 5 32 32,361 7,880
At 31 December 2018 H-E—NE+=-H=+—H 227,498 17,134

MREITE TR 2 AT ETHR]
FEFTEBE(ER RHE48( ))“ﬁ

The fair value of conversion option derivatives are measured at RE=ZAR
Level 3 fair value measurement (as defined in note 48(c)). £ o
BHE_T-NF=ZA=+—HLFE"
ERBETARREFELESHRARE
4,706,0007C 2 X B KA °

For the year ended 31 March 2018, transactions costs totalling
of RMB4,706,000 had been incurred for the issuance of
convertible bonds.

—T—\FH 213
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 38. IBEREN

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-NF —T)N\F
+t=A=+—-H =A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

214

As beginning of the reporting period ¥R & HIR 496,793 34,800
Amortisation of financial guarantee R B B

liabilities - (22,129)
Addition through acquisition of BRUBNB R RRE (M 5£49)

a subsidiary (note 49) 23,303 =
Financial guarantee provision recognised B2 PSR B #& 228,382 484,122
Reversal of impairment REREE (520,096) =
At the end of the reporting period RS HER 228,382 496,793
Reversal (impairment loss) of financial guarantee contracts RIBE R ISR E 4L CRERS
recognised in profit of loss comprised of: BB

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F —E—+fF
mA—BZE MA—RZE
—E-N\F —E—)\F
t=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT
Financial guarantee provision EER 2 ISR

recognised on:

— Guarantee | and Guarantee |l (note (a)) —#ER—R¥ER=(HiEE)) - (484,122)

- Guarantees in favour of —UEOEERITASEALZ

Yingkou Coastal Bank (note (b)) ER(MED)) (34,478) -
Reversal of impairment in relation to: BN TRIE 2 RMERD

— Guarantee | (note (a)) —ER—(Mit(a) 223,905 =

— Guarantee |l (note (a)) —ER=(HiE(a) 48,983 -

— Guarantee from the newly acquired —RE BB AR 2 BIR

subsidiary (note (c)) (KtaE(c)) 23,303 =
261,713 (484,122)
Notes: Wizt :
(a) Guarantee | and Guarantee Il (a) ER—RER=

RZZE-—RF+ATIR  FEBEEGREF
EEEERRMAERIA(HEGEE])TH
DRBFL—BERER - Bt - ARER
BREEANM AL AR 383,361,0007T
REBRRREIRERAGEEHNERAT
(R ERARDMEENAERHERE
EROER—D -RAB > ZEETARRE
ERARBAFT LM EAER - AER
BEEMAEREBERR -

On 19 October 2016, the Group entered into a financial guarantee
in favour of Jiangsu branch office of China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda"), pursuant to which the Group agreed to
provide a financial guarantee in respect of obligations and liabilities
of Hareon Solar and Jiangyin Hareon Solar Energy Electrical
Power Co., Ltd. (collectively referring to as “Hareon Companies”)
under restructuring documents in the amount of approximately
RMB383,361,000 (the “Guarantee |”). On the same date, Mr. Meng
also entered into a personal guarantee in favour of China Cinda to
provide financial guarantee for the same obligations and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Guarantee | and Guarantee Il (Continued)

In order to protect the interest of the Group against any loss which
might be suffered by the Group under the Guarantee |, Hareon Solar
entered into a counter indemnity in favour of the Group pursuant
to which Hareon Companies agreed to, among other matters,
indemnify the Group for its liabilities and loss which may arise from
the Guarantee I.

The Group had recognised a financial guarantee liability at fair value
of RMB44,281,000 at the date of providing the Guarantee |. For
the year ended 31 March 2018, amortisation of financial guarantee
liabilities amounting to RMB22,129,000 had been recognised in
profit or loss.

On 4 May 2016, the Group had provided a financial guarantee
in favour of a bank of RMB22,990,000 to secure a banking
facility granted to a subsidiary of Hareon Solar (“Guarantee I1").
Subsequently on 19 January 2017, the Group further increased the
maximum guaranteed amount to RMB77,000,000.

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were of the opinion that the
financial condition of the Hareon Companies had significantly
deteriorated with certain of their debts are default in payment. The
Directors considered that it is probable the creditors will demand
the Group to settle the outstanding principal and interest of the
subject debts under the financial guarantees provided by the Group.

On 26 June 2018, three statutory demands were served on the
Company by China Cinda to demand the Company to settle the
outstanding debts totalling of RMB278,153,000 pursuant to the
Guarantee |.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had recognised financial guarantees
provision of RMB496,793,000 which was the Directors’ best
estimation on the probable cash outflow on the obligations of these
financial guarantee contracts.

On 23 July 2018, Hareon Companies announced that Huajun
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. ("Huajun Commercial”), a company
directly controlled by Mr. Meng, has fully repaid the statutory
demands of RMB278,153,000 on behalf of Hareon Companies to
China Cinda.

Subsequently on 26 October 2018, Hareon Companies announced
that Huajun Commercial further paid RMB150,000,000 on behalf of
Hareon Companies to China Cinda for full settlement of the amounts
due by Hareon Companies to China Cinda. On the same date, China
Cinda provided a written confirmation to the Group agreed that the
liabilities under Guarantee | are discharged.

Consequently, the Directors considered that the financial guarantee
contracts liabilities to Guarantee | should be fully reversed on the
basis specified below.

B \FH

MBEREN(E)

Ffet - (%)

(a)

ER-RER=(F)

AREREENTE  RERER-MEARE
BEZEAEL  BERARAREEAE R
AR~ RAFEE - & BERRRE
(AP af)BEASBERZR M EELE
HBREREX -

AEERREER - BHCRATEARE
44,281,000 CHERV KEREE - BHE=-T
—\F=R=+—HLLEE  WBEERAE
i AR822,129,000c 2R B2EER -

R-TB—XERAMBE - KEBRH—AEN
R1TAZ = A M AR 22,990,0007T 8 i1 7
ER - UASEXKRONE R FERN—I18
BITREREER(TERZ] -BER=Z
—tF—A+thB  AEEE-—SREEES
REBEESEARMET7,000,0007T °

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H  EERREK
AFBGRORBRERL - TMERKRES TE
% BEERAERARATLEEZFAEH
ENARERENPFEREOARERTS S
AEBENASRFE -

RZZ—NFXRAZ+ B FEEFEER
BER— - MARARXREZTEEER
BEE  BRAQRFAESREAHXARY
278,153,0007T °

RZZE—N\FZA=+—0  FAEEDHR
B ISR R B AR H496,793,000T © BEE
RUBRERENECHEBERESREHRE
flat e

RZF—-NFLA=+=8" ' BHARE
#5 + Huajun Commercial Factoring Co.,
Ltd. ([Huajun Commercial |) (—RE R &%
EERES AR ERKEEAR AT E
EEZBENEERZREESMAEBAR
#278,153,0007T °

HER_ZE-—N\F+A=Z+XB  BEHRF
S+ Huajun Commercialit — 5K G H
A A B E 2 52 5 AR 150,000,000 78
BB SERRENREFEEZRE -
AA - PREZAAERRER-—HEEHER
B RAEBRER-BETZEE-

At EFRA - BR—ZUBEFREOR
ERR TR A ER SRR -
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38. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

216

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Guarantee | and Guarantee Il (Continued)

According to the relevant laws specified in the financial guarantee
contracts, unless otherwise specified, joint guarantors to a financial
guarantee contract shall be jointly and severely liable to the
guaranteed amount, and if the debtor defaults on the payment,
each joint guarantor may request the other joint guarantor to
equally share the settlement of the guaranteed amount. A reversal
of impairment for financial guarantee contracts to profit or loss
amounting to RMB223,905,000 represents the provision of guarantee
liable by joint guarantor, Mr. Meng. For the portion that the Group
is liable, as the amount has been settled by an entity controlled
by Mr. Meng, settlement of the financial guarantee contract of
RMB223,905,000 is accounted for as an equity transaction with
shareholder as contribution.

In respect of Guarantee Il, the financial guarantee contract was
released upon the outstanding bank loan was settled by the
subsidiary of Hareon Solar in the form of auction of selling its land.
The auction was completed 5 December 2018, and the Group was
no longer liable of the Guarantee Il, consequently, the Directors
considered that the financial guarantee contracts liabilities relating
to Guarantee Il which amount to RMB48,983,000 should be fully
reversed to profit or loss.

Guarantees in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank (as defined in note
54(c))

As at 31 December 2018, a bank loan drawn from the banking
facilities associated with the financial guarantees which is previously
provided by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank to secure
the facilities granted to an independent third party, is outstanding
and now past due, and accordingly being in default, pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, the Group is obligated to compensate the
holder for loss suffered when no repayment of the loan happens. As
a result, the Group reassessed the financial guarantee liabilities and
recognised the impairment loss in aggregate of RMB34,478,000 in
profit or loss.

The Group has provided guarantees to several related parties for
credit facilities in aggregate sum of RMB2,978 million in favour of
Yingkou Coastal Bank. Among the guaranteed facilities, aggregate
amount of RMB2,778 million are drawn by those related parties and
remitted to the Group, with details set out in note 43. The Directors
were of the opinion that the remaining guaranteed facilities drawn
by those related parties are virtually certain to default given
the financial position of those related parties. Accordingly, the
remaining amounts are recognised as financial guarantee liabilities
at 31 December 2018.

Subsequent to the period end, all guarantees in favour of Yingkou
Coastal Bank provided by the Group are released.

MBEREN(E)

izt - ()

(a)

BR-RER=-(E)

RIEF S ERA LT RZHEEES - BIES
B BBERENZERERABER
KERFEERESRE  RINERAERRK
1 SHEABRATEREMERERAL
F#DENRESE - REX BT BER
B HRE A R #223,905,0007T © 15 £ F &
RABIFCEREZ BREE - RAEERE
ZEAMs  BRBREEH 2 EBOE
NZRE BV BEREORBARE
223,905,0007CEAEIR R 2 IRIER 5 AR B
EE o

BRER-ZME @ UHEREONEBHLRZ
MEARNEELEE T A& ER
IRITERERER - HER-T—N\EFE+=A
FHEZEK BEASETBREER=_2E®
T Al EEZRE - ER-ZBBEZHBE
REHEEARKEA8,983,0007T FE A2 O

=85 o

L% Da B RT (E & BKTEES4(c) BAEEA
RIS 2 R

RZBE-NF+ZA=+—8  KAEELH
REGEMBLE=TERZBEMNED
HERTAXBEARB T BEREAIR
TRETRERBRZBOTEAR/REELCE
B AmDEY  REERERZGH - K
SEARAEERFHEINBRLETA
NETTHME - At AEBEEHHMBER
BfE YREEHRREBRAAARE
34,478,0007T °

AEBECRAEREARK278EETLZEE
RMENE RSB RITAR m ARE T B
REER REBERBEF  ZFZF@EHAIC
REVTRAAEEEREEARK 27786 E
T BRERFEENHIEA3 c ER XS
2T BEERA - ZEEE TR
BRTOERBELTOETEY - AL £
THRER=ZZ—)\F+ZA=+—HERA
IS ERAE -

HR%  AEBENEDHERITAZEAR
R PBERERR -
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—F-NEmA-AE=

38.

39.

40.

E-NF+_A=+—HEH

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(c) Guarantees from the newly acquired subsidiary (note 49)

During the nine months period ended 31 December 2018, Yuzhu (as
defined in note 49), a newly acquired subsidiary with details set out
in note 49, has previously entered into a financial guarantee contract
with financial guarantee liabilities of RMB23,303,000 recognised at
date of acquisition. Subsequently, the financial guarantee contract
was released upon the outstanding bank loan being settled by the
borrower before 31 December 2018 and the Group was no longer
liable to the guarantee, consequently, the Directors considered that
the financial guarantee contracts liabilities relating to Guarantee |l
which amount to RMB23,303,000 should be fully reversed to profit or
loss.

DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

On 16 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire the entire equity interest of Yingkou Economic
Technology Development Zone Shangfang Real Estate
Limited (“Shangfang”) at a consideration of RMB135,000,000,
comprised of cash consideration of RMB40,000,000 plus
non-cash consideration represented by certain specified
property units to be developed at an equivalent value of
RMB95,000,000 at the date of contract. As the property units
will be transferred to the vendor upon its completion, the
outstanding consideration has been recognised as a deferred
consideration and measured based on the Directors’ best
estimation of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation as at 31 December 2018. Details of the acquisition
are disclosed in note 49.

DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group received government
subsidy totaling of RMB22,160,000 towards the cost of
construction of its solar photovoltaic production line. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be
recognised in profit or loss on the same basis as depreciation
for the related plant and equipment upon the construction
work has been completed.

As at 31 December 2018, such government subsidy is not
amortised because the related plant and equipment are still
under construction.

—T-)\FR

38.

39.

40.

MBEREN(E)

Ffet - (%)

(c) 0GR B A B (M 5E49) 2 R

HE-_Z-N\F+=-A=+—B1LthE@EA -
FWEZHB AR ER(EE RKTE49) (5%
BERI L) BAT LM BEREH
TAKEBHERVFEREBEARY
23,303,0007T ° Ei% - MBERSORER
ARZE-N\E+ZA=+—BACEBL
RBITERERER - BAEETHEAEZE
R At EFZRE FRER_-_ZHBE
RE#HEEAR23,303,0007T 8K # O

g il
EERE
RZB-NELA+TAR  AEERBY
= ﬁﬁiﬂﬂm - AR O AR

oA R EAEmEARAR( EAD2E
EBR%HE - (B A AR 135,000,0007T © B
EIR & KRB AR ¥40,000,000T 2 IR &
RE ERAEHVBHETHREZEEAR
#95,000,0007c 2 F THREME B -
REKE  MEBEMBERTES - KB
EREEERBEERERBEESN
T NFF+-A=+—RBEERBETA
FERENZEMTTE - WEFBEER
Bi7E49

IEFEURA
R=F-N\F+=A=+—A  AEEY
LR 15 88 0 R 25 B AR R s P R M R

%ﬁ;ﬂﬁ)\&ﬁ&awo,oooi o EET IR
% - ézﬁgé{ﬁ%zﬁku&)\jiﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁmaﬁ%
BEREBETINEZAREENBSR

=7
s

RZZB-—NFE+ZR=+—H  Z5HH
ALY S - T X ARRE R MR D
BRI IR e
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

41. DEFERRED TAXATION 41. EERHIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for T RELERIBESRZ DN - LEM R
financial reporting purposes: HERE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Deferred tax assets EERTRE = (10,957) (9,762)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIEARE 76,524 28,520
65,567 18,758
The following are the major components of deferred tax UTREERZEERAAR(EE) X
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon during DRI ARARIBE N F—FE 2 &

the current period and prior year:

Accelerated
(decelerated)

tax  Revaluation  Impairment
depreciation  of properties and others Total
& (hE)
BEHRE NEXEHMEE HEREM @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 April 2017 RZE—+EMNA—H 15,609 49,068 (3,194) 61,483
Exchange adjustments e (26) = = (26)
Derecognition upon disposal (note 49)  HERIL IR (F1i£49) (13,569) - - (13,569)
Credited to profit or loss AR (4,124) (24,979) (27) (29,130)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1+—H (2,110) 24,089 (3.221) 18,758
Exchange adjustments R (12) = 32 20
(Credited) charged to profit or loss GPNEEISE TS (2,161) 47,998 952 46,789
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=H

=+-—d (4,283) 72,087 (2,237) 65,567
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

41. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 41. EHEBIE (&)

At 31 December 2018, the Group does not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
RMB794,813,000 (31 March 2018: RMB282,533,000) as it was
uncertain that future taxable profits against which the tax
losses could be utilised would be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction. Tax losses of approximately RMB315,198,000 (31
March 2018: RMB196,320,000) do not expire under current
tax legislation and approximately RMB479,615,000 (31 March
2018: RMB86,213,000) would expire within five years from the
year of origination.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB114,709,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB114,083,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to approximately RMB495,058,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB490,121,000). Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB24,753,000 (31 March 2018: RMB24,506,000) representing
the tax payable upon the distribution of such retained
profits have not been recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

B \FH

RZZE—N\F+-A=+—8 BN TEE
HEAHBBENEERE R ARERTE
BEORRERTEF - NREBWRFKR
HEEELAANRMT94,813,000C( ZF— N\
F=A=+—H : AR¥282,533,0007T)
BMRECHBEE - RIBRITHRE - HE
B84 A R#315,198,0007T (Z & — N\ £
—A=+—H : AR#196,320,000T) I
KEM - MHOARE4L79,615,000T( ==
—NE=ZA=+—8: AR%86,213,000
TSR EERZ AFRNEM

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H  &x&HE
B AR E R = R A AR ¥ 114,709,000
T(ZE—NF=ZA=+—HB: AR¥
114,083,0007T ) © 1 4% i 33 B2 ] 3008 & I
ERBEHANEEHBEE  RAATKA
BEVE A FERR TR A A (EE S AT A AT H0R
=% o

RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H “HEK
BRARIZADEGENEHACEREREH
#)7 NR¥495,058,0007t(ZF—NF=
A=+—A: AR%490,121,0007T) ° &
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42. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING

220

COMPANY

In addition to the amount of RMB2,693 million as disclosed in
note 43, the Group has the following balances with immediate
holding company:

(1) The carrying amount as at 31 December 2018
represented amount due to the immediate holding
company, China Huajun Group Limited, with aggregate
gross amount of RMB1,872,931,000. As at 31 December
2018, the amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and agreed not to be repayable until 1 April 2020 which
subsequent to period end, a supplementary agreement
was signed in which the immediate holding company
further agreed not to demand for the repayment until 31
May 2021. The Directors assessed the fair value of the
fund advances, taken into account an effective interest
rate of 6.4% per annum, and recognised an initial fair
value adjustment of RMB186,346,000 to the outstanding
amount.

(2)  The carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 represented
amount due to the immediate holding company, China
Huajun Group Limited, with aggregate gross amount
of RMB570,812,000. As at 31 March 2018, the amounts
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and the immediate
holding company agreed not to demand for the
repayment until 1 July 2019. The Directors assessed the
fair value of the fund advances, taken into account an
effective interest rate of 6.4% per annum, and recognised
an initial fair value adjustment of RMB50,812,000 to the
outstanding amount.

During the current period, the outstanding amount has
been early repaid and the Group has reversed deemed
contribution of RMB32,795,000.

During the current period, the Group borrows
RMB2,559,718,000 from China Huajun Group Limited, among
which RMB214,300,000 received from the designated third
parties and RMB2,345,418,000 received from China Huajun
Group Limited and its subsidiaries. During the current period,
the Group has already repaid RMB1,180,812,000, among which
RMB610,000,000 repaid to the designated third parties and
RMB570,812,000 repaid to China Huajun Group Limited and its
subsidiaries.

Besides, there are debts amounting to RMB76,787,000
transferred to China Huajun Group Limited by signing
agreements on the restructure of debt.
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43. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCING 43. FLE T HERIE

ARRANGEMENTS

On 17 May 2018, Yangzhou Bao Hua Properties Limited
("Yangzhou Bao Hua"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, provided guarantees of RMB778 million in favour
of Yingkou Coastal Bank (as defined in note 54(c)) for credit
facilities in aggregate sum of RMB778 million granted to
two related companies of the Group which Mr. Meng has
significant influence therein. Through utilising the credit
facilities granted and a series of bills financing arrangements,
an aggregate sum of RMB1,100 million bills were issued by
these related companies and net cash proceeds of RMB700
million, after deducting the discounting charge of RMB70
million and security deposits of RMB330 million placed
by these related companies in Yingkou Coastal Bank, was
generated by these related parties by discounting the bills to
unrelated parties and the net cash proceeds was transferred
back to the Group to supplement the Group's working capital.

On 6 June 2018, Bao Hua Properties Management (China)
Limited (“B&H Properties China”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, provided guarantees of RMB2,200 million
in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank for credit facilities in
aggregate sum of RMB2,200 million granted to four related
companies of the Group which Mr. Meng has significant
influence therein. Through utilising the credit facilities granted
and a series of bills financing arrangements, an aggregate
sum of RMB3,133 million bills were issued by these related
companies (including three former subsidiaries of the Group
that the Group completed the disposal of on 5 June 2018)
(see note 49(b)) and net cash proceeds of RMB2,000 million,
after deducting the discounting charge of RMB193 million
and security deposits of RMB940 million placed by these
related companies in Yingkou Coastal Bank, was generated
by these related parties by discounting the bills to unrelated
parties, of which RMB1,594 million were transferred to the
seller of Wuxi Project (as defined in note 49(a)) for settlement
of acquisition consideration on behalf of the Group and the
remaining RMB406 million was transferred back to the Group
to supplement the Group's working capital.
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43.

222

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCING
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Directors considered that the arrangements are in
substance financing from the immediate holding company
under the loan facilities with the immediate holding company
and therefore recognised the advances through the above
financing arrangements (including the amount paid by related
parties to settle the consideration of Wuxi Project) as amount
due to immediate holding company.

The Group has agreed in writing with these related parties
and immediate holding company that in case these related
parties fail to settle their obligations with Yingkou Coastal
Bank and the Group needs to repay to the bank under these
financing arrangements, the Group's corresponding amount
due to immediate holding company will be reduced by the
amount of repayment made by the Group to the bank (if
any). The aggregate gross proceeds received by the Group
under the financing arrangement is RMB2,778,082,000 (as at
31 December 2018, the net proceeds received is carried at
amortised cost of RMB2,693 million at an effective interest
rate of 6.4% per annum). The financial liabilities are classified
as current as the corresponding bills issued through these
financial arrangements will be matured within one year at end
of the reporting period.

Details of the remaining financial guarantee obligations under
these financing arrangements are detailed in note 38(b).

On 29 March 2019, Huajun Holdings Group Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Meng and his spouse, replaced
Yangzhou Bao Hua Properties and B&H Properties China to
be the guarantor of these financial guarantees and the above-
mentioned guarantee obligations of Yangzhou Bao Hua and
B&H Properties China, as confirmed by Yingkou Coastal Bank,
were released. Upon the release of these financial guarantees,
in accordance with the loan facilities between the Group and
the immediate holding company, the immediate holding
company will not demand for repayment of the amount due
to immediate holding company before May 2021. Therefore,
the amount due to immediate holding company under
these financing arrangements are reclassified as non-current
liabilities on 29 March 2019.

43.
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44.

=

A

SHARE CAPITAL

44, B

Number of shares

Share capital

[EE e [N
Ordinary shares ZER 31.12.2018 31.3.2018 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—EB-N\E —E-N\F —E-N\F§ —E-N\F
+=A=+-B =A=+—-8 +=A=+-B =A=+-H
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk THERT FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 SREE1.008TL
each T
At beginning of the reporting R HAfE 4
period 400,000 40,000,000 400,000 400,000
Share Consolidation (note) Ba ot (Fiat) - (39,600,000) - =
At end of the reporting period  R#EHRE R 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
'000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TR’ Fhz AR¥TR ARETTT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At beginning of RIS B
the reporting period 60,669 6,066,920 55,203 55,203
Share Consolidation (note) DA () - (6,006,251) - =
At end of the reporting period  RE BRI K 60,669 60,669 55,203 55,203
— \F3R 223
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44. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

45.

224

Note:

On 5 March 2018, the Company had conducted a share consolidation
whereby every one hundred existing issued and unissued existing shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company had
been consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of HK$1.00
each (“Share Consolidation”). All consolidated shares rank pari passu in all
respects with each other.

The Share Consolidation had let to adjustments to (i) the conversion price
and the number of shares falling to be issued upon the exercise of the
conversion right attaching to the convertible bonds in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds; and (ii) the exercise
price of the share options and the number of shares comprised therein in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the share option scheme of
the Company. These adjustments had been taken up elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
ninth months period ended 31 December 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
CONTRIBUTIONS

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs (maximum of
RMB1,316 per month) to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense of RMB17,465,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB30,537,000) represents contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans during the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018.
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46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 46. ERNEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEEEBHEANUBRRIEEANSER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern ALY RNBBRELRTEEBLR
while maximising the return to shareholders through the BEERE 2 BRIEAZE RS - BUESF
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's B REEZBREEBERITE -

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which REBZEREFHOEEL  HPeEE

77
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, other borrowings, NRE - RITER - HMbER - BNEE
amount due to immediate holding company, corporate bonds, ERABZHIE - REMES - ATBRRES
convertible bonds and equity attributable to shareholders of RARARIRRE( R - BIERA R -
the Company, comprising of share capital and reserves.
Gearing ratio EEAELE
The Directors actively and regularly reviews the capital EEEBR N TR RN EEERREE - &
structure of the Group. The Directors consider the cost of EERERKAREGHRETEBRER
capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as REEHRRz EEABLEAT
follows:
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+t=ZRA=+—-H =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Total assets BEE 15,762,535 11,764,556
Total liabilities mak (13,131,815) (9,083,035)
Net assets FEE 2,630,720 2,681,521
Total liabilities to assets ratio BEEBRELR 83.3% 77.2%

—E-\EH <
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47. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

226

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 28 September 2007 and refreshed the Scheme mandate
limit to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
3 November 2015. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to Executive or Non-Executive Directors including
Independent Non-Executive Directors or any employees
(whether full-time or part-time) of each member of the Group
and for such other purposes as the Board of Directors may
approve from time to time.

Upon expiry of the existing Scheme on 28 September 2017,
no further options will be granted thereunder, but in all other
respects, subject to the provisions under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, the existing Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect, and the options granted thereunder may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with the terms of issue thereof.

At 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 2,703,132 (31 March 2018: 3,638,583)
representing 4.5% (31 March 2018: 6%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders. The number of shares issued and
to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$100 per option granted. There
is no minimum period for which a share option must be held
before the share option being exercised unless otherwise
determined by the Board of Directors. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

47.
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47. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

As disclosed in note 44, the Company completed the Share
Consolidation on 5 March 2018. The disclosure of the number
of options outstanding and exercise price of the options have
been adjusted retrospectively at the date of grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

47. LR BERNETRRS (&)

KT EEAAPT I EE - ARRIR T —N\F=
ARRAZERBEMEH - RIEEAH - i
BB 2 M ARITIE AR B MR 2 1T

EEFENHAE -

FEREARERNFBLT

Number of Vesting
Grantee option Date of grant conditions Exercisable period Exercise Price
ZSUN BREHE REAM BEEE  TEH THEE
Executive* 263,864 22 May 2015 Nil 22 May 2015 to HK$100
TIRAB* —E-RF 1 15 February 2018 10078 7T
EAZ+ZH “E-RFRAZTZHE
“E-N\EZRATHA
Directors 263,064 30 June 2015 Nil 30 June 2015 to HK$200
£= —ET—hF i 29 June 2017 2007 7T
~NA=1H ZE-RERA=THZE
—Z—+FXAZTtNA
Employees 1,607,170 30 June 2015 Nil 30 June 2015 to HK$200
== —E-RF i 29 June 2017 2007 7T
~NA=1H —E-RERA=THZE
—Z—+FXAZTtNA
Employees 2,473,626 7 February 2017 Nil 7 February 2017 to HK$78
== —T—+F = 6 February 2027 7847
= E = —E—+F-AtHE
“E-t+H-HXH
Directors 777,607 7 February 2017 Nil 7 February 2017 to HK$78
£= —T—+F = 6 February 2027 7847
—AtA —E—+F-AtHEE
“E-+F-AXH
Executive* 387,351 16 March 2017 Nil 16 March 2017 to HK$78
1TIRAB* —E—tF 3 6 February 2027 7877
=A+7~H —E—+tF=H+HZE
“E-+F-AXH
* The executive option was solely granted to Mr. Meng, the chairman * ITHABBREERTARREESEFER

of the Board of Directors and an executive director of the Company.

B \FH
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47. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The movement of share options to the executive directors and
employees under the Scheme during the current period and
prior year are presented as follows:

47. LR BERNETRRS (&)

RAHIRE R FERBEZA R TRT
EEhEEZBEEZH2IIT

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 REZB-NFOA-HEZZ-NF+=
B=+—BH8
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Expired at 31
at 1 April Reclassification during during during  December
Grantee 2018 (Note) ~ the period  the period  the period 2018
R=2-N% R=2-N%
mA-H ENNE Hir Hir B +t=A=t-H
RRA W AT (Hit) BRI BT BEH  HAGE
Directors & Executive ESRTBAE 1,164,957 548,100 - - (387,351) 1,325,706
Employees B8 2,473,626 (548,100) - - (548,100) 1,377,426
3,638,583 - - - (935,451) 2,703,132

Note: Share options of 274,050 granted to each of Ms. Zhong Ye and Mr.
Zheng Hongbo on 7 February 2017 (prior to their appointments
as Directors of the Company) were reclassified for presentation

purpose.

For the year ended 31 March 2018

fe - RZE—tF A tB(RRELLRELA
REERZERAARESRH )R TRER
T RBAN AR B 227405010 AR E R
Z2IEMNBENDER -

BE-Z—N\E=A=+—HILEE

Number of share options

BREHE

QOutstanding Granted Exercised Expired Outstanding

at 1 April during during during at 31 March

Grantee 2017 the year the year the year 2018
R-F—t#F RZE-N\F

MmA—H FR FR FR ZA=+-H

SN RATTHR ERi BITE B8 RATTHR
Directors & Executive ESRITHAR 1,771,844 - - (606,887) 1,164,957
Employees B8 4,030,155 - - (1,556,529) 2,473,626
5,801,999 - - (2,163,416) 3,638,583
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47. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 47. URHOAEBUAEHRS (&)
(Continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share BIRES R KT HITEENT
options are as follows:

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E2-\E+ZA=t+-H “2-\f=A=1-H
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price share options

AT EE BRERE 0EFSTEE =

HK$ HK$
B BT
Outstanding at beginning of RE /AR THE
the period/year 78 3,638,583 115 5,801,999
Expired during the period/year W,/ FNEE (f71)
(note) 78 (935,451) 177 (2,163,416)
Outstanding at end of W8/ ER M KITHE
the period/year 78 2,703,132 78 3,638,583
Exercisable at end of B/ ERA T
the period/year 78 2,703,132 78 3,638,583
Note: The relevant grant date fair value of share options expired Mt - ERBBREZEBREBHAZLAFER
amounting to RMB8,386,000 (31 March 2018: RMB15,970,000) have AR#8,386,000t(ZE—NFE=ZA=+—
been transferred from share-based payment reserve to accumulated B : AR%15,970,0007T) ' ERERERE
losses upon the share options expired. gD RERE I REREE R RTE
e
The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had an RZB-NE+ZA=+—HRERITEE
weighted average exercise price of HK$78 (31 March 2018: RiENTEERISBETL(ZE—NF=A
HK$78) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of =+—B8 :78%&x)  MINEFAFHRE
8.1 years (31 March 2018: 8.8 years). HNERAUNRBNF(ZE-—NEF=ZRA=+—
H :88%F)-
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48. €I A

Categories of financial instruments a. SEMIAZER
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E2-N\F
+=A=+—-8B =ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEZEMEE 218,268 =
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAVEFAHMEZERE 2
EFTA 49,031
Financial assets at amortised cost HBENAGTECESRMTA 1,352,793 =
AFS investments AHHERE - 70,741
Held for trading investments RHIEEERE - 101,222
Loans and receivables ER R ERFE(BIEIRIT
(including bank balances and cash) HEHRNRIRE) - 1,133,286
1,620,092 1,305,249
Financial liabilities =K
Amortised cost RS AR AN 8,749,410 7,873,967
Obligations under financing BB TR
arrangements 2,693,469 -
Financial guarantee contracts B SIEIR A 4 228,382 496,793
11,671,261 8,370,760
Derivatives fTET A
Convertible option derivatives B ESTAET A 17,134 127,628
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
finance lease receivables, loan receivables and
interest receivables, AFS investments, held for trading
investments, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bill payables, amount due to immediate
holding company, borrowings, obligations under
financing arrangements, financial guarantee contracts,
corporate bonds and convertible bonds. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes in the consolidated financial statements. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on loan
receivables, listed bond investment, held for trading
investments, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, bill payables and borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States
dollars (“USD" or “US$"), Euros (“"EUR"”) and RMB. The
functional currency of the group entities to which such
risks relate is HKS.

B \FH

48. €T A (&)

b.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.
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48. €T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which

they relate.

Exposure to foreign currencies

EREAREEBERBE(E)

Bxmp (&)

B RO

TRAMASTIAEBRHREHBER

R 3 FF LA $E R

KEBRZIGEER

FHEZEHAEERREMAEZ

BHREMR

REEHAR
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
ZE-\E+ZA=1+-H “2-\E=R=1-H

RMB EUR usb RMB EUR usb

AR¥ B in ARE BT E

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR AR¥TR AR®TR AREFT ARETT AR%ETR

Loan receivables EWED - - - 103,229 - -

Listed bond investments THERERE - - - = 1,480 78,839
Financial assets at FVTPL RAVFEFABEZ

TREE - 151 86,835 = = 5

Held for trading investments BIEBERE - - - = = 70,741

Bank balances and cash RITEHRAS 15,158 2,228 44,756 796 480 76,835

Pledged bank deposits RITHRER - - 18,249 - = 37816

Trade and other receivables Z SR EMERR 9,484 497 47,026 5,293 = 50,208

Prepayment and deposits BARERES - 290 15,028 = = =

Trade and other payables ZHREMENTA (30) (65) (5,649) (3,760) S (6,354)

Bill payables e - - (17,618) = = (39,825)

Borrowings {2 - - - = = (103,366)
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 5% (31 March 2018: 5%)
in the exchange rate of EUR and RMB against HKS,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's loss for the
period of RMB1,027,000 for RMB and RMB129,000 for
EUR (31 March 2018: loss for the year of RMB4,407,000 for
RMB and RMB82,000 for EUR). No sensitivity analysis is
presented for foreign currency fluctuation between US$
against HK$ because Hong Kong dollars is pegged to
US$ and assumed that the rate would not be materially
affected by any changes in movement in value of the HK$
against other currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate finance lease receivables, listed
and unlisted bond investments, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, corporate bonds,
convertible bonds (liability component), borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The Group currently
does not have any instruments to hedge against the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
arising primarily from interest bearing borrowings and
bank balances at variable rate at the end of the reporting
period. The Group's interest rate profile is monitored
by management. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 March
2018, variable interest rate profile includes bank balances
and bank borrowings. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on bank balances and Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings.

B \FH
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 (31 March 2018: 100) basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss for the period by approximately RMB862,000
(31 March 2018: loss for the year by approximately
RMB2,479,000).

Credit risk and impairment provision

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018, other than
financial assets whose carrying amounts best represent
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group arising from the amount of
financial guarantees provided by the Group as disclosed
in note 38, with total carrying amount of RMB228,382,000.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets except that the credit risks associated
with loan receivables and finance lease receivables
are mitigated because they are secured over certain
collaterals of the borrowers. There is no significant
changes in the quality of that collateral as a result of
deterioration or changes in the collateral policies of the
entity during both reporting periods.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

The Group makes investment decision by balancing the
risk and return of the investment portfolio. The Directors
consider that the credit risk exposure to the Group is
limited as the gross investment amount in debt securities
is not significant.

48. €T A (&)

b.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)
Trade receivables and finance lease receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
large customer. Limits and scoring attributed to large
customers are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (31 March 2018: incurred loss
model) on trade receivable and finance lease receivable
balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

Other receivables

The Group has applied ECL model on other receivables
upon application of HKFRS 9 (31 March 2018: incurred
loss model) in which the impairment assessment
for those receivables with gross carrying amount of
RMB59,098,000 that are either listed or multinational
companies with good financial position and without
recent default history are based on 12m ECL while
the remaining balances with increase in credit risk are
assessed based on lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

Loan receivables and interest receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (31 March 2018:
incurred loss model) on loan receivables and interest
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
based on 12m ECL (31 March 2018: incurred loss model)
as there has not been significantly increase in credit risk.

The credit risk on loan receivables and interest
receivables are limited because all loan receivables are
secured over certain collaterals of the borrowers.

The credit risks on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
or national credit-rating agencies.

Based on the Group's internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for loan
receivables and interest receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances.
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b.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed a under the
respective contracts was RMB234,473,000 as at 31
December 2018. The credit risks on financial guarantee
contracts is considered to be either default or virtually
certain to default given the financial position of those
counterparties. Accordingly, the loss allowance is
measured at lifetime ECL and details of the financial
guarantee contracts are set out in note 38.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on:

o Loan receivables which are provided to individual
third parties with no history of default; and

J Liquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit rating.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is in the PRC which accounted for 85% (31
March 2018: 85%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2018.

Other than above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

48. €T A (#&)

EREAREEBERBE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b.
(Continued)

=B R R ERRE ()

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

TRAAEENAFEERR

The tables below is the internal credit policy of the

Group:

Internal credit

Trade receivables/
finance lease

Other financial

rating Description receivables assets/other items
ESEWHE HitemEE/
REBEETR it MERERURE HitEH
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
iET S does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired 1218 ATEERZ B &8
RZHEFABREDRMR B E T EFIE FHRHEERRE-
BEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
= AR credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external ZHIBEMEEEIE- 2HEHEESE -
resources EEERE EBEERE
WERHIE BRSOV RERBRE SRR B PR
RIARA fE 18
Doubtful There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
TF5E impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
RRBRREEREENE FHEREERE- 2HEHEEHE-
FERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtoris ~ Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
e in severe financial difficulty and the Group has #fi #5738 fi g 20E
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no realistic prospect of recovery
ARBRETEBEARRBRENKEE  mAKE
I B FR YR @ AT BE
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group's financial assets and financial guarantee

48. €T A (&)

b. SREAREEZEERBE(E)

EERERRBERE (&)

TREINAETERMEEERN G
MAKBSREEMNMBERELD

contracts which are subject to ECL assessment: MiEERRE
External Internal
31 December 2018 Notes  creditrating  credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amounts
“2-N\E+ZA=1-H Mt HBEETR  ABEETR 12BANHEHEEEE BEAE
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BATEGARB2EREHEZERIA
Listed bond investments 23 B2-B+ N/A 12-month ECL 29,274
LiESRE TER 12EABREEBR
Unlisted bond investments 2 B2-B+ N/A 12-month ECL 19,757 49,031
ALTESRE TER PEARBEEER
Financial assets at amortised cost
BERHAATEZEREE
Trade receivables 28 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 111,777
BHRNFE TER (HiE2) cHEHEERE(RRRR)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individually assess) 99,894
[EaER SHBHEEER(BATR)
Doubtful Credit impaired 13,296 224,967
E& FERE
Loan receivables and interest receivable 29 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 12,187
FEWET REYH S TER R PEARSEEER
Other receivables 28 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 68,185
EfEYsE AER e PEARREEER
High risk Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 99,988 168,173
BEk PERBEERR(EEEAE)
Pledged bank deposits 30 Baa2- Al N/A 12-month ECL 285,634
BIEAER TER 12EABREEBR
Bank balances and cash 30 Baa2-Al N/A 12-month ECL 701,946
BB RRE TER 12EABREEBR
Other item
RfER
Financial guarantee contracts (Note 1) 38 N/A High risk Lifetime ECL 234,473
BBEREN(MH) AER BER LERBEEER

B \FH
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

Notes:

m

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances
or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit
losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
past due status.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ ageing to measure ECL allowance for its
customers which grouped by different segment in relation
to its operations because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based
on provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). Trade receivables with significant
outstanding balances and with gross carrying amounts of
RMB80,188,000 as at 31 December 2018 were assessed
individually. As all these debtors with significant balances are
either listed or multinational companies with good financial
position and without recent default history, they are all
classified as low risk and loss rate of 1% is applied.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

=

A

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables assessed
using provision matrix:

48. €T A (&)

TREAREEBEREE(E)

=B R R ERRE ()

ERBEERET 28 5 RKHIE
ZARMEARE

Average Gross trade Net trade

loss rate receivables ECL receivables

Fi 5 ER izt B5ME

BEE MIRAEE FEEFE WREFE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARETRT ARETT

Current (not past due) BIHER (K@ H) 3% 34,966 975 33,991
1-30 days past due BEE 30K 4% 39,218 1,680 37,538
31-90 days past due FIEERYESTIPN 8% 25,286 2,069 23,217
91-180 days past due HHEI9T1 £ 180K 12% 10,500 1,303 9,197
More than 180 days past due  #HfBiB180% 15% 1,807 272 1,535
111,777 6,299 105,478

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific trade receivable is updated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided
RMB6,299,000 impairment allowance for trade
receivables, based on the provision matrix. Impairment
allowance of RMB2,770,000 and RMB10,303,000 were
made on trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired respectively.

—N\F,

BEHBEETERE R KRR
MU ERAFHANBEMS2ELE
WX WRBAEBHEBERAK
2 BN RIS B ATHE 1E & RHE I T
o W NMERERETH IR E
REBHTE S RUFENEBE
HEE#H -

RZE—NE+_A=+—H8 &
SEREBEREBEERERE S EWKFIEA
A R 6,299,000 7T & & & B
&> DRl A ARY2770,0007T & A
R #10,303,0007T AR BB TR &
BEREEHRREERENESE
WRIBIEL, -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 48. TRMT A (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. E¢REAREEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment provision (Continued) EEER R ERE (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETRBEGIEHEZEHE SR
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the WEFEBATHERAEEEERY
simplified approach. E

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

RS 2HES

FEBR FEBR
(BEERE) (F&ERE) Ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T ARETT

As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZE-NF=A
under HKAS 39 =+ —-HRBEE
B ERIE395R - 2,993 2,993
Adjustment upon REREEVBREE
application of HKFRS 9 BIZE 95k I S = = - -
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE—N\FWMA—H - 2,993 2,993
Impairment losses AR B B fEaR R (e
recognised during EiE
the current period
— impairment losses —BERRRERSE
recognised 9,069 10,303 19,372
Exchange adjustments BEE 34, ) 94 - 94

As at 31 December 2018 RZ=-ZZE—NE

+=B=+—8H 9,163 13,296 22,459
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on BEEEERDERKEATERE
historical observed default rates over the expected life RERRNBRMBZELEZOEX
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking Wiz RE R B2 K A% A
information that is available without undue cost or effort. AESRIEEERHEL A% -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities at FVTPL, listed
fund investments and listed bond investments. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. Majority of
the Group's equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices as at
the reporting date. The bond investments are listed on
various bond markets and are valued at quoted market
prices as at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity and debt
instruments had been 1% (31 March 2018: 1%) higher/
lower:

o the Group's loss after tax for the period from 1 April
2018 to 31 December 2018 would have increased/
decreased by RMB2,183,000 (31 March 2018: loss
after tax would have decreased/increased by
RMB845,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of held for trading investments; and

. investment valuation reserve would have increased/
decreased by RMB490,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB591,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed bond investments.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. Management also monitors the
utilisation of banking facilities and ensures compliance
with loan covenants. As at 31 December 2018 and 31
March 2018, no loan covenants had been breached.

B \FH

48. €T A (&)

b.

EREAREEBEREE(E)

HE%ERE

AEBBREZAFEFABSEZ £
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MR EEEGESE
BEREZ AT ERE ML
mn E A AR #2,183,0007T
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

244

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2018

48. €T A (#&)

b.

EREAREEBERBEE)

REELEE(E)
mEE R K

THBRFAHARNEEIFITER
MEENRBRANIBMBER - ZF
FRAK TH 1R BR 7R 62 [ A B A 2B SRR R
WREAH  EXREBEEMNREY
RAESREMGRR - RFITES
MEENIEPEEROTENER
B -

ERBREBMNEMETEZRE R
ENMBRE R F BN G
CBIRBEIR BT AR S B R
MRFFEMAK -

o

3 iﬂﬂ* B S

i
'J)Hi

—-NE+=ZA=+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

SORARRRER
Weighted Carrying
average  On demand Total amount
effective  or within undiscounted as at
interest rate Tyear 1-2years 2-5years  >5years  cashflow 31.12.2018
R-2-NF
e
BETS  RER gAER =18
EhAE  d-fn -FERF WEERE % RERE REE
%  RMB'O0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARWTR
Trade and others payables LS R ENTE - 1,150,010 - - - 1,150,010 1,150,010
Bill payables EfiZ& - 576,664 - - - 576,664 576,664
Amount due to EREEERATNE
immediate holding company 6.4 - 1,872,931 - - 1872931 1,706,956
Corporate bonds DR 11.6 234,665 11,366 13,343 89,559 348,933 290,949
Convertible bonds - —Hﬁ %5
liability component BESD 1341 21,754 21,754 263,714 - 307,222 227,498
Borrowings m 77 3,636,500 1,482,654 121,303 - 5240457 4,797,333
Obligations under finance leases BB E#E 2.3 7,725 7,725 10,990 - 26,440 24,566
Obligations under financing HARGRE
arrangements 6.4 2,778,082 - - - 2,778,082 2,693,469
Financial guarantee contracts BHERED - 234473 - - - 84413 228382
Total ait 8,639,873 3,396,430 409,350 89,559 12,535,212 11,695,827
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—E-NFAR-AE

—E-NEF A= —HEH

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

At 31 March 2018

48. €T A (#&)

TREAREEBEREE(E)

/}Ib.agf/—“k%(ﬁt)
mBECERRKE)

R-ZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

EHERERRSTE

Weighted Carrying

average  On demand Total amount

effective or within undiscounted asat

interest rate Tyear  1-2years  2-5years  >5years  cashflow  31.3.2018

RZE-N\E

=A

ET gEL 4 BR¥%  =1t-H

ERAE gERm —FERE  WMERRE Bk RenE e

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARETT  ARETR AR®TT  ARETR  ARETR

Trade and others payables LS REMENTE - 1218517 - - - 1218517 1278517

Bill payables EfZE - 503,552 - - - 503,552 503,552
Amount due to EREEERAR

immediate holding company EV] b4 - 570,812 - - 570,812 520,000

Corporate bonds DAES 98 186,564 87,729 2591 95,594 395,808 256,265

Convertible bonds - } RiE5H-

liability component BEYH 15.3 571,857 24,851 268,265 - 864,973 721580

Borrowings fat 76 2461605 791561 1926874 - 5180040 4,594,053

Financial quarantee contracts BBERAY - 496,793 - - - 496,793 496,793

Total A3t 5498888 1474953 2,221,000 95,594 9290495 8,370,760

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018
and 31 March 2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of
these bank borrowings amounted to RMB48,078,000 and
RMB679,500,000 respectively. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the Directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that these bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

B \FH

B A5 42 B SROE BUE AR 1T B 3R AR

AL B o RP [EERksk—
FR|-W-R-_ZT—NFE+=-A
=t+—ARZE-NEF=ZA=+—
B %SROTEIEERELED
Bl A R #48,078,0007T K& A R
679,500,000 JT ° &Z EANE® 2 B
BN - EERBIBITTRATEEST
FHBEEMERTNER -EF
RAERFRITERESRERGZ

ZHEERBHES -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

246

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

The following table details the Group's aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows for bank borrowings
repayable on demand without taking into account the
repayment on demand clause. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from weighted average interest rate at the end of
reporting period.

48. €T A (&)

b. SREAREEZEERBE(E)

mBELEE(E)

nBETERRE)

TRAARAAZEREENLSE
BERITEFRNASRELMNERS
M HEARET R MY iR B SRE IR
RE - BNERETNRFHNEG
FoARBEBRESBEDAREHER

B AT 49 SR 31 8 77 o

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

ANRERRLR
Weighted  On demand Total
average  or within undiscounted ~ Carrying
interest rate Tyear 1-2years 2-5years  >5years  cashflow amount
ik 337 REX BRER
EBRZ g% -FERE WEERF % ReRE BEf
% RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Secured bank borrowings with K& RERERERN
repayable on demand clause: BEARTER
As at 31 December 2018 R=2-NEt+2A
=t-H 3.6 48,101 - - - 48,101 48,078
As at 31 March 2018 RZZ-JVE=A
=1+-H 17 688,164 - - - 688,164 679,500
The amounts above include certain variable interest ENWRAEHR K R REE G
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities RIAE TR - B L

is subject to change if change in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

B(RRBRETZEBN RGBT

EeRBEIRA)KEE

o
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 48. T E (&)

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date.

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

J Level 3 inputs are inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Details of the recurring fair value measurement of
the relevant assets are set out in note 23 of these
consolidated financial statements. During the current
period and prior year, these were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, nor transfers into Level 3.

Except for convertible bonds which have a fair value
of RMB264,791,000 (31 March 2018: RMB591,104,038),
the Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values at the
end of the reporting period, determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis.

B \FH

AT EIE

RFEFERBAFEFEZHA
BEABREERATVEFEZS
ABEHERBZERUNERSE
—EREE=R FBWET

s FE-RBARBAERNIE
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s FBE_RBAREBAREEXR
REZ(AER)XLEE (A H
BRI TBREZBA
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o EBZRBAREAYIFERT
BIEmB BB HABE(T
ABRHABER)

FHREENREEATEFEFS
BRAG AP BRI E23 - RA
HEREEFE  E-—HME_R
ZHEYEER  TESAEE=H
BB -

BAFEEAB AR 264,791,000 7T
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ERE RBEHER - RERAS 7I
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49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 49. WK HEHNEB A H

SUBSIDIARIES

During the current period and prior year, the Group continued RABBRBTFE  NEBEEBAK
to actively seek for investment opportunities through BEEERSKKREKS  WETKIRE
acquisitions and has completed several acquisitions of HETHBAR - FAR  REBIREEST
subsidiaries. Meanwhile, the Group also disposed of several MEARIUEEFRZLER - WERBLE
subsidiaries to concentrate on its core businesses and realise MEBARESRRNEENMEELEE - TRB
the Group's property assets through disposal of subsidiaries. RERHIHE -

The following tables summarised these transactions:
a. Acquisitions a. g

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 RZBE-NFOA-HE=F-N
FrZA=1+—HHH

Percentage
Name of of interest Fair value of purchase Date of Nature of
subsidiary acquired ~ Vendor acquired  Principal activity consideration completion acquisition
Wi 2 g
WEZHEAREHE EF BAlt  TEEER BEREAYE THAH WiRHE
Baohua Wuxi* Two independent 100%  Property development  RMB,354,645,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of
RERS! third parties ELE ARE1354645000 —E-N\F assets through
MEBUE=T tA~A acquisition of
subsidiary
ERKENEAR
WiREE
Wuxi Huiyuan® An independent 100%  Property development ~ RMB355,950,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of
BHTER third party RS AR¥3595000r —FE-NE assets through
—RBUEZH tA~A acquisition of
subsidiary
ERKENEAR
WiREE
Wuxi Huize Two independent 55%  Property development  RMB448,070,000 6 July 2018 Acquisition of
BHEE third parties hERE ARB48 070000  ZE-N\F assets through
MEBUE=T tA~A acquisition of
subsidiary
ERKENEAR
WiREE
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TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a.

A

Acquisitions (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

49. WERHEWB AR ()

a. WHE(E)

RZFBE-NFOA-HE=ZF-N

(Continued) FHt-A=+—HHB (&)
Percentage
Name of of interest Fair value of purchase Date of Nature of
subsidiary acquired ~ Vendor acquired  Principal activity consideration completion acquisition
Wi 2 g
WEZHEAREHE EF BAlt  TEEER BEREAYE THAH WiRHE
Yingkou Yuzhu Science  An independent 100%  Production photovoltaic RMB1 1 August 2018 Acquisition of
And Technology third party products ARBIT “F-0\% assets through
Development Limited —%BIE=H FEXRER NA—R acquisition of
("Yuzhu") subsidiary
EOERMAER ERKENEAR
(E3:) WiREE
Huajun Power An independent 100%  Production photovoltaic RMBS,060,000 1 August 2018 Acquisition of
(Yingkou) Co., Ltd. third party products ARE8,060,0007 E-N\E assets through
("Huajun Power") —RBUE=H EERRER NA—H acquisition of
EREN(EN)ARAA subsidiary
([£ZEN)) ERKENEAR
WiREE
Shangfang Two independent 100%  Property development  RMB135,000,000 10 August 2018 Acquisition of
i) third parties MERE AK#135,0000000 ZE-N\F assets through
MEBUE=T NATH acquisition of
subsidiary
ERKENEAR
WiREE
Liaoning Wanhua An entity controlled 100%  Property management  Nil* 12 September Acquisition of
Property Service Co., by Mr. Meng NEER i 2018 assets through
Ltd. ("Wanhua") AEERH ER “E-\EF acquisition of
EERENEREER NRT=H subsidiary
raEE]) ERKENEAR
WiREE
249
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49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a. Acquisitions (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

a. WHE(E)

49. WERHEWB AR ()

RZEBE-NFOA-HE=F-N

(Continued) FHt-A=+—HHB (&)
Percentage
Name of of interest Fair value of purchase Date of Nature of
subsidiary acquired ~ Vendor acquired  Principal activity consideration completion acquisition
WiE g
W< HEATER EF ARl FEER BEREAYE SR A WiEME
Yingkou Yi Hua Green  An entity controlled 100%  Printing RMB30,000,000 9 November Acquisition of
Packaging Printing by Mr. Meng hl AR 30,000,000 2018 assets through
Co.ltd. ("YiHua")  ZL4REIZER “E-N\E acquisition of
ENaEReaRIR +-ANH subsidiary
ERAR(£%]) FRNEHEBAR
WEREE

These acquisitions have no purchase consideration because
the assets acquired is equal to the liabilities assumed in the

* HRERARMBE 2 EESRAIAEZ
= E

S

WeRE I A B AME -

250

respective companies.

The operations of these subsidiaries, including the
development of properties, are in suspension phases
regardless of the pre-sales of properties and certain
development are conducted in earlier periods, there are no
such resources that enable these subsidiaries to continue
as business prior to the acquisitions. The management
considered that in view of that business can only be resumed
upon the fund injection and resources provided by the Group
subsequent to the acquisitions, accordingly, the acquisitions
do not constitute a business.

All the above acquisitions do not constitute a business
because they do not include an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output.

THEEMEERNRFPETNE
THIE ZEWBARNERK(RRE
MERZE)RNEFRER  YEAR
EVRE SR )Y
X1 BEEERR EREBEATR
REERWEBIRTE RREHERRIK
B Bt - WETEK—EE -

HRKRBY TEEREAR—EXR
HaEB L NERERERN

Bt P B S TR A

—IRER
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49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a. Acquisitions (Continued)

49. WERHEWB AR ()

a. WHE(E)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of RKBHKBzEERFIEZAR
acquisition
Wuxi Huajun
Project Yuzhu Power Shangfang Others Total
EHER % EEES i) it @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR ARETR
(note)
(Hizt)
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% » BE RiE 306 132,108 1,084 5 52,006 185,509
Prepaid lease payment BRBERE - 45,708 20,228 - 10,388 76,324
Investment properties RENE 118,600 - - - - 118,600
Properties held for sale BEHE NE 2,783,257 - - 147,400 - 2,930,657
Deposits and other receivables  #&& R E thEUH 103,176 55,011 30,234 - 7,452 195,873
Pledged bank deposits RTERER - - 33,728 - - 33,728
Bank balances and cash RITERRES 28,238 26 3 4 15 28,286
Construction and other payables B K HthfE( 7B (499,359)  (103,550) (77,217) (12,409) (39,861)  (732,396)
Financial guarantee contracts BRERAD = (23,303) = = = (23,303)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZMERZE  (1,512,900) = = = (20,000) (1,532,900
Contract liabilities AHEE (263,703) = = = - (263,703)
Bank borrowings RITIER (223,000)  (106,000) - - - (329,000
534,615 - 8,060 135,000 10,000 687,675
Non-controlling interests FrRER(NRER)
(net liabilities) 111,150 - - - - 111,150
Assignment of debt EEEER 1,512,900 - - - 20,000 1,532,900
2,158,665 - 8,060 135,000 30,000 2,331,725

Note: Acquisitions of Baohua Wuxi, Wuxi Huiyuan and Wuxi
Huize are collectively referred as “Wuxi Project” because
the subsidiaries are inter-linked with each other and the
acquisitions are completed on same date. Therefore, the
Directors considered that these acquisitions as a series of

B \FH

transactions and the financial impacts on acquisitions should

be considered together.

FfeE - WIBRERS BHMRERESHE
ESERESAA | RERZSH
BARERBEERBERERBTK -
Hit - EFHRSURERR—RIR
ZRIEFRZEHKBEOWEZE -

251



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a.

Acquisitions (Continued)

49. WERHEWB AR ()

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

Wi ()

RZEBE-NFOA-HE=F-N

(Continued) FE+ZHA=1+—HHBE(#E)
Fair value of consideration transferred BEEREZATE
Wuxi Huajun
Project Yuzhu Power Shangfang Others Total
®ipER % EEES tr Hitp @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETR AR¥TR ARETn AR%ETx
Cash B 564,000 - 8,060 40,000 30,000 642,060
Obligations under financing BETHAE (N Ha)
arrangements (note a) 1,594,665 - - - - 1,594,665
Deferred consideration (note b)  EERE(Hf3tb) - - - 95,000 - 95,000
Total st 2,158,665 - 8,060 135,000 30,000 2,331,725
Notes: Bt -

(a) The amount represents the funds drawn from Yingkou Costal
Bank by certain business partners of Mr. Meng on behalf of
the Group whereas the Group has entered into respective
financial guarantee contracts with these business partners and
acts as a guarantor over these borrowings (note 43).

(b) The deferred consideration represents certain specified
property units at an equivalent value of RMB95,000,000 at the
date of contract. The property units will be transferred to the
vendor upon its completion (note 39).

252

() SEEREENETEBBHERERE
SERENMERTRERINES - M
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49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

=

A

a.

Acquisitions (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisitions of subsidiaries
for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

49. WERHEWB AR ()

a. WHE(E)

RZB-NFOAA-BE=Z-N
F+=A=1+—HHRE (&)

RZE-NFOA-—HBEZEZZ-N\
FH+_A=+—HBHMAREBMNER

AZBERACRH)FHE

Huajun
Wuxi Electronic
Project Yuzhu Power Shangfang Others Total
BHER % EEES i) it @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETrn ARETR AR¥Tn ARETR AR¥TR
Cash consideration paid at RZZE-\F1+ZA
31 December 2018 =t-BzEfRE
RE (564,000) - (8,060) (40,000) (30,000)  (642,060)
Less: Bank balances and B EYE R AT
cash acquired ERRAE 28,238 26 3 4 15 28,286
Less: Deposits paid in prior period 5, : B\ B HMH
Xz kE 564,000 - - - - 564,000
28,238 26 (8,057) (39,996) (29,985) (49,774)

—N\F,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

49. WEEKR HEMB AT (Z)

a. Acquisitions (Continued)

a. WHE(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_FE—-NF=ZA=+—HI*
E
Percentage
Name of of interest Fair value of purchase Date of Nature of
subsidiary acquired Vendor acquired  Principal activity consideration completion acquisition
YEWBARZE  BR WEzRERD TERB BERELTE TREE WEHE
Guofu Minfeng An independent 100%  Property investment  RMB45,000,000 12March 2018 Acquisition of
Corporation (Yingkou) third party NERE ARBL000000  ZE-N\F assets through
Co., Ltd. ("Guofu —%BUE=H =At+=H acquisition of
Minfeng”) subsidiaries
AEREE%(20) ERKENEAR
ERAA(EERE)) WiREE
Superior Capital Assets ~ An independent 100%  Investment holding and  HK$13,724,000 10 November 2017 Business
Limited (" Superior third party provision of securities  (equivalent to “F+% combination
Capital”) —%BUE=H brokerage services RMB11,157,000) +-A+A £RAH
Superior Capital Assets REBRRREES 137240008 L(RER
Limited ([ Superior Bk ARE11,157,0007)
Capital])

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

REBEARE cEEREEZABE

acquisition
Guofu Superior
Minfeng Capital Total
Superior
HERE Capital HEt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETIT ARETIT
Investment properties = ES 61,157 = 61,157
Deposits and Re K E At JE WURIE
other receivables 16,682 42 16,724
Bank balances and cash BT NIRS 696 3,028 3,724
Trade and other payables B REHMENZIE (33,516) = (33,516)
Tax payable FERT I8 (19) = (19)
45,000 3,070 48,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 49. WBRHEMB AR (A)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
a. Acquisitions (Continued) a. WEBE)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-_E—-NF=ZA=+—HIF
E(#)
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of RUERWB 2 EERAEZAE
acquisition (Continued) (%)
The deposits and other receivables acquired in the UL EE Superior Capital U B K 1%
acquisition of Superior Capital carried a fair value of SREMBEWRRIBEZ AFEAAR
RMB42,000. The gross contractual amounts of those #42,0007T - PWEBEE - B IBH
receivables acquired amounted to RMB42,000 at the date ZERBFENEGHNSERAR
of acquisition. None of the contractual cash flows are not #42,0007T - TEEIRWIE R I e
expected to be collected at acquisition date. WEHERIEHIREIRE °
Fair value of consideration transferred EEEREBAFE
Guofu Superior
Minfeng Capital Total
Superior
BEERE Capital HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBETT

Cash Re 45,000 11,157 56,157

Z—\FR 299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a. Acquisitions (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

49. WERHEWB AR ()

a. WHE(E)

BE-—ZE-NF=ZA=+—HIE
E (&)

BUBHBARELEZHE

Guofu Superior
Minfeng Capital Total
Superior
HEERE Capital HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARBETT

Fair value of consideration pEEAEBATE

transferred 45,000 11,157 56,157
Net assets acquired EWEFEE (45,000) (3,070) (48,070)
= 8,087 8,087

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Superior Capital
because it enables the Group to diversify the business
in a realm with potential growth opportunity and the
Group considers that the investment in Superior Capital
will provide another source of income to the Group as
the Group will hold the entire equity interest of Superior
Capital. This represents an unique opportunity for
the Group to invest into a quality company engaging
in trading of securities business so as to diversify its
business portfolio. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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W 88 Superior Capital EAEE - REA R
HA#EASEASENEBEARE

EREENABEREZ T MAKE
RAEPSuperior Capital IR E 1§ R AEE
RE#ES—WARE  REARAEEERFE
Superior Capital ) 2 & AHE « It AARE R
BRER—HRERNNEIZHFEBELN
RAIMBEMS Mo HEBKESES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 49. BN HEMB AT (£)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a. Acquisitions (Continued) a.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2018

Wi ()

BE-—ZE-NF=ZA=+—HIE
E (&)

HE_Z-N\F=ZA=t+—HILF
FEH BB A RNIRE IR FER

Guofu Superior
Minfeng Capital Total
Superior
BEERg Capital HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBTIT ARBTIT
Cash consideration paidat HRZZ—/\F=HA
31 March 2018 =t—HZRERE (45,000) (11,157) (56,157)
Less: Bank balances and B IRITHE R
cash acquired BUEEIR & 696 3,028 3,724
(44,304) (8,129) (52,433)

The above acquisition of Superior Capital was made to
expand the Group’s spectrum of financial services. No
material acquisition related costs were incurred in the
acquisition of Superior Capital.

A

Z—\FH

Superior Capital 8 - it Y & 75 F A
BRrEENemREHERE - NI
f8Superior Capital R BEAHE
RNUEEE BRI ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

258

b.

Disposals

49. WERHEWB AR ()

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

HE

—E-NE@RF-AE=-ZE-Nf
+=ZA=+—HEH

Percentage
Name of subsidiary of interest Date of
disposed of Buyer disposed of  Principal activity Disposal proceeds completion
HERiE

HEZHRANER En ARl EEER HEFRBTE TR EH

Dalian Huashunjie Logistics ~ Parties significantly 100%  Dormant Nil 5 June 2018
Co., Ltd. ("Dalian influenced by BmER g —E-N\E
Huashunjie”) Mr Meng ~ALR

REZRRNAARLA RAZEEATE
(TKElgEz]) Y

Dalian Huataian Logistics Co.,  Parties significantly 100%  Dormant Nil 5 June 2018
Ltd. ("Dalian Huataian") influenced by BmER g —E-N\E

AEERRMTARLE Mr Meng ay:Kil=
([RE£R% ) RAZEEATE

&%

Dalian Huashunxin Logistics  Parties significantly 100%  Dormant Nil 5 June 2018
Co., Ltd. ("Dalian influenced by BmER g —E-N\E
Huashunxin”) Mr Meng ~AEA

REZRENRARDT RAZEEATE
([REZIES)) &%

Huajun Supply Chain An independent 100%  Dormant HK$22,000 30 June 2018
Management Limited third party TBEK 22,0007 0%
EERERERERLA —4BUE=] A~R=TH
Huajun Media An independent 100%  Dormant HK$100 31 July 2018
Company Limited third party Fif: &3 10057T —E-\&

EEX(LBRARAT] —4BUE=S tA=+-8

Baohua Properties Shenyang  An entity controlled 100%  Dormant RMB1 6 August 2018
Co., Ltd. ("BH Property by Mr. Meng TEEH AREIT —E-)\E
Shenyang”) ARERGINER N\R~E

REDERBERLT
(MREpEER])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 49. WIER HEKBAR(HF)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
b. Disposals (Continued) b. HE&#E)
For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018 —E-NFHOE-BE=-ZF-N#
(Continued) +t=ZA=+—HHEE)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was REEGEZEERABON
lost

BH Property

Shenyang Others Total
REWERES Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTR ARWTF T

Property, plant and M - BB KA

equipment 2 - 2
Inventories FE 8 - 8
Deposits and other e N E b eI FIE

receivables 4,876 - 4,876
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 715 - 715
Other payables Hth FE AR08 (5,601) - (5,601)

HEMB AR ZERE

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

For the above transactions, the Group has received cash %iﬁg?&%ﬁﬁf ' $%?Jﬁ§%ﬁ

consideration of approximately RMB20,000 which also S AEKARR20,0007T - HIRTR
4y — A= —%

represents the gain on disposal of subsidiaries for the R-F-)\FOA-RAE=ZF—N

period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018. :E—Z@H ST-RARMESHER
AN ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

260

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

b.

Disposals (Continued) b.

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries

BH Property

49. WERHEWB AR ()

HE ()

—E-FMA-AE-E-/N\F
t+tZA=+—HHBE(E)

HEMBRRZRERE

Shenyang Others Total
REEHh B Hith it
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AR¥T AR¥T T
Cash consideration received R -_Z—\F+_A
at 31 December 2018 —t—H#mZzRE
KRE - 20 20
Bank balances and HEZIRITEHRRIRS
cash disposal of (715) - (715)
(715) 20 (695)

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December
2018, Dalian Huashunjie, Dalian Huataian, Dalian
Huashunxin, and BH Property Shenyang Co., Ltd are
disposed of to an entity significantly influenced by Mr.
Meng. As all of these subsidiaries are dormant with no
net assets value, the Directors considered that these
disposals do not have material financial impact to the
Group (note 54).

“E-N\FOA-HE-_Z-)N\F
t-A=1+—BHM8  KEEIR
B REERL  KEFZBRERRF
EWERGERAFNREE THE
EHRBEAZENNER - ANZ
EMBAREERXEAYEREEF
B EFZAR/RFLELEBHAL
BIEREAN R B (HE54) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

b.

A

49. WERHEWB AR ()

Disposals (Continued) b. HE&#E)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_Z-NE=Z/F=+—HIF
E
Percentage
Name of subsidiary of interest Fair value of Date of
disposed of Buyer disposed of  Principal activity disposal proceeds completion
W2 RiEZ
W WBRAL =yl Al IBEEK HERGREZATE THAS
Zhejiang Linhai Machinery An entity controlled 100%  Production and sale of RMB190,000,000 29 March 2018
Limited by Mr. Meng turbines, transformers,  AR%190,0000000  ZE-N\F
AIEEEHERAR hAERH EE torque converters and ZAZtAA
related products
FERBERS 2RERE
pEng  REBER
Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate  An independent 100%  Property Development RMB240,000,000 29 March 2018
Company Limited third party NEFE ARBU0000000  ZE-N\E
EOEEHEERAT BUE=H ZA=ThE
Candice Group An independent 22%  Trading of electronic RMB3,656,800 31 October 2017
ZENRER third party products and applicants  AR3,656,8007 “E-tF
BUE=H BEETERRRE +A=1-H
Shenyang Baohua Industrial A independent 100%  Property investment RMB80,000,000 4 December 2017
Co., Ltd. third party NERE AR 80,000,000 “T-rF
EEREZZRRAT BuEZH +ZAmA
Yangzhou Tairun Photovoltaic ~ An independent 51%  Production of photovoltaic ~ RMB5,089,851 16 October 2017
Technology Co., Ltd. third party products ARE5,089,8517 “E-tF
(“Yangzhou Tairun") BUE=H EEXRER +A+~H

NSRBI EARAR
([5M%R))

T\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF 49. WERHEWB QT (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
b. Disposals (Continued) b. HE&#E)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued) BE-_ZE—-NF=ZA=+—HIF
E(E)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was REEGRZEERABON
lost
Yingkou
Zhejiang Kunlun Candice
Linhai  Real Estate Group Others Total
2OE® e
HIEE BiE BEE i @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTRT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 47,057 198 75 - 47,330

Deposits for acquisition of WE-BRENE KRS
an investment properties - - - 37,042 37,042
Properties held for sale BIEHE 2% = 281,185 = = 281,185
Inventories BE 47 456 = 90,428 = 137,884
Prepaid lease payments BHHERA 61,027 = = = 61,027
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R EMERER 26,455 38,939 104,699 2,225 172,318
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  EWR ZHBA R IR 266,966 = = = 266,966
Pledged bank deposits STERED 494 - - _ 494
Bank balances and cash ROTEHERS 88 20 7415 1,618 9,141
Trade and other payables B RAMENTIE (23192) (66,188) (57,615) = (146,995)
Bill payables ANES (494) = = = (494)
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNBARE = = (30,180) = (30,180)
Borrowings &3t (301,491) (136,580) (66,532) = (504,603)
Deferred tax liabilities ERXHBEAE (13,569) - - S (13,569)
Tax payable JERHE - = (4,504) = (4,504)
110,797 117,574 43,786 40,885 313,042
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

=

A

b. Disposals (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

49. WERHEWB AR ()

b. HW&#E)

BE-—ZE-NF=ZA=+—HIE

E(#E)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries M B A R 2 W s
Yingkou
Zhejiang Kunlun Candice
Linhai  Real Estate Group Others Total
0B/ 27
ks BiE HESE Hih @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Cash consideration ReRE 190,000 240,000 3,657 85,090 518,747
Net assets disposed of BHEAEFE (110,797) (117,574) (43,786) (40,885) (313,042)
Less: Non-controlling interests SRR ER - - 21,455 1,292 2,747
Add: Goodwill m:EE (57,238) - - - (57,238)
Add: Fair value of the 29% retained  fil : 29%REBEH 2
interests N - - 17,615 - 17,615
21,965 122,426 (1,059 45,497 188,829
Cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZIRERE
Yingkou
Zhejiang Kunlun Candice
Linhai  Real Estate Group Others Total
EOE® £7
IR FiE HER&E £t @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:
Cash consideration received at ERZE-\¥=R
31 March 2018 =+-RYmeRE
K& - - 3,657 85,090 88,747
Bank balances and cash disposal of ~ HEZRITEHKEE S (88) (20) (7,415) (1,618) (9,141)
(88) (20) (3,758) 83,472 79,606
—NF#H 263



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—E-N\FOA-HE-F

—NEF+ZA=+—HHR

49. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

b. Disposals (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

Cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the consideration of RMB240,000,000
from disposal of Yingkou Kunlun Real Estate is included
in deposits and other receivables as the amount is
deemed as a prepayment to the purchaser to set off
against the equivalent value of future construction cost
payables. Details are as set out in note 28.

The consideration from the disposal of Zhejiang Linhai
of RMB190,000,000 is settled against the amount due
to immediate holding company upon completion (note
54(b)).

50. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A

264

SUBSIDIARY

On 12 June 2018, Bao Hua Properties (China) Co., Ltd.
("BH Properties China”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement (the
"Agreement”) with Yixing Zhongtang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
("Yixing Zhongtang”) to acquire its 15% of equity interest in
at nil consideration and the debts due by Wuxi Huize to Yixing
Zhongtang at a consideration of RMB76,500,000.

The transaction contemplated under the Agreement
constituted a change in ownership interests in Wuxi Huize.

On 20 November 2018, the transfer of shares has been
completed and the equity interest of Wuxi Huize held by the
Group has been increased from 55% to 70%.

The change in ownership interest in Wuxi Huize as a result of
the transfer of equity interests has been accounted for as an
equity transaction. As the net liabilities assumed of Wuxi Huize
at the date of transaction is RMB248,108,000, the Group had
recognised a transfer of RMB37,216,000 from non-controlling
interests to accumulated losses during the current period.

49.

50.

WiE K HEWMB AR (&)

b. HW&#E)

;@:‘:—?
E(#)

—NEZF=+—HIF

==
i

EMB A

ol

ZRERE(E

RZFE—NF=A=+—8 AR
HEENEmBEHEZLRBARK
240,000,000 T R AR E 75 X152
TERTRIE - MEBESESBE AR
EREBEKEN  WEZESBAAES
R E M EULERIE o FFIBEMHIEE28 o

HETN IR EBEZREARK
190,000 OOOTEEA%@Z?&E@FEHE%
2R B RIEHE 35 (P E54(b)) -

R_EMBLAR 2 ERERER
25
R=

A —NFERA+TZH ARFAZEE
Mﬂ% AREME(PE)ARAF (R
EWEFH]) BEERFEEXFR QA
(TEEGZE )T IREE RS - AT
REBEESHTZZISBRERAARE
76,500,000t 2 REBEWEERG B 2ERE
W2 ER -

FAE ETﬁLﬁz XS IBKEGEIZY
EEEERE

R=B—N\Ft+—A=+H  BHBED
SR TSR B 0 R 2 B M e

55%IEZET70% °
BB E REREREHHANKRER

BEMEBE—BEZRS - ARRR S

Hﬂﬁf%ﬁézfﬁi&@:éfi%/\ﬁﬁg
248,108,0007T + A5 BB R AN i #ERR
FEFE R R B A R 37,216, OOOEi%i
FHE1E -
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e SRR M EE

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

51. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

£/.«< M\*H‘E
AEBEREEA

RIRE IR - AR ERER A REE
BENRRREREFRZABDT -

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—g-\E —T-N\F
+t=A=+t-8 =A=t-~
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Within one year —FR 29,587 21,223
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEZFRF

(BRERME) 26,767 29,156

56,354 50,379

As at 31 December 2018, all operating leases are related to
premises with lease terms between 1 to 5 years (31 March
2018: 1 to 5 years). The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

The Group as lessor

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental or/and
for capital appreciation.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RZZ—NFE+=ZA=+—8 " Fiags
HEsEYEER  HSA—F2RF (=
T \FZA=+—H8: —FE2RHF) K
SEVERERIPNEEHEEENE
) o

FEBER/HBEA

ARERAZNEANELRE R KA
A -

RIS HPIK - AEEEEAS TR R
R BRI E SRR A )

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F  —E)\F
+=—A=+—-HB =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Within one year —F R 20,101 18,779
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEEZFERF

(BREEMF) 67,374 49,093

After five years REUE 151,927 132,415

239,402 200,287

All leased properties held have committed tenants for the next
1 to 20 years (31 March 2018: 1 to 20 years).

—E—)\FR

BEREBEZHENERARR—FE_+F
“E-N\F=ZA=t—B: —FE-+
FIFAREBRP -
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE-N\FMA—AE =T N\F+—A=+—HEH

52. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 52. EARRH AR
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —T-N\F
+t=A=t—-H =A=+—H
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Capital expenditure in respect of the MEBNERREREVHEREA
properties development project REEHE 2 MEERBE 2
contracted for but not provided in the EARFEY
consolidated financial statements 1,775,568 962,418
Capital expenditure in respect of the R EYWE BELREEELD
acquisition of property, plant and BARRERE P SRR NIR R
equipment contracted for but not 2 ERRX
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 352,306 153,800
Acquisition of assets through acquisition  BEBUEET 5T 4B B A7)
of subsidiaries contracted for (note (a)) WEEE B (M 7% (a) 540,700 1,319,740
2,668,574 2,435,958

266

Notes:

(a)

Included in the amount of RMB540,700,000 were capital
commitments with following details:

On 5 December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with the
independent third parties for the acquisitions of (i) the entire equity
interest in the Jurong Simaite Intelligent Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Jurong Simaite”) and the aggregate loan owed by
Jurong Simaite at the consideration of RMB137,200,000 and (ii) the
entire equity interest in the Jiangsu Xietong Solar Technology Co.,
Ltd. ("Jiangsu Xietong"”) and the aggregate loan owed by Jiangsu
Xietong at the consideration of RMB367,500,000.

The completion of the above acquisitions are both subject to various
conditions to be fulfilled on or before 31 March 2019. As at 31 March
2019, certain conditions for the completion of the both acquisitions
have not been fully fulfilled, the agreements have both been lapsed
on 1 April 2019. The Group has not paid any sum to the vendors.

Other than the abovementioned acquisitions, the acquisitions
entered prior to 31 December 2018 are not yet completed at the
date of these consolidated financial statements approved for
issuance.

In addition to the above capital commitments, the Group also
entered an agreement to acquire the entire equity interest in
and debts due by Baohua Properties (Huai'an) Limited at a total
consideration of RMB180,000,000. The consideration will be settled
by the issue of the convertible bonds of the Company.

et -

AR #540,700,0007C 5t AEAFSE - FHiEW

T

RZZ2-N\F+-A0B  FEEEBY
FZAREBOOTEBEREEREERA
A([ARBER)28RERGBTEER
BEZHEFRBET L RERARK
137,200,0007T ¢ K (ii) /L& th i St (R BHR A
BRI #1738 1) 2 8B A KT & 1538
BEZAEFRBET L E  RERBARK
367,500,0007T °

FREBERZ TRERREAAN R
—NF=ZA=+T—BHZHER G - B
“E-AF=A=+—H ERLEMER
BERZETHREHRZEEK - WABH
FER-FT-NFMA—BERR - REBY
EREDXEMEHE -

BRERWEERES R_F-NF+=A
=+ BRI Z W EERZEGRETE
RRIER AT B B R TR ©

B i B AR RS - A RET ST A
RS IE O 2) AR A 72 2 HARHE AT
@R 2 & - KA AR 180,000,000
o ZREBH AR RET TR S
fif o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

53. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, carrying values of Group's
assets pledged to secure bill payables, borrowings and

53. IKHEE

RBEHRK - ARERUSARE &
NRE - EREREREAEER AR

obligations under finance leases of the Group are as follows: BEZHREREBENT :
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
t=ZA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment M BB MERE 452,237 708,470
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIA 224,965 129,634
Investment properties LB 5,695,775 5,336,830
Properties held for sale HBEREYE 2,056,694 2,217,457
Inventories FE - 40,513
Bills received B ER - 4,273
Pledged bank deposits RITHEPIF 285,634 262,823

In addition to above pledged assets, the Group also pledged
certain subsidiaries’ equity interest to secure bank borrowings
of RMB584,000,000 and borrowings from a financial institution
of RMB1,440,000,000.

T\

A

Br EIKIRE EHN 0 AEE KRS T
B8R a2 [ A A R % 584,000,000 7T
ZRTERLE —HEREERE AR
1,440,000,0007T 2 f& FRIEIR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 54. BB AR S
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EAREEAEME
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key WA FEEEREMBREEA
management personnel during the period/year were as BzMenmT :
follows:
1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-NF —E—tF
mA—H mA—H
B-E-NF T )\F
t=RA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Short-term benefits - HA 48 12,202 21,827
Post-employment benefits R HzER 133 104
12,335 21,931
(b) Transactions with companies controlled/ (b) EERZAEY BEBEEATEN

significantly influenced by Mr. Meng

The transactions with companies controlled/significantly
influenced by Mr. Meng for the period from 1 April 2018
and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

(1) During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018, Dalian Huashunjie, Dalian
Huataian, Dalian Huashunxin, and BH Properties
Shenyang Co., Ltd. are disposed of to an entity
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng therein. As all
of these subsidiaries are dormant with no net assets
value, the Directors considered that these disposals
do not have material financial impacts to the Group
(note 49).

268

NARZRS

RIE-NFHEHA-RAE_ZT-N
F+-A=+—RHHHE BHkx4LE
I BEEEARENNRAZR
ST

Mm

RZE—N\FHA—HE=Z
—N\E+-A=1+—BH™8 "
REEERE - KEBERT K
HEEE MMREWEESHR
RRIERETF—RBXARLES
AEEBERE AR EPZRE
WMEBARTELCEERARE
EFE EETRAREHES
BEAEETEE AT HTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with companies controlled/
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng (Continued)

)

In December 2018, a company controlled by
Mr. Meng has entered into an agreement with
China Huacai to take up a prepayment due from
Hareon Solar. As a result, carrying value of the
investment in China Huacai has been increased to
RMB154,470,000 and the change in fair value of
RMB154,470,000 has been recognised as a deemed
contribution by controlling shareholder in deemed
contribution reserve (note 23(d)).

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018, the Group has issued commercial
bills totalling of RMB450,000,000 to a private
company controlling by Mr. Meng (note 32).

The transactions with companies controlled by/
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng during the year
ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:

M

B \FH

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
had disposed its equity interests in Zhejiang Linhai
and Liaoning Yinzhu to certain entities controlled
by Mr. Meng (note 49).

The consideration from disposal of Zhejiang
Linhai and Lianing Yinzhu of RMB190,000,000 and
RMB75,000,000, respectively, were offset against
amount due to immediate holding company (note
49).

On 30 March 2018, Jintan Ruixin, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, had entered into a
debt restructuring arrangement with a private
company wholly owned by Mr. Meng and
Changzhou Zhongrong Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Changzhou Zhongrong”), pursuant to which
Jintan Ruixin agreed to offset the amount due from
Changzhou Zhongrong of RMB85,275,000 with
amount due to immediate holding company.

54. BEEARS (&)

(b)

RELEEN BREEARES
MRBRZRS (&)

2 RZZE—N\F+=ZAH  —[EfA
AR H AN B E AR B EE
TSItk o DARIEREUOS B
RZIBAFRIE - Et - RAPAE
ER7IRERAEDEEAR
# 154,470,000 7T * M A R
154,470,000t 2 A FHEEEE
RV E R ERERREEE
REAZ BEE (FIsE23(d)) °

B R-ZE-—N\FmOA—ABEZ
T-N\F+=ZA=+—8"
AEEBCDBTAEARKE
450,000,000 7T 2 B ¥ R T
—MBFRIEEEH Z2FLART

(B#5E32) »
BHE-_ZT-NF=A=+—801I*#F
B BEEEE / MBEERTE
NHRRZRSIT ¢

BE-_T-N\EF=ZA=+—8
LHFE - AEBEDHEENT
IREREEREKOBRET
BEEEHNE T ER(HE
49) o

—
—
=

HENTERS REERKOR
& 9 B A R # 190,000,000 7T
N A R #75,000,000 7T M FE -
BEEER A A SRIE K 8 (T &
49) o

2 R-ZZE—NE=ZA=+H ' &
RRIZEWBRARSERME
SR HREEREMNPREEE
BEFERAR ([ FINEFE])
2EHRBNFLARBIFI M ES
BHAWE - B SEBRAE
EUEMEEERARZRE
8 FE U M R B R IE A RS
85,275,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

270

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with companies controlled/
significantly influenced by Mr. Meng (Continued)

(3) As at 31 March 2018, impaired idle machineries with
original cost of RMB50,758,000 were transferred
to a related company’s warehouse for temporarily
storage. The related company was a company
controlled by Mr. Meng (note 15).

(4) On 7 December 2017, a related company
controlling by Mr. Meng had provided a financial
guarantee of RMB160,000,000 in favour of the
Group.

(5 On 14 September 2017, a related company
controlling by Mr. Meng had provided a financial
guarantee of RMB210,000,000 in favour of the
Group.

The amount due to immediate holding company is
disclosed in note 42.

Provision of credit facility

As at 31 December 2018, China Huajun Group
Limited has provided a interest-free credit facility of
RMB7,000,000,000 (31 March 2018: RMB4,000,000,000) to
the Group, of which RMB2,348,987,000 (31 March 2018:
RMB3,429,188,000) is unused by the Group.

54. BBA R 5 (48)
(b) BREEERH HEEAXED

MRRZX5 (%)

B R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8"
R A A A R 50,758,000 7T
WERERERRCEBE—
B A RIMAREE T - %
BRAR AR EHLEEHNAT
(PfsE15) °

@ R—T—+F+=-A+tH-
—HmEZEEEHOERA
AEALAEEREARE
160,000,000 7T B BAFEHEAR o

5 R-—TE—+tHFHLA+ImA-
—HmELEEHOEL A
REALAEEREARE
210,000,0007T H) BF T5 HE AR o

FE S B AR IR N B SR8 B B MY 5T
42

RHFERE

W—_ZE—-NE+=-A=+—8"
FREEELEBABRARAEALSE
12 it A K #7,000,000,0007T ( =
TZ-—NF=ZA=+—H: AR¥
4,000,000,0007C) K @LE - EFRARE
i & B) 3 A R #2,348,987,000 7T
(ZZ2—NFE=A=+—8: AR%
3,429,188,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 54. B¥H RS ()

(Continued)

(c) Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank Co., (c) BEHEONBRITRHOBRAT
Ltd. (“Yingkou Coastal Bank”) (MEOEBRTHZRS
As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Meng owns 13.9% (31 R-E—NF+-_A=+—B8 " ' &
March 2018: 19%) equity interest in Yingkou Coastal Bank EEBEAREOLBRITI3.9%.2
and has been a director of the Yingkou Coastal Bank EE(ZZE-—NEFE=A=+—8:
since 4 January 2018, bank balances deposited in and 19%)  ¥E -_FE—-—NF—-—HAM@A
borrowings obtained from Yingkou Coastal Bank as at 31 HEALONBRTZES  RN_T
December 2018 and 31 March 2018 constituted balances —NE+ZA=+—HBEZZE—-AN
with related party. FZA=Z+—BREOBERITHE

MZRITRBREBEER BB
FREBEE TR 5 ©

Balances with Yingkou Coastal Bank RE LR GIRITIZ M 2 IRITHEER
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F —E)N\F
t=A=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Bank balances IR1T4 8% 330,581 49,979

Endorsed bills received EEEEKERE 7,900 28,470

Pledged bank deposits IRITIRIR TR 211,300 110,579

Bill payables S =% (553,000) (431,709)

Bank borrowings RITERK (1,903,620) (1,250,540)
Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank & HBIRITZX S

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —ZT—+F

A—H mA—AH

ETE-N\E ==2-ZT—)/\HF
t=A=+—-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR AR¥ETT

Interest income FEBA 2,103 8,222
Interest expense FEFXZ (114,457) (86,655)
Bank charges RITEA (331) (159)

Z—\FR 271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

272

(c)

(d)

Transactions with Yingkou Coastal Bank Co.,
Ltd. ("Yingkou Coastal Bank") (Continued)

Banking facilities provided by Yingkou Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2018, Yingkou Coastal Bank has
granted banking facilities of RMB3,103,620,000 (31
March 2018: RMB2,835,710,000) to the Group, of which
RMB647,000,000 (31 March 2018: RMB1,153,461,000) is
unused by the Group.

Financial guarantees contracts entered in favour of
Yingkou Coastal Bank

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised
financial guarantee liabilities of RMB228,382,000 which
arisen from respective financial guarantee contracts
entered by the Group in favour of Yingkou Coastal Bank
with details as set out in note 38(b).

Subsequent to the period end, all guarantees in favour
of Yingkou Coastal Bank provided by the Group are
released.

Transactions with a listed company in the PRC
and companies controlled by business partners
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the
Company

On 6 April 2016, Mr. Meng became the chairman of
Hareon Solar, the shares of which was listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Subsequently, Mr. Wu also
became a director of Hareon Solar. In the meantime,
certain companies controlled by business partners of
Mr. Meng have conducted sales and purchase activities
with the Group and Hareon Solar. In the opinions of
the Directors, all of these companies are considered
to be related parties of the Group under HKFRSs. The
transactions with these companies from é April 2016
onwards constituted related party transactions.

54. BB AR5 (&)
() EEONSRTIRBGARADD

(d)

(TERMBRITNZRS (E)
E OB RITIRHEZIRITHE

R-E—-NE+=-_A=+—8 "
EONERTemAEERLR
TEEE AR #3,103,620,000 7T ( =
TZ-—NF=ZA=+—H: AR¥
2,835,710,0007T) © B AL E 15
K& A AR ¥ 647,000,000 7T ( =
TZ-—NF=ZA=+—H: AR¥
1,153,461,0007%) °

HEOHBIRITRZERAGT L ZE
BEREHN

RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H ' &
SEEERBAEEUE O LS
WITRX W AR 218 FEM %%
RENEEZHBEREBEAR
& 228,382,000 7T  FF 15 & A M &
38(b) °

HIR%&R > ERAEERH‘EZIAE
ARBRITAXBEAZERDER

R—BRPEZ LA SR EA
DRI R R E e MR B
BHHAR RS

RZF—RFEUAKRA &EREK
REBEXRKOER - Z2ABRON
LBRFRZMED - K& R%E
ETRRBERRZES - [ -
ETHRZETENEBERHEFNA
FEEAEERSELRETHE
RIRBEY - EFRR > 2H%F
NRIRBRBYHREERNIRE
REAEENEET - B T —RF
MARAREZEZRANZ HHEK
IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Transactions with a listed company in the PRC
and companies controlled by business partners
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the
Company (Continued)

On 19 July 2017 and 14 September 2017, Mr. Meng and
Mr. Wu resigned as chairman and a director of Hareon
Solar, respectively. Therefore, Hareon Solar was no
longer considered as a related party from 14 September
2017 onwards. However, the Directors considered
that Mr. Meng still had significant influence over the
companies controlled by his business partners, which
should be considered as related parties of the Company.

The balances with these related companies as at 31
December 2018 and 31 March 2018 are disclosed as

54. BBA R 5 (48)
(d) E—MRPEZ EHATRAS

RAZRRRELENERBH
BHORRAZRS (&)

RZE—tF+LtATABER-F
—tFAA+TEA > ZEERRS
ERRBESELRERERESR
iz - At BEARE-_FT—LF
NATHERESFRE R — B @
7oA BERRAXLENEE
EBRHEHNRAREFEATE
N A ERAR R R RIR BT o

RZTE—NEF+=A=+—8BEK=
E-NFZAZt+—BHEZSEH

follows: NAIRAERIRENT ¢
Nature of Name of
balance gEang related party BHLERE 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—E-N\F —T-N\F
tZA=t-A =ZA=t-H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
fitet AR®TR ARBTT
Trade receivables  ZHEWFIE Changzhou Zhengxin  EMEEHELR
New Energy Co., Ltd ~ BRAF - 65
Prepayments BRRE Yingkou TianBao BOXEMNLEED
NewlLife Supermarket ~ BRA7]
Co., Ltd 50 -
Notes: Ftat -

(i) These balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
trade-in-nature. The Group generally provides credit term to
these related companies on a case by case basis.

(ii) This balance represented advance payments for purchasing of
office supplies products as agreed by both parties.

B \FH

0] W EBHAEER - TS EBES
HE - AEE-RERERHRZEE
A EHEBARRLERS -

(i) WEHKREFRBERIZARH
FEHITRIS AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 54. MRS (&)
(Continued)
(d) Transactions with a listed company in the PRC (dy HE—RBRHBEzETmTARRBAR
and companies controlled by business partners RAERBRREZEENEBBH
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the EHNRARZRB (E)
Company (Continued)
Transactions for the period from 1 April 2018 to RZB-NFOAA-BHE=Z-N
31 December 2018 and during the year ended fFr‘f'—ﬁ_ +t—HHEREZ=F
31 March 2018 —NEF=ZA=+—HILFEZXZ
Nature of Name of 1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to
transaction RHHE related party BHLERE 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
AL “B—t#F
mA—H MA—H

E-B-N\f EZT)\%
+=ZHA=+-H =A=1t-H

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Hiat ARETR AREFT

Sales of solar HEAKFAL  Jiangyin Hareon Solar  STREEABEE
photovoltaic KRESR Power Co., Ltd NBERAT (i) - 102,577
products Jiangsu Zhong Xin New TEFEH R
Energy Co., Ltd BB (i) - 44.413
Hareon Solar ERR (i) = 3,865
Changzhou Zhongrong &M # BBAEREHR
Energy Technology BRAT
Co., Ltd (i) - 9,236
Changzhou Zhengxin  #MIEEHT8ER
New Energy Co., Ltd ~ BRAA] (i) - 3,023
Changzhou Yingli New &M &F|5T6R
Energy Co., Ltd BB (i) - 6,880
- 169,994
Purchase of solar ~ $EEABE  Jiangsu Zhong Xin New JIE S E#e
photovoltaic RRER Energy Co., Ltd ﬁl‘ERT (ii) = (65,175)
products Otisway Energy REFH R
(Taicang) Co., Ltd (KE)ER (ii) - (73,454)
Jiangyin Xinhui Solar ‘}I(%%ﬁii{ﬁfﬁ
Energy Co., Ltd BRAT (ii) - (5,864)
Hareon Solar EYEDAN (il - (27,301)
Jiangyin Hareon Solar  JTE&E A
Power Co., Ltd ENERAT (ii) S (3,031)
- (174,825)
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e SRR M EE

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

TE-N\FOAA-AE—E-N\FT_A=+—HEH

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

54. BEEARS (&)

(d) Transactions with a listed company in the PRC (dy E—RRHBEzETARRBAR
and companies controlled by business partners RAERBREZEENEBBH
of Mr. Meng, the controlling shareholder of the EHNRARZRB (&)
Company (Continued)

Notes: Ftat -

(i) Solar photovoltaic products are sold to these related (i) Rt EHEAREE RS RER
companies at a price agreed by both parties by reference to ZEBRIIZ2RMIGASERHTEBL
the price available in the market. EHAE -

(i) Solar photovoltaic supplies are purchased from these related (i) = iE ANGIE S PN T 2D A N2 3
companies at a price agreed by both parties by reference to m2 EBRT2RTIS A SERGE R
the price available in the market. HEHRE -

Financial guarantees provided to Hareon Solar BEEXRIBHBER

Guarantee | and Guarantee Il of the Group are provided AEEEHRIMEERRRES

to Hareon Companies and a subsidiary of Hareon Solar, R —EMB AR RHEER K

respectively. Details are disclosed in note 38. PRI - FHIEHEBERHIFE3S ©

(e) Related party transactions and balances with (e) HEMBEBIZEBHEITER
other related parties EER
The Group had the following balance with other related REEBR - ZT-—NF+-_A=+—
parties as at 31 December 2018 and 31 March 2018: BR—ZE-NF=ZA=+—HHEH

o RAEE T AR T
Nature of Name of
balance gEang related party )y 31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-N\F —N\fF
+=ZA=+t-B =A=t+-AH
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Other receivables HifElRoE Liaoning Fubon Real ~ BEEREHER#
Estate Development AR AR]
Co., Ltd - 6,700

Note: The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable Hifet © ZeBAEEKR - FEtERAKRENR
on demand. A director of the Company has control over this B - ARAN—BESBHAZLNF
company. HOFE I -

During the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December RZZE-NFOA-—BZZZ—N

2018, the Group had entered into certain financial F+-_A=1+—BHME AXE£ED

guarantee contracts in favour of some business partners NHZEENETEBRBEHEAEIEA

of Mr. Meng with Yingkou Coastal Bank. For details, BEONERITIIVAE THBER
please refer to note 43. EH o BHAFIS - LML -
—E-\EH <



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—F-N\EmA-AE=

E-NF+_A=+—HEH

55. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 55. ME R EE BB ZHR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TEHEMARTAEBREEHELAE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- CEE)  BIFEIReRIERSEH - g EF
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BELEZEEBRESTE L Qg AKE
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, S EBEAERESA B S TERRNYE
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows BRBEEHESREAE -
as cash flows from financing activities.
Amount
due to Obligations
Obligations ~ immediate under
under finance holding Corporate  Convertible Bill financing
Borrowing leases company bonds bonds payables  arrangements Total
ERERER
R REREAE ARFE AAEE  TRRES 158 RERHAE 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AR%Tn
At 1 April 2018 R=E-NEMA-H 4,594,053 - 520,000 256,265 849,208 358,346 - 6,571,872
Cash inflow (outflow): BERARE) s
Proceeds from borrowings e e 2,136,256 = s = s = = 2,136,256
Repayment of borrowings BRER (2,282,020) - - - - - - (2,282,020)
Proceeds from financing BAZHAERE
arrangements - - - - - - 1,183,417 1,183,417
Net cash inflow for acquisition of ~ WEMBAFZELHA
subsidiaries et - - - - - - 1,594,665 1,594,665
Advance from bill payables REERZR BH - - - - - 721,870 S 721,870
Repayment of bill payebles L GES - - - . - (523552) - (5255
Interest paid BIFIE (401,114) - - (9.137) (70,899) S o (481,150)
Redemption of convertible bonds BB AR ER - - - - (550,923) = S (550,923)
Repayment to immediate holding ~ BETERERAT)
company - - (1,180,812) - - - - (1,180,812)
Advance from immediate holding ~ REEZRERA A BH
company - - 2,559,718 - - - - 2,559,718
Repayment of obligations under ~ EERER S
finance lease - (2,226) - - - - - (2,226)
Non-cash transactions: $ReR5
Recognition of e
deemed contribution - - (186,346) - - - - (186,346)
Reversal of deemed contribution ~ EEE{ETE - - 32,795 - - - - 32,795
Net foreign exchange gain IMENRFE 20,044 = = 20,231 40,241 S S 80,516
New finance leases TERENRE - 26,373 - - - - - 26,373
Finance costs BBER 401,114 419 38,388 23,590 95,379 - 109,291 668,181
Change in fair value of convertible A& EH 2 AT
bonds - derivative component 2H-114£99 = = s = (118,374) = = (118,374)
Acquisition of subsidiaries EMBAR 329,000 - - - - 20,000 - 349,000
Discounting effect HRERH KRR
on financing arrangements - - - - - - (193,904) (193,904)
Debt restructuring EHER - - (76,787) - - - - (76,787)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N%
t=A=1-8 4,797,333 24,566 1,706,956 290,949 244,632 576,664 2,693,469 10,334,569
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

55. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

55. MERBEE 2B HR(E)

Amount
due to
immediate Amount
holding ~ Corporate  Convertible Bill  Dividend due to
Borrowing  company bonds bonds  payables  payables an associate Total
Ef R
ERER BERT
B RAFE  AAEF TARER  BREE  EARS 7B )
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 April 2017 R-E-t+EMA-A 3,120,35 999,321 243,161 28931 1,027,391 - 1372 5,690,538
Cash inflow (outflow): BERA(RE) :
Proceeds from borrowings EoRESE 2,784,852 = = S = S - 2784852
Repayment of borrowings BERT (785,388) - - - - - - (785,389)
Repayment of bill payables BEENZR - - - - b13930) = - (673930)
Interest paid BRHE (359,867) - (16138 (2439 5 E - (400391)
Proceeds from issue of convertible BRI ARERMEE
bonds - - - 486,180 - - - 486,180
Proceeds from issue of corporate BT AIBAFEHE
bonds - - 50,902 - - - - 50,902
Repayment of corporate bonds BENAER - - (24,390) = = = = (24,390)
Payment of transaction costs for issue X REfTAHRESZ
of convertible bonds THMA S = S (4,706) 5 = 5 (4,706)
Payment of transaction costs for issue X RETATERZ
of corporate bonds RHME - - (4.434) = 5 = 5 (4,434)
Repayment to immediate holding & FERERAE
company - (999,321) - - - - - (999,321)
Advance from immediate holding ~ REERERAT AR
company - 805,812 - - - - - 805,812
Repayment to an associate EET-HBELE = = = = = = (21,372) ,372)
Dividend paid to non-controlling ~ Eff—F; MTE;
shareholders of a subsidiary 3H§H§Hﬁ2ﬂ§,§‘ = = = = S (2,667) S (2,667)
Non-cash transactions: FEE%5:
Recognition of deemed contribution AR EFE = (50812) = = = = = (50812)
Reversal of deemed contribution ~ EEB{ETE S 65,766 S = S = 5 65,766
Net foreign exchange gain NEMEFE (21,163 33,651 (22017) (22.989) 4,625 S = (27.893)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (504,603) = = = = = - (504,603
Finance costs FHER 3986 158% 2077 61,69 260 - - 466853
Change in fair value of convertible R ER 2 ATE
bonds - derivative component 281487 - - 5 74,484 = = = 74,484
Dividends BRE - - - - - 2,667 5 2,667
Debt restructuring EBER = (85,275) = = = = S (85,275)
Disposal of a subsidiary and an HE- FWEQ Ak
associate i - (265,000 S = s = - (265,000
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\§
=A=1-H 4,594,053 520,000 256,265 849,208 358,346 - - 6571872
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For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. AARTEME QAT 2B
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RARBEFEWNBLRAR-_ZE—N\F+_H
December 2018 and 31 March 2018 are disclosed as follows: =t+—BRZE-NF=A=+—HZ
BEWERT
Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ARARL/ BRIRAR
WEARER RUBE ITEENY  RO/ERER AAREREERE TEER
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505

tZA=t-B =A=t-A

Bao Hua Properties Management ~ PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Property investment and
(China) Limited (note a) HE HE AK%100,000,0007T investment holding
REEFER(PR)ERRA(Hita) MERERRALR
Bao Hua Properties (Jiangsu) PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 80% 80% Property development
Co., Ltd. (note b) HEl e AR 100,000,007 ELE
RENE(TH)BRRA(HZD)
Bao Hua Properties Development ~ PRC PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note b) B W AR200,000,0007T investment
REEWERL(LE)ERAT MERERRE
(Hitb)
Bao Hua Properties (Dalian) PRC PRC RMB21,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (note b) i B AR 21,000,000 REBR
RENE(RE)BRRA(MZD)
Bao Hua Properties (Yingkou) PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. (noteb) i ARE20,000,0007C mERE
RENE(SN)EXARAT(Hitd)
Bao Hua Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd ~ PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% N/A" Property development
(formerly known as Wuxi Huiling HE ARE10,000,0007 TER NER%

Real Estate Co., Ltd) (note b)
REWE (S BRAG(FIEES
BEEEERAA)(MiHb)
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

56. ARBREEMBAR ZFHEE)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ARARL/ BRIRAR
WEARER RUBE ITEENY  RO/ERER AAREREERE TEER
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
t=R=t-R =ZA=t-H
Chenzhou Sonic Manufacturing PRC PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of subcontracting
Company Limited (note a) i i 1,000,000% 7T services to a fellow
BNENSIRERAR (Hia) subsidiary for paper and
packaging products
A-BRZNELREARR
BRERN BRE
Huajun Real Estate (Changzhou) PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
Company Limited i B AR 100,000,007 investment
(formerly known as Changzhou MERERRE
Jintan Ruixin Optoelectronic
Co., Ltd)) (note b)
FREX(BMERRA(IREN
MEERREEARAR) (Hitd)
Dalian Haitong Properties PRC PRC RMB600,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
Development Co,, Ltd. (noteb) B AR 600,000,007 investment
REBREHEREERLA(HFb) MERERRE
Dalian Taiyuan Properties PRC PRC RMB186,300,000 100% 100% Property development and
Development Co,, Ltd. (noteb) B AR 186,300,007 investment
REFTEHEREER LA (Kb MERERRE
Dongguan New Island Printing PRC PRC HK$162,000,000 100% 100%  Production and distribution of
Company Limited (note a) i B 162,000,000 T paper products
REFMMEBIRR R R (Hfa) EERDHEERD

T\
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

56. ARBREEMBAR ZFHEE)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
Rl A BRTRAR
MEARER kit IEEXHE  RO/EMEX AAAEREERE IEXK
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
t=R=t-R =ZA=t-H
Huajun Big Hotel Ltd (note b) PRC PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Provision of food service,
EZNBEBRAR(MHb) HEl e ARE50,000,0007 commercial service and
accommodation
RUEESRE - BEREREE
Huajun Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% 100% Securities investments
FEAAARAT BE (30 50,000,000/ ¢ BRE
Huajun Credit Services Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Money lending
FEEERBARAT & B 10,000% 7 it
Huajun Energy Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, trading
EEHREEERAT Bl &5 150,000,000% 77 and logistics
RERK SRR
Huajun Financial Group Limited Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
EZeREERRAT REHS i 10,000% 7T securities investments
REBRRESFRE
Shenzhen Huajun Financial Leasing ~ PRC PRC US§$50,000,000 70% 70%  Provision of financial leasing
Limited ("Huajun Leasing") (note ¢) & i 50,000,000% 7T and associated services
MImEERERERRAT RERERERABRY
([#ZRE]) (i)
Huajun Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Provision of management
EZERERAT R A 100387t services to group
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ZE- N\ FNA—HAE =T N\F+=A=1T—HHE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
Rl A BRTRAR
MEARER kit IEEXHE  RO/EMEX AAAEREERE IEXK
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
tZA=t-B =A=t-A
Changzhou Hongrun Solar PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Production and sale of
Technology Company Limited & i AR 100,000,007 photovoltaics products,
(formerly known as Huajun Power monocrystalline silicon,
(Changzhou) Limited) (note b) solar stent and related
EMmEREARBEERAR (AR products
ZEEN(EMBRAR) (Hiib) TERBERRER  ERER
KB R REBER
Huajun Properties (Dalian) PRC PRC RMB8,000,000 100% 100% Property development and
Co, Ltd. (note b) i h AFR#8,000,0007C investment
FRER(NE)RRRA(MZL) MERERRE
Huajun Power Technology (Jiangsu) ~ PRC PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
Limited (note b) i i AR200,000,0007T photovoltaics products,
EZENRBOLEH)ERAR (M) monocrystalline silicon,
solar stent and related
products
EERBENER BRE-
AERXRRERER
Huajun Equity Investment Fund PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% Fund management
Management (Shenzhen) Limited ~ H B HE AR#30,000,0007 HEER
(note a)
FEREREEERRYIERLA
(Hiita)
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
Rl A BRTRAR
MEARER kit IEEXHE  RO/EMEX AAAEREERE IEXK
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
tZA=t-B =A=t-A
Jiangsu Zhong Xiang Energy PRC PRC RMB150,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Co., Ltd. (note b) HE e AR 150,000,000 solar control equipment,
TR A RER AR (Hztb) monocrystalline silicon
wafers, polycrystalline
silicon, solar cells, coated
glass, rare metals, solar
modules and silicon
materials and related
products
HERRERGRIERE &
Bih 28 AG#E
b BERE BALE-
KB RE REM LA RE
BEm
Liaoning Bao Hua Properties PRC PRC RMB42,000,000 100% 100% Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. (noteb) i AE#42,000,0007 NER%E
REREEHEREERLA (WD)
New Island Management Services ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong US$1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited B i 1,000,000%7 RaEk
NERRBARAA
New Island Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$200 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding and
AR BR AR & &R and HK$1,000,000 distribution of paper
non-voting deferred products
shares REARRRAHARS
200 TEEBRR
1,000,000 7
ERTREL
)
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

56. RRBEEMB AR ZFHB(E)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ARARL/ BRIRAR
WEARER RUBE ITEEME  RO/EMER AAREREERE TEER
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 %
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
tZA=t-B =A=t-A
New Island Printing (Liaoning) Limited PRC PRC RMB16,000,000 100% N/A  Production and distribution of
(note a) HEl e AR 16,000,000 TER  paper products
FNEDRICER ) BR AR (Hita) EERDHEERD
New Island (Shanghai) Paper Products PRC PRC US$2,500,000 100% 100% Production and distribution of
Co. Ltd (note a) i i 2,500,000t paper products
M E8) S ARAR(Hfa) EERDHEERD
NITNS LLC The US The US 100 ordinary shares of 51% 51%  Provision of marketing services
X E3ei US$1 each RETSEERS
100RERIZTH
LRk
Shanghai Huajun Chemical, Ltd. PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, trading
(note a) H B AE100,000,0007 and |ogistics
FEERTERRA(Hita) REBR  BHRYR
Shanghai Huajun Rubber Technology PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60% Trading of rubber and
Co., Ltd (note b) i i AR30,000,0007 products
FEERBRBRRARAR (Hdb) BBRIIERES
Shanghai New Island Packaging PRC PRC US$5,700,000 100% 100%  Production and distribution
Printing Co Ltd (note a) i i 5,700,000 of paper products
EEFNaRNRERAR M) FERD SR
United Securities Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$29,500,000 100% 100%  Providing securities brokerage
BEEFRRAR Bk Bk 29,500,007 services

—E—)\FR
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principal Issued and fully
incorporation/  place paid share/ Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
Rl A BRTRAR
MEARER kit IEEXHE  RO/EMEX AAAEREERE IEXK
Indirectly Indirectly
;3 ik
31 December 31 March
2018 2018
—2-0\F 505
t=R=t-R =ZA=t-H
Wuxi Huiyuan (note b) PRC PRC RMB180,000,000 100% N/A" Property development
EBHEE(MHD) hE hE AR%180,000,0007C TER NERE
Wuxi Huize (note b) PRC PRC RMB100,000,000 70% N/A" Property development
BHZE(MHL) hE e AR 100,000,007 TER nER%
Yingkou Economic Technology PRC PRC RMBS,000,000 100% N/A" Property development
Development Zone Shangfang B AR 8,000,0007T TER nER%
Real Estate Limited (note b)
ENRERIRER L HRHERR
RR(MEb)
Yingkou Xiang Feng Properties PRC PRC RMBS50,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
Company Limited (note b) hE hE AR %50,000,0007 NERE
ENARERERAA(Hid)
Yingkou Yi Hua Green Packaging PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% N/A " Production of paper products
Printing Company Limited HEl G AK 10,000,000 TER 4ESHm
(note b)
ENRERERRIRERLA
(Hitb)
Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification of ffet - ZEMBARRPBKY - ERIZADHEM
establishment is as follows: T
(@) wholly foreign owned enterprise @@ HIEEELX
(b) domestic invested company (b) R ¥NG]
(c) sino-foreign enterprise () RONEERE
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

5=

A

56.

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the period/year.

The table below shows details of Huajun Leasing and Wuxi
Huize, the non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group at 31
December 2018 and 31 March 2018 that have material non-

controlling interests:

Proportion
of ownership
interests and

AAREEMBAR ZFBE)

ERFAIAEEHBEAT AEERAY
AEET EEREEEEAYE L HEA
T WERE - HEMKBA R B
HISBRILE -

BEMNBARRE FRETERNERE
P

TRIANR-ZFE-N\F+-_A=+—8HRK
TE-NEF=A=tRAEEHEFERKN
FERRREEZFEEMBARERME
EREHERZFE

Place of voting rights Loss
incorporation held by allocated to Balance of
and principal non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
FER B RES DEF
17 R 32 3t B BREZHARE FERRR FERRR
HEAREE EX-LES R KRR EEZEE ERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETT
31 December 2018
—F-N\Ft=A=t-H
Huajun Leasing PRC 30% (1,276) 110,193
EEHE i
Wuxi Huize PRC 30% (940) (74,873)
EBiHEE i
31 March 2018
—E-\$=A=+—H
Huajun Leasing PRC 30% (2,093) 111,469
¥EHE hE
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Summarised consolidated financial information prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
before intragroup eliminations in respect of the subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests are set out below.

56. ARBREEMBAR ZFHEE)

BRBAERFERR RS ZHE AR
REZEAVBHRERERS 2 EE R Y
A2 AR A M MAMEHINOT -

Huajun Leasing

EEHEE
31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—B-NF T )\F

t=ZA=t—-B =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Non-current assets ERBNE E 21,050 19,721

Current assets MEVEE 279,945 434,518

Current liabilities MENEE (80,106) (43,097)

Huajun Leasing
EEZHE

1.4.2018 to 1.4.2017 to

31.12.2018 31.3.2018

—E-N\F —ET—tF

A—H MmA—A

EZE-N\F E-_T)\HF

+=BA=+—8B =HA=+—H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMF T ARBT T

Revenue W25 953 17,928
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive A (EE) R2mes

income (expense) (X)) 373 (6,975)

Loss allocated to non-controlling interests Bt T IFIE AR MG SR i 25 2 JE5 18 (1,276) (2,093)

Cash flows from operating activities KETHELZBERSE 16,744 255,896

Cash flows from investing activities REGRDHEEZRERE - 92

Cash flows used in financing activities METEERAZREG RS (26,825) (281,814)
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56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 56. AATFEMB AT ZEE(4E)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Wuxi Huize
WG
31.12.2018
—E-N\F
+=A=+—H
RMB’'000
AR¥ET T

Non-current assets ERBEE 121
Current assets mENEE 1,098,149
Current liabilities ViEII=RE (1,347,691)

Wuxi Huize
6.7.2018 to
31.12.2018
—E-N\E
tHAxH
ETE-)N\E
t=A=+—H
RMB'000
ARMEF T

Revenue Iz 17,592
Loss and total comprehensive expense EEIEZEX HEE (2,421)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests B2 FIFIE AR R AE 2 2 518 (940)
Cash flows used in operating activities KETHFERAZIRSRE (79,715)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEGRHFERAZRERE (17)
Cash flows from financing activities MEETHELZIESRE 74,866
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57. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 57. D\ 2 M EAR R I
THE COMPANY

31.12.2018 31.3.2018
—2-Nf —T-N\F
t=RA=+—-A =ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFR ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries M B AR 2 1,589,550 1,221,641
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) EUH B AR Z 7B\ (Hf:E) 7,759,766 5,739,030
9,349,316 6,960,671
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEUSBT B AR 2 RIB (KT 3E) 1,165,082 638,852
Deposits and prepayments e MR RIE 20,415 19,655
Tax recoverable A Uy [B] 5 T8 - 300
Bank balances and cash (Note) SRITEESRNIR S (M) 191,886 17,336
1,377,383 676,143
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pk IA=N
Other payables Hoth & 1~ FRIE 18,395 18,865
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHT B AR Z I8 2,991,778 3,144,079
Obligations under financing arrangements BhE R IE 2,693,469 -
Convertible bonds AR ES - 634,818
Corporate bonds NEES 214,840 128,042
Borrowings B = 103,366
5,918,482 4,029,170
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE (4,541,099) (3,353,027)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABEE 4,808,217 3,607,644
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amount due to immediate holding company  JEff B 12 A &) 2 718 1,706,956 520,000
Corporate bonds NCIEEE 76,109 128,223
Convertible bonds Al E S 244,632 214,390
Financial guarantee contracts MBERERD 193,904 -
2,221,601 862,613
NET ASSETS FEE 2,586,616 2,745,031
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERR#E
Share capital R% R 55,203 55,203
Reserves G 2,531,413 2,689,828
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 2,586,616 2,745,031
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57. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 57. ARBZBIEARRIEK ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: ECL for amounts due from subsidiaries and bank balances are fist - BB ARZ RBERBITEHZEREE
assessed and impairment loss of RMB700,000,000 is made on the BIBE TG WERARBZABR, 5
amounts due from subsidiaries based on the Company’s internal SMNBIEERT AR B B A Rl 2 FRIAE A
and/or external credit rating. R #700,000,0007T 2 R E &8 °

Movement in reserves RE2E

Retained

Share-based Deemed profits

Share  Contributed payment  Exchange contrlbution  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

HRHAER i REER

BfeR  RAR®  ARER  ERRE  RERE  (ZHER) ]
RVBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO  RMBOND  RMBO

ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR

At 1 April 2017 RZE-+EME-A 2551848 69,589 66959 92025 195,924 6,050 2,982,395
Loss for the year EEER 5 = S 5 = (31,648) (31,648)
Other comprehensive expense Et2ERY = = S (245,965) = S (245,965)
Total comprehensive expense EERERRLE

for the year 5 = S (245,965) = (31,648) (277613)
Expiry of share options BhiEns - - (15,970) - - 15970 -
Deemed contribution from immediate  B{EARABHERAT 2TE

holding company of the Company - - - - 50812 - 50812

Reversal of deemed contribution from ~ BEB{ERRATZHE

the controlling company 5 = S 5 (65,766) S (65,766)
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\E=A=+-H 2,551,848 69,589 50,989 (153,940) 180,970 (9.628) 2,689,828
Loss for the period iRER - - - - - (499,612 (499,612)
Other comprehensive income At2akE - - - 187,646 - - 187,646
Total comprehensive income (expense) ESRZARE (T ) B8

for the period - - - 187,646 - (499,612) (311,966)
Expiry of share options ERERS - - (8,386) - - 8,386 -
Deemed contribution from immediate  BEALAERERAA 2 HE

holding company of the Company - - - - 186,346 - 186,346
Reversal of deemed contribution fom BB (FRRA 7 FE

the controlling company - - - - (32,795) - (32,795)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=R=1-A 2,551,848 69,589 42,603 33,706 334,521 (500,854)  (2,531,413)
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58. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

290

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has several outstanding
legal proceedings with construction contractors, customers,
suppliers and joint venture partner that against the Group in
the PRC in relation to the Group’s property development and
investment, printing and solar photovoltaic segment. Apart
from disclosed below, the directors consider that all other
legal proceedings would not have significant financial impact
to the Group as the corresponding claims against the Group
are either not significant or not probable to have a material
financial impact to the Group, based on the advice of the legal
counsel.

M

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has three
outstanding legal proceedings with Jiangsu Nantong
Erjian Group Company Ltd. (“Jiangsu Nantong
Erjian”) as plaintiff against several subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC in respect of certain construction
contracts disputes. The total amounts in disputes were
approximately RMB257,397,000. Subsequent to the
reporting date, the Group has entered into settlement
agreements with Jiangsu Nantong Erjian which shall
apply to the court for withdrawal of the claims against
the Group once the Group made certain agreed progress
payments to Jiangsu Nantong Erjian on or before 30
June 2019. In April 2018, the plaintiff has withdrawn
one legal proceeding of approximately RMB58,759,000
following the receipt of first progress payment and the
remaining legal proceedings will be withdrawn after the
receipt of the remaining progress payments on or before
30 June 2019 as agreed in the settlement agreements.
The Directors consider that the construction costs and
relevant compensation have been properly accrued
based on the settlement agreements at 31 December
2018.

As disclosed in note 31(a), the Cooperation Agreement
that entered between the Group and the independent
third party is not likely to be proceed due to the
failure to comply with certain urban renewal policies in
Guangdong Province, the PRC and the relating project
shall be terminated. Accordingly, the counterparty has
raised a civil prosecution against the Group regarding
the breach of the Cooperation Agreement. The
Group has sought legal advice in the PRC on the legal
proceedings to assess the amount of provision required.
The Directors consider the provision made in the
consolidated financial statements is adequate.

58.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018

—E-N\FOA-HE-F

—NEF+ZA=+—HHR

59. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

On 30 March 2018, Jintan Ruixin, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into a debt
restructuring arrangement with a private company
wholly owned by Mr. Meng and Changzhau Zhongrong,
pursuant to which Jintan Ruixin is agreed to offset
the amount due from Changzhau Zhongrong of
RMB85,275,000 with amount due to immediate holding
company.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the consideration
from the disposal of Zhejiang Linhai and Liaoning Yinzhu
of RMB190,000,000 and RMB75,000,000, respectively, are
settled against the amount due to immediate holding
company upon completion.

60. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to the financial period ended 31 December
2018, the Group has received advance payment of
RMB428,000,000 from the immediate holding company
in relation to its subscription of convertible bonds at
aggregate sum of HK$1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB877,193,000), which is expected to issue in June 2019
based on Directors’ estimation.

On 29 March 2019, the Group successfully won a bidding
for the land use rights to the land parcel in Dalian City,
Liaoning Province, the PRC through the Listing-for-Sale
organised and held by the Dalian City Natural Resources
Bureau at the Land Grant Price of RMB319,270,000. The
transaction has completed and all consideration has
been paid in March 2019.

—E—)\FR

59. FEFBRERS

60.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEER
Period ended
Year ended 31 March 31 December
BZE+ZA
=t-AL
HE=A=+-HLFE il
2015 2016 2017 2018 2018
“EF-nf ZERE ZE—tF —E-N\E —E-N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARBTR

Revenue Wz 598,772 1,374,919 3,313,992 3,921,601 2,649,485
Profit (loss) before tax BB AR (E518) 338,358 26,223 134,548 (925,030) (349,597)
Income tax expense IR X (116,505) (50,712) (91,147) (3,425) (46,514)

Profit (loss) for the year/period ~ HERLEKEE /]

from continuing operation wBH(EE) 221,853 (24,489) 43,401 (928,455) (396,111)
Profit from discontinued operation E#& |FE& £ 7 G F 28 = = = -
Profit (loss) for the year/period £ /HRHH(BE) 221,881 (24,489) 43,401 (928,455) (396,111)
Attributable to: Bl

Shareholders of the Company KDAIRE 193,891 27,090 22,117 (931,079) (388,926)

Non-controlling interests RS 27,990 (51,579) 20,684 2,624 (7,185)

221,881 (24,489) 43,401 (928,455) (396,111)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FEHEUE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RE AR R R
POSITION
As at
As at 31 March 31 December
®+=A
R=A=+—H =t+-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2018
“E-nf —E-RF —E—+F “E-)N\E “E-N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETR
Total assets BEE 2,974,923 5,266,919 11,672,189 11764556 15,762,535
Total liabilities “waE (1,896,926) (2,291,593) (8,146,342) (9,083,035 (13,131,815)
1,077,997 2,975,326 3,525,847 2,681,521 2,630,720
Share capital R 31,473 51,787 55,203 55,203 55,203
Reserves Bz 994,255 2,812,443 3,336,717 2,481,599 2,513,008
Equity attributable to LYNS Y
shareholders of the Company 1,025,728 2,864,230 3,391,920 2,536,802 2,568,211
Non-controlling interests FERBRER 52,269 111,09 133,927 144,719 62,509
Total equity g% 1,077,997 2,975,326 3,525,847 2,681,521 2,630,720
—T-N\FR 293



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE S

Particulars of the Group’s major investment properties, properties
held for sale and properties under development as at 31 December

AEER-_T-—N\F+-_A=+—RAZEERE
ME BELENMERERTOEZFHBLD

2018 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

™
REW=

Approximate

gross floor Group’s  Land lease
Location Purpose areas interest  duration
BRE rEE L
1o R# BEEE s HEHH
(sg.meter)
(FHK)

1. Jincan Garden, Xiong Yue Town, Commercial 2,072 100%  Medium
Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC [HES FhHf
HREEERLOMALHSRTE

2. Jinfeng Guesthouse, Sanjiazi Community, Commercial 2,031 100%  Medium
Bayuquan District, Yingkou City, [SE f HA
Liaoning Province, the PRC
TEEEELEOTHEABR=RFHREEER

3. Medical Building, the middle of Kunlun Street, Commercial 5,686 100%  Medium
Bayuquan District, Liaoning Province, the PRC SES apei
TEHERELHARRERATTREENE

4. Office units and commercial units located Commercial 9,549 100%  Medium
at Liangxi District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, SES H Hj
the PRC
R ETI#HE EHTREE 2
MAEBMREEEN

5. Commercial units at No. 4 Sanba Square, Commercial 17,453 100%  Medium
Zhongshan District, Dalian City, SES  Hj
Liaoning Province, the PRC
FEEER RETHILE = \BEH4ARE A EB M

6. Annexe to Shun Hing Square, Residential 1,759 100%  Medium
Shennan East Road,Luchu District, F= A
Shenzhen City, the PRC
BRI T 2R A IR R B SR B 15 R 5 P12
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
YE A

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FFHERTE

Approximate

gross floor Group’s  Land lease
Location Purpose areas interest  duration
BoRE A58 1
e R REHER bR HEHE
(sg.meter)
(F7K)
South-eastern side of Wang'ershan Avenue Bayuquan District, Residential 36,524 100%  Long
Yingkou City, Lianing Province, the PRC Fx =8
PEEEREOMHRARRERILAEREE
Residential Units located at Liangxi District, Residential 9,451 100% Long
Wauxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC Fx =8
IR EIIEE BT RER EEEN
The south of Moon Lake Park and the west of Liaodongwan Avenue, Residential/ 177,432 100%  Medium -
Bayuquan District, Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC Commercial Commercial
TERERENTRARRANEFEHMNEREAEE T/ E% hH-Ex
Long -
Residential
RY-1=%
—E-\EH <



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

YE S

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

BRERPEEYER

Approximate
grossfloor ~ Stage of Expected Group's  Land lease
Location Purpose Site areas areas  completion completion Interest ~ duration
BOEE
i i WBEE BEER  TARR BH%R KEAFEER  IHEENE
(sqmeter) (squmeter)
(FAR) (FAR)
Intersection of Dongyuan Road and Jianmin Road, Gaoyou City, ~ Residential/ 180,416 57172 Superstructure— Phase 5 (2019) 8% Medium-
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Commercial in progress Phase [-N (2020) Commercial
RETEA BN ARRARRERER f£/% LEREMEET  Phasell (2021) ng-E¥
£-8-5(23-nf) long-
E-5-N(Z3-%%) Residential
F28(-5--%) k-4
AParcel of Vacant Land located at the junction of Luma Road and  Residential/ 163,232 37785 Foundation Phase | (2021) 100%  Medium-
Changle Road) Binhu District, Wusi City, Jiangsu Province, Commercial in progress Phase I1 (2022) Commercial
the PRC fe/hg BETRNEER £-B(23=-F) hE- %
R EIHA EEBRRESRRRERRR S FoH(-2--f) Long-
Residential
RE-E%
Residential units located at No. 99 Changshan Road, Jiangyin City, ~ Residential/ 109019 20011 Final stage Phase |, 11 Il completed) 70%  Medium-
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Commercial RiER Phase IV 2019 Commercial
RRE THE TRTRLENS (80 fz/B2 F- 2 ZH(ER) h- %
EME-5-NE Long -
Residential
RH-f=
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER BRIPIREYFE
DEVELOPMENT
Approximate
gross floor  Stage of Expected Group's  Land lease
Location Purpose Site areas areas  completion completion Interest ~ duration
BiEE
e fi ot BEEE TAEA BEEH rEEFGER  IHEEEE
(sq.meter) (sq.meter)
(FAR) (FAR)
Investrent properties under construction at Xinzhuang Town, Office/Commercial 30825 185075 Superstructure 200 100%  Medium
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC B0z /B npogess  “E-%F w8
RE LETRIEERE RRRENE LERENAES
Investment properties under construction located at Office/Commercial 10857 146,210 Main structure 2000 100%  Medium
the south-eastern side of the junction of Titan Road and Wiz /EE completed “E°% mi
Zhongshan Road, Shahekou District, Dalian City, and under
Liaoning Province, the PRC interior
REEELAENT DREER A AR R AR (AN decoration
ki
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